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Sky is Britain and
Ireland’s leading
home entertainment
and communications

provider

Our business was launched in the belief that people
wanted a better choice of TV. Ever since, we have
constantly strived to improve that choice and to find
new ways to better serve our customers Today, we
are a valued part of life in over 11 million homes

As we have grown, we have developed three core capabilitres
content, technology and customers The success of our business
today, and the strong position we hold for the future, comes from
the umique way in which we bring these strengths together in the
products and service we offer

We also believe the way we do business 1s as important as what
we do"Our ‘Believe In better’ ethos means doing the right thing
and taking responsibility for our actions day to day It also means
reaching beyond our business to make a positive contribution to a
more sustainable society We call this seeing the bigger picture and
It I1s fundamental to our success
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Forward looking statements

This constitutes the Annual Report of British
Sky Broadcasting Group plc (the “Company”)
in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS and is
dated 25 July 2013. This Annual Report makes
references to various Company websites. The
information on our websites shall not be
deemed to be part of, or Incorporated by
reference into, this Annual Report.

This document contains certain forward kooking statements with
respect to our financial condition, results of operations and business
and our strategy plans and objectives These statements include,
without imtation those that express forecasts, expectations and
projections, such as forecasts expectations and projections with
respect to new products and services the potential for growth of
free-to-air and pay television, fixed-ine telephony, broadband and
bandwidth requirements advertising growth Direct-to-Home {'DTH )
customer growth, Over-the-top ("OTT") customer growth Multirocom
On Demand NOW TV, Sky Ge, Sky Go Extra, Sky+ SkytHD and other
services, churn, revenue, profitability and margin growth, cash flow
generation programming costs subscriber management and supply
chain costs, administration costs and ather costs marketing
expenditure capital expenditure programmes and proposals for
returning capital to shareholders

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in
such forward looking statements are reasonable, these statements
(and all cther forward looking statements contamed in this
document) are not guarantees of future perfarmance and are subject
to nsks, uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond
our centrgl, are difficult to predict and could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed or implied or forecast in the
forward looking statements These factors include, but are pot imited
to, those risks that are highlighted in this document in the section
entitled “Directors’ report - Business review ~ Principal nsks and
uncertanties, and information on the significant risks and
uncertainties associated with our business is described therein

No part of these resuits constitutes or shall be taken to constitute,
an invitation or Inducement to invest in the Company or any other
entity and must not be relled upon In any way In connection with any
wvestment deasion All forward looking statements in this document
are based on information known to us on the date hereof Except as
required by law, we undertake no obligation publicly to update or
revise any forward looking statements whether as a result of new
information future events ar otherwise
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Chairman’s statement

2013 has been a year of significant progress
for Sky. Building on our consistent track
record of growth, the Company continued to
deliver a strong performance, both
operationally and financially.

The fact that Sky has continued to outperform over a perod when
househald budgets have been under sustained pressure 1s testament
to the robustness of our customer-focused strategy and the
outstanding way in which management has executed against that
strategy While the economic climate remains uncertain, the Board 1s
confident that the Company i1s well placed with a clear plan to deliver
future growth and value creation for shareholders

As Sky has become more successful as a business its impact on our
Industry and the wider UK economy has grown For example we are
the biggest commercial supporter of the UK creative industnes, with
a commitment to grow our annual spend on UK production to £600
mithon by 2014 Sky also makes a significant and growing contribution
to the wider UK economy, contributing over £59 billon to GDP and
supporting 121,000 jobs

Alongside this, Sky's position as aleading broadcaster in millions of
homes allows us to reach beyond our business to inspire people to
make a positive difference A good example I1s Sky Sports Living for
Sport our schools Initiative that uses sports stars and skills to boost
confidence and improve Iife skills invoung people Inits tenth year the
initiative reaches cne third of all secondary schools in Britain and has
Just launched intreland We are proud of the work that we don this
area and are commutted to doing more in the future

Over the past year there have been anumber of changes to the
Board tacques Nasser, Tom Mockridge and Lord Whilson of Dinton all
stepped down in the course of the year On behaif of the entire Board
Iwould like to thank all of them for the considerable contnibution they
have made to Sky over many years

They have been replaced by Dave Lewis President Personal Care for
Unilever who joined the Board in November Chase Carey President
and Chief Operating Officer of 21st Century Fox who joined the Board
inJanuary and Andy Sukawaty the Executive Chairman of Inmarsat,
who Joined us In June | am also delighted that Adine Grate an
expernenced finance and investment professional, joined the Board on
17 July

After a period of change, | am confident that the Board reflects the
right blend of skills and experience to guide the Company in the best
interests of shareholders

Finally in ight of the Company’s strong performance the Board
proposes an 18% increase in the full-year dividend to 30 Q pence, the
ninth consecutive year of growth We also intend to seek shareholder
appruval fur a lurther £500 mmion of snare repurchases

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank sharehalders for their
continued support and all of our 24 000 colleagues at Sky for their
commitment and therr invaluable contribution to ancther excellent
year for the business

S

Mick Ferguson, CBE
Chairman
25 July2013
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Chief Executive
Officer’s statement

Our aim is to build a business that 1s durable
for the iong term: one which creates value for
shareholders and also acts responsibly in the
interests of the wider communities in which
we operate. We believe that those businesses
that achieve sustainable success have an
appetite for change and a commitment to
constant renewal in all that they do

At Sky our success 13 rooted in three core strengths content
technology and customers We have built these capabilities aver many
years and we believe that the unique way in which we have braught
them together has been fundamental to our growth While ather
companies may be strong in one of these areas or seek to extend into
another, Sky uses its understanding of customers to provide great
content and innovative technologyin a way that competitors are
unable to match

For us, everyth]ng starts with the customer We have established
direct, long-term relationships with over 11 million homes across
Britain and Ireland These relationships give us a deep understanding
of what our customers want - and don't want - and enable us to stay
focused on providing the services that best meet their needs

Because we understand our customers, we know that the man
reason they join Sky, and then stay with us,1s for great TV Qur jobis to
ensure that we find and produce the very best content to keep
offering them a better choice of the television they love

And it 1s the strength and scale of our customer relationships that
enable us to develop innovative technology that 1s simple and easy to
use Our products have transformed the viewing expenence for our
customers by giving them greater choice and fiexibility in the way they
access and enjoy our content .

In a fast-changing and increasingly complex environment, we believe it
1s the combination of these three strengths that gives us our edge
And our continued focus and investment 1in them provides us with a
durable source of value and competitive advantage

What we've delivered

Looking back on the last year, our results show that our approach s
delivering for customers and for shareholders In what has remained a
challenging consumer environment we sold more products to more
customers and grew the amount they spend with us Qver the year we
added 3 3 milhon new subscription products, taking our total base of
paid-for products past the 30-million mark for the first time to

316 million This s more than double the level of five years ago

That growth came from acress our product set Inhome
communications for example, Sky this year became the UKs second
largest broadband provider with more than 49 millon customers This
was aresult of strong organic growth combined with the acquisition
of 02's consumer broadband and fixed-line telepheny business

Overall customers now take an average of 2 8 products fromus with
more than one in three now taking all three of TV, broadband and
telephony This helped us to grow ARPU to a record level of £577,an
increase of £29 on a year ago

At the same time we continued to add new customers We closed the
year with 11 2 milbon customers, up 547,000 onlast year, making Sky
the chowce of around 40% of households across Britain and Ireland

Building on our strengths

We know that to keep attracting new customers - and to add even
more value to our existing customers - we need continually to look for
new ways to improve what we offer them

This year we significantly improved our content offering, securing
long-term agreements on key nghts bringing outstanding new talent
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to Sky and attracting record audiences across our channel portfolio
I sport, we reinforced our leadership with our strongest year yet
Europe s victory In the Ryder Cup Andy Murray’s first Grand Slam at
the US Open and the British and Insh Lions tour of Australia all
provided momentous sporting occasions With back-to-back Ashes
series ive and exclusive Formula 1racing and the biggest-ever season
of Premier League football all to come, next year could be better yet
In movies we renewed our relationship with four of the six major
studios 10 the course of the year, strengthening our portfolio and
developing our offering to give customers more of the top movies to
watch in more ways than ever before

We have continued to bring our customers the best content. from
around the world whilst increasing the amount that we spend on
original production We are on track to reach our target of an annual
spend of £600 milllon on British programming across our channels by
the end of 2014 Our strategy te increase investment in this area
enabled us to bring more great shows to customers including the
mult award-winning Hunderby written by Julia Dawis, Chris O Dowd s
semi-autobiographical Moone Boy and the third series of the critically-
acclaimed Mad Dogs Satisfaction also reached new ighs with Sky 1
Sky Living and Sky Atlant:c all named amongst customers’ top five
"must-have” pay TV channels

We strengthened our leadership in custemer technology by driving
rapid take-up and usage of new connected TV services over the year
The growth In the number of connacted boxes te reach 25% of
customers combined with the launch of the UK's most comprehensive
catch up TV service drove a fivefold increase in the number of average
weekly On Demand downloads At the same time Sky Go our mobile
video service, had 3 3 millien quarterly unique users by the end of

the year

In addition we gave people a new way to access our content with the
launch of NOW TV our internet TV service Having started with Sky
Movies, we added Sky Sports to the service later in the year offering
customers access to all six Sky Sports channels through a new
24-hour day pass This 1s the first time we have made Sky Sports
avallable outside a monthly subscription and 1t represents an exciting,
new oppor tunity for us to grow

Over the past year we also continued to offer great quality and value
home communications products In January, we launched the Sky
Switch Squad, a dedicated team of customer service adwvisors to make
switching to Sky Broadband and Sky Tatk easier We also continued to
buld Britan s leadng public Wil networs, Now with over 20,000
hotspots and growing, In addition we took a significant step to
extend our footprint by launching home communications in Ireland

Exceptional customer service remains integral towhat we do In
January, we opened a new customer contact centre in Dublin to
provide dedicated support for our Insh customers, creating 800 new
jobs We also created 550 new jobs over the course of the year across
our UK retall team and at our Newcastle customer contact centre And
in a further step in our drive to Improve the effectiveness of our home
service operation we are bnnging 700 engineers in-house at the end
of the summer

The quality of our customer service delivery was again recognised In
Ofcoms customer satisfaction survey This ranked Sky first for
customer service in TV fixed broadband and landline

Excellent financial performance

Qur strong operational performance combined with a continued
focus on cost contro! and efftciency has translated into excellent
financial performance and increased returns to shareholders Tota!
revenue ncreased by 7% adjusted operating profit was up by 9% to
£1,330 millon, while adjusted basic earnings per share were

60 0 pence, an Increase of 18% on last year and almost two and a half
umes the level of five years age

In ight of this, the Board has proposed a dividend of 30 0 pence, which
represents an increase of 18% year on year and the ninth consecutive
year of growth Our programme toreturn £500 million to shareholders
through a share buy-back alsc continues In additton we intend to
seek shareholder approval at the Company's AGM in Novemnber for a
further 500 million of share repurchases As with previous
programmes, 21st Century Fox (formerly known as News Corporation)
has agreed to participate in the buy-back, with the effect that there
will be no change In its economic or voting Interests in the Company as
aresult of the share buy-back programme

Sky s financial performance demonstrates the way In which our
successful transition to more broadly-based growth has created a
bigger, more profitable business and increased returns to
shareholders Having more ways to grow has also served us wellat a
time when household budgets have been stretched We will continue
to focus on growing our overall product sales as the best way to
deliver sustainable value to shareholders We see considerable
headroom for growth and believe that our unique combination of
strengths makes us best-placed to deliver the TV and
communications services that customers want

Seeing the bigger picture

AL Sky we recognise that creating a durable business also means
looking beyond our immediate commercial priorities to consider the
impact that we have on the wider communities in which we operate
We call this seeing the bigger picture

Sky makes a significant and growing economic and social contribution
to Britain and Ireland. We provide choice for customers in
entertainment and commurucations were the biggest commercial
supporter of the UK creative industries and were a long-term
supperter of British sport And the more successful we are the more
we contribute to Britain and treland as a whole

We believe that being successful commercially goes hand in hand with
acting responsibly so we think carefully about how we go about doing
business day to day Cne area where we have made significant
progress this year 1s online safety where we offer tools to help
parents protect their children at home and on the move

As a leading broadcaster, we also know that we have an opportunity
to make a wider mpact engagingdirectly with our customers to
inspire them to make a difference Qver the last year wereached a
number of significant milestones Insport a third of all secondary
schools are now taking part in Sky Sperts Living for Sport, our
programme that uses the power of spart to improve life skills in young
people In addition, over a milion more people are now cycling regularly
as a result of our partnership with British Cycling. We hope that Chnis
Froome’s succeass 1n the Tour de France in July 2013 will inspire even
more people to get on their bikes

Bnuish Sky Broadcasting Group plc §
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In the arts we have worked with some of the UK s leading arts
organisations to bring innovative new art works to the public Qur
award-winning collaboration with Tate Liverpool was wisited by almost
50,000 people this year At our broadeasting faciiity in West London
we also opened Sky Skills Studios a unique learning experience that
takes young peaple behind the scenes at Sky and gives them the
chance to work with the latest technology to make therr own news
reports on subjects they are studying at schoot By the end of June
aver 9 500 young people had already taken part in the Sky Skiils
Studios experience

We are committed to contirnung to do mare in all of these areas which
15 why we are par ticularly dehghted that Dawd Beckham has joined us
as a Sky ambassador to help us get ever more peopleinvolved in
sport

Of course activities ke these are the nght thing for a business like
Sky to do But acting responsibly Inthe interests of all of our
stakeholders also gives people more reasons to feel positively about
Sky which is an important part of how we continue to be successful
and grow

As always we couldnt have achieved any of this without our people
They are vital to our success and every one of our 24,000 celleagues
plays their part We work hard to attract the very best people to Sky
and to create a culture that encourages them to do their best work
and fulfit therr potential Whether by improving the traiming that we
provide or promating internal moves to broaden individuals
knowledge of the business, ensuring that we continue to develop our
people effectively remains a key priority

This year the Sky community was devastated by the tragic loss of Nick
Milligan, Managing Director of Sky Media, and his daughter Emily Nick
was a widely respected member of our team and his legacy will endure
for many years More importantly, he was a great friend and a devoted
family man who will be sorely missed by all who had the privilege to
know him

In August 2013, we were shocked by the news that Mick Deane, a Sky
News Cameraman, was shot and killed in Egypt covering the unrest in
Caro Mick had worked for Sky for the last 15 years in a distinguished
career spanning four decades He was a brifhant cameramen and
Jjournalist and an INspIring mentor to many at Sky His deathis an
untimely reminder of the bravery and commitment that our colleagues
In Sky News and other news organisations demonstrate each and
every day*

| would ltke to thank the whote team for their hard work and
enthusiasm over the last year With their continued drive and
determination, we can continue to deliver for our customers our
communities and our shareholders, building a bigger and better
business for the years to come

Yty A~
——

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executive Officer
25 July 2013

“This paragragh was included after the audited accounts were approved on 25 July 2013
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Our business model

Sky is Britain and Ireland’s leading home entertainment and
communications provider. As at 30 June 2013, we had 1.2 million
customers taking a total of 31.6 million products, -

Our business Our strategy

We retall pay TV services to residential customers both in

the home and on the move We connect our customers with
broadband and telephony products, including DSL, fibre and

WIFI We also retad our TV services to commercial customers and
operate adjacent businesses distributing our programmes and
channels, selling advertising on our own and on partner channels,
and offering a range of betting and gaming services

We have a clear and consistent growth
strategy to sell more products and services
to our customers, to attract new customers
to Sky, and to develop our adjacent
businesses

YILPLIGADE,

Our approach

Ta achieve our broadly-based growth strategy, we invest in the customer experience while improving the efficiency
of our operations Through unwavering focus on quality flexibility, value and service we can grow in a variety of ways,
create value for shareholders, and make a broader contribution to society

Invest in standout I Add value through ! Growin home Scaleother i Increase operating

content

Weinvest i hgh
quabty different ated
content to give
customers a greater
choice of tha TV they
are passionate about

I innovation

I hroug cantnually

L nrGyAL N arguwinour
Products and * ervacas we
i extend our reach Into new
! markets distrbute our
conient more troadly and
rrprove the eper cnee

¢ and add more ve u for

i custemars

i communications

i We have an
infrastructure which

i allows us to prov-de

i customers with great

i value, high quality and

! relable communications

i services.

businesses
We d=a'5y our contert
My estments o

pport growth inour

: adjacent wholesalg,
advertuing, dataand
bettg and ganung
D bus neLaes

i efficiency

i We focus on
operatng efficiency
i to deuver the best

! service underpin

! investmentin future
growth and increase
i profit cash flow and
i returns.

Develop long term capability

We invest in developing our brand, our people and our infrastructure as key components of iong term success

How we manage risk

K ot The Group has a formal
t nsk management
{h” framework embedded
within the business to

support the identification
and effective management of nisk across

Qur pecple

- The talent, hard work and
enthusiasm of our people
VJl are critical to Sky's success
-
We want to ensure we
~

attract the best people and
create a culture and an environment where

Seeing the bigger picture

- Seeing the bigger picture s
our approach to building a
sustainable business Wedo
this by growing our economic l
and social centrizution taking ]
responsibility for doing the nght thing in our

their full potential

they can perform at their best and achieve

day to day business and reaching beyond our

the Group

business to inspire people to take action to
» make a posibive difference
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Our performance

We have identified a number of key performance indicators
that we use to assess the Group’s performance against its

core strategic priorities.

Operational key performance indicators

Products & customers

(millhion)
0 Totalcustomers B Total products

Dascription
Acustomers defined as asubscriber to one of our TV
packages or standalone home oMMUNICATIONS Services
Total products s defined as the total of all subscnption
products teken by our customers and includes TV HD
Multiroom Sky Go Extra Broadband Telephony and
Line Rental
Anatysis
Tatal customers and products are both key determinants
of the Group s value. Our strategy s to continue adding
customers and seling more products Lo our existing
base In 2013, we added 547000 rew customers and

»  grewthe total products taken by 11%to 316 mulkon,

We also have over 25 independently
assured key performance indicators
that we use to measure our

sustainability perfermance
These can be found at
skycom/biggerpicture

Description

Churn represents the number of total customers

over a given penod wha terminated their subsenptions
net of formar customers who reinstated therr
subscnption (within 12 months of terminating their
onginal subsenption) expressed as a percentage

of total average customers

Analysis

Churn s a good measure of customer satisfacton,
which 1s a key driver of vatue for cur business

Chuen for the year 2013 was relatevety stable at10 8%,

Carbon intensity
(Per Em of revenue)
B Gross (02 emissions {(UEm) -~ = = Targetreduction

191
163
i ' i ] ]
2009 2010 20m 2012 2013
Description

Carbon intensity s one of ten new key perfarmance
indicators we use Lo rmeasure our environmental
parformance (see sky com/biggerpicture) Thetotal
gross CO,e emissions indlude emissions from premises
and company-ownad vehicies (Scope | and 2).

Analysis

We independently assure our carbon footpnnt each
year and use the results to drive reductions across the
business Our abschrte gross CO e emissions were stable
1n 2013 while we grew 35 a business. Qur carbon intensity
fellto 33 8 33%less than our 2008/09 baselna We are
ontrack to meet our new target st in 2012 to hake our
carbon emissions relative ta revenue (CO e t/£m) by 2020

Customers taking each of TV
broadband and telephony
(%}

Description

The percentage of customers talng one of our TV
products and both a Sky Broadband and a Sky Talk
product. Customers ray alse opt for our ing
rental product,

Analysis

Thig g arumpertant measure for our business

with higher penetration positvely impacting ARPU

and customeriayalty At 30 June 20i3 38 milicn
customers chose each of TV breadband and tefephony
up 1% from the pneryear

Employee engagement
M Skyengagement M UK NationalNorm

94%
B7%
86%

Description

Te measure employee engagement we undertake an
internal survey of our employees and benchmark ther
answars externally As part of a broad array of topics
surveyad employees are asked asenes of questions
designed ta guantify engagement.

Anatysis

Emplyyee engagement is a good indicater of how our
employees feel about the Company As well a5 reaching

& high performance indicator for employee engagement,
we have mproved on last year and performed better than
anndependant external benchmark of other blue-chip
campanies in each of the last three years

8 British Sky Broadcasting Group pl¢
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Financial key performance indicators

Description

Averaga revenua per user {ARPU) Is calculated by taking
the amount spent by the Group s residential customers
{ex VAT) divided by the average number of residential
customers

Analysis

ARPLIs impacted by the type of subscription package
taken by a customer aswell as the number of products
ARPU Increased by £29 as customers rewarded us with
more of thair business

Adjusted basic earnings per share
@

_______

Description

Adjustad basic EPS1s the profit after tax for the year
excludng adjusting ttems and refated tax effects dvided
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

Analysis

Adjusted basic EPS pravides a measure of shareholder
return thatis comparable over time Adjusted basic
EPSincreased by 18%to reach arecord level of 60 Op

Revenue
(Enviy

t

Description

Revenue includes revenue from retail subscnption
wholesale subscripbion revenue advertising and
installation hardware and senice revenue

Analysis

Revenue 15 2 key measure of how the Group 1s delivering
onits strategy to grow the business In 2813 revenue graw
by 7% with good growthin retall and wholesale aperations
and a recovery In the more cyclical operations

Adjusted free cash flow
(Enm)~

——

Description

Adjusted frae cash flow s defined as cash generated
from operations after the impact of capital expenditure
net interest and tax paid cash flows to and fromjoint
ventures excluding adjusting itemns

Analysis

Free cash flow s an important measure of the Groups
success In converting profits to cash flowand of the
underhang bealth of the business Ad,usted free cash
flow increased by 13%to over £3 tullion for the first time

1 Forareconalaton of non-GAAP measures induding a reconailiation of ARPU which has been restated for 2011 see pages 114-115

2 Fremcontinuing operations

3 Forfurther details see note 8 of the consohidated financiai statemenés

Adjusted operating profit
(gm).z

2013 | 1330

2012 1223
Descrption

Adjusted operating profit for the Group excludes items
that may distort comparabiity

Anatysls :
Adjusted operating profit is a key measure of the
underlying business performance It increased by
9%n2013

Total shareholder return
(%)
B BSkyB MW FTSE

13%
oo [ —
8%

Description

Tetalshareholder return (TSR) represents the change
invalue of a share held far a 12-month penod to 30 June
assuming that dividends are reinvested to purchase
additional shares at the closing price applicable on
the ex-dividend date The value of the share is based
an the average share price over the three menths
priorto 30 June The chart above ilustrates the TSR
perfermance for the 12months ta 30 June 2013 and
an average annual perfermance compounded over
five years to 30 June 2013,

Analysls

TSRreprasents a comparable measure of shareholder
return over time BSkyB shares outperformed the FTSE
100 Index by 2 percentage points in theyear to 30 June
2013 and by 8 percentage points over five years

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc 9
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Review of our business

INTRCDUCTION
Overview of the business

Sky IS the UK's leading entertainment and communications provider
We operate the most comprehensive multichannel multi-platform pay
television service In the UK and freland We have led the UKinto the
age of HDTV and launched Europe’s first 30TV channel, Sky 3D We give
our customers greater access control and choice while at home and on
the move with our Sky*+, On Demand and Sky Go services NOWTV
Sky's second consumer brand, gives customers another flexible way to
access Sky's content Sky is the UK's fastest growing home
communications company and this year, we achieved another product
milestone with the launch of a cormmunications service to complete
our triple play offering in Ireland

At 30 June 2013 we had over 11 2 milllon customers in the UK and
Ireland takmg a total of 316 million products We are the UK's
largest triple play provider with 35% of our customers choosing to
take each of TV, broadband and telephony

Our consistent approach is delivering strong financial results For the
year ended 30 June 2013, revenue growth of 7% combined with our
continued focus on operating efficiéncy delivered adjusted operating
profit growth of 9% to reach a record £1 330 milion and we surpassed
£1 billion of free cash flow for the first time We continued our strong
track record for shareholder returns with 18% growth in the full year
dvidend of 30 Op, our ninth consecutive year of growth In addition,
we have returned £624 million to shareholders throughout the year
via our share buy-back programme

This review of the business sets out the Group s main activities which
are summarised as follows

> Our customers - our products and services

> Qur content - our channel offering

> Our adjacent businesses - Sky Media, Wholesale Distnibution Sky
Betting and Gaming and Sky Vision

> Infrastructure and technology - satellites, playout and uplink
faclities digital satellite reception equipment encryption and :
security and communicatiens infrastructure

Certain terms used herein are defined in the *Glossary of terms’ which
appears at the end of this Annual Report

The Campany a public company imited by shares and domiciled in the
UK operates under the laws of England and Wales It was
incorporated n the UK on 25 April 1988 Qur principal executive offices
are located at Grant Way, Isleworth Middlesex TW7 5QD England A
Iist of our significant INvestments Is set out In note 3ito the
consolidated financial statements

OUR CUSTOMERS
Overview of our retail business

We retall subscription TV and communications services to residential
and commeraal premises in the UK and Ireland Qur customers enjoy
an unrivalled choice of high quality content We own and broadcast
the Sky Channels which we reta! together with the Sky Distnbuted
Channels to our TV customers and since July 2012 we have offered
simple and commitment free access toan internet TV service inthe
UK, NOW TV We keep our customers connected with great value
broadband and telephony products in the home via DSL and fibre and
away from the home with Sky Wikt

Products and Services

Television
> The Sky Chaninels and Sky Distributed Channels For our TV Customers,
we group the Sky Distributed Channels (other than the Premium Sky
Distributed Channels) and the Sky Basic Channels into three packs,
Entertainment, Entertanment Extra and Entertainment Extra+t The
Entertainment pack 1s avatlable for £2150 per month and includes
popular entertainment channels such as Sky 1, Sky Atlantic Sky
Living, Comedy Central Watch Gold Alibi and Fox Entertainment
Extra is avalable for £27 per month and includes all the channels
from our Entertainment pack plus additional channets inciuding
Discovery Disney and National Geographic Entertainment Extrat s
available for £32 per month and includes all the channels from our
Entertainment Extra pack plus 48 of these channeis in HD and
access to TV box-sets with On Demand Customers also have the
option te add a combination of Premium Sperts and Movies
Channels totheir package In total the Sky TV service currently
offers access to 165 pay television channels (134 Sky Distrnbuted
Channels and 31 Sky Channels) and 1n addition all customers can
recelve mere than 300 free-to-arr television and radio channels and
services Our agreements with the owners of the Sky Distnbuted
Channels typrcally grant us the exclusive right to offer these |
channels to residential DTH customers in the UK and Ireland . i
> Sky+ TV Customers can use Skyt to record two programmes |
simultanecusly whilst they are watching another programme ‘
recarded earher TV Customers can also use Skyt to pause and
rewind live TV and record entire series at the touch of a button with
the 'Series Link’ feature Since October 2012 farecording s
accidentally deleted 1t can now be undeleted The Skyt app on
mobilkes and tablets allows TV customers to view the TV Guide and
On Demand catalogue view recommendations record programmes
and set upa'Series Link’ whilst on the move When in the home, TV
Customers can use the Sky+ app to browse their planner and use it
as aremote control for thewr SkytHD box
> Sky HD We operate an HD service which consists of over 60 HD .
channels offering a range of content across all key genres This year
we have introduced greater flexibility as to the means by which
customers can access our HD service 48 basic HD channels
including Sky 1HD, Sky Living HD Sky Atlantic HD Sky Arts1and 2 HD
and Sky News HD and eight free-to-air channels are now avallable
within our new TV pack, Entertainment Extrat Customers then have
the option to add an HD Pack on top of this for Premium HD
channels in line with their TV package including five Sky Sports
channels and 11 Sky Movies channels
> Sky Multiroom We also offer our DTH customers a multircom
subscription, allowing customers to watch Sky TV indifferent rooms
at the same time by purchasing additional set-top boxes
> On Demand Sky's On Demand service offers a wide selection of
content from across the Sky platform including content from the
Sky Channels the Sky Distributed Channels and free-to-arr
broadcasters (including BBC IPlayer) for customers to watch
whenever they want Our full On Demand service includes IP
delivered video on demand and 1s avallable to homes that have an
active broadband eonnection Once their box 1s connected to thewr
breadband connection relevant TV Customers have a regularly
updated hbrary of on dernand TV, including the UK's biggest catch
up TV service with the widest range of catch up channels as well as
access toover 800 movies and TV box sets (including iconic series

from HBO)
1
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> Sky Go The service s avallable at no extra cost to DTH customers
allowing them to watch up to 49 live channels and on demand
content Including aft six Sky Sports channels, Sky Movies, Sky 1, Sky
Living, Sky Arts and Sky Atlantic Customers can also watch
programmes from a range of Sky Distnbuted Channels and Cn
Demand content live and on demand including children s content
from Disney, Nickelodeon and Turner and entertainment content
from Fox Syfy Universal and Star Plus Content from Channel 4 and
40D 115 also avallable for custamers to watch Sky Go s avaitable on
laptops, mobiles, tablets and Xbox 360 Each Sky home 15 entitled
to register for the service on up to two compatible devices

> Sky Go Extra In January 2013, we launched our new subscription
service Sky Go Extra The service, which costs £5a month, allows
DTH customers to download selected content included with therr
TV package to watch when and where they want, without the need
for a WiFi or 3G/4G connection Customers can also register for Sky
Go on four rather than two internet-connected devices From July,
Sky Go Extra s avallable to Sky Multiroom customers at no extra
cost

> Sky Box Office Qur Sky Box Office service currently offers our DTH
customers television premieres of movies and occasional live sports
entertainment events on a pay-per-view basis

> Sky Store Sky Store 1s our movies rentals service giving customers a
choice of over 1,000 movies including new releases just out on DVD
and a whole library of favourites, all avaliable to rent instantly and
on demand

> NOW TV Our internet TV service giving customers in the UK an easy
and commitment-free way to access some of the best Sky content
15 avallable across a wide range of internet-connected devices
Movie fans can get a Sky Movies Pass for £15 a month offering
completely unbmited access to hundreds of films Sports fans can
get a Sports Day Pass for £999 for 24 hours of upimited access to
all six Sky Sports channels

Home communications

> Sky Broadband At 30 Jure 2013, Sky had over 49 milion broadband
customers Since our launch in 2006 we have consistently been the
fastest growing provider of broadband and home telephony
services and our recent acquisition of O2's consumer broadband
and fixed-line telephony business has helped to cement our
position as the second largest operator n the UK As well as
significant savings, customers are switching to Sky for improved
customer service, a better product experience and more flexibility
Having a state of the art alt fibre, core network means we can give
our customers a highly rehable service without reducing speeds at
peak-tmes or imposing fair use policies on uncapped products Our

network covers almost 88% of UK households and allows us to offer

customers a choice of high guality and great value broadband
services Sky Broadband Connectis a white labelled service offered
to customers in the UK who are not within the coverage area of our
netwaork It allows us to provide customers with a Sky-branded
broadband service and give them access to Sky’s leading customer
service infrastructure even though our network does not extend to
ther home For UK homes within our network reach we offer two
copper-based (DSL) broadband preducts For each of our DSL
products, we give customers the maximum speed possible on the
fine Sky Broadband Lite Is free for customers who also take hne
rental and i1t has a 2GB monthly usage allowance Sky Broadband
Unlimited retails at £750 per month (when taken with a TV service)
and has no monthly usage allowance or farr usage policy The

majonty of our broadband customers choose the unlimited
preduct We also offer two differentiated Fibre broadband products
to customers in the UK Sky Fibre Unimited gives customers
download speeds of up to 38 Mbps and Sky Fibre Unlimited Pro
offers speeds of up to 76 Mbps Neither product has usage caps
imposed The fibre products are wholesaled from BT Openreach
and are therefore avallable to Sky customers who reside within the
coverage area of BT's fibre network Sky broadband customers in
the UK (except Sky Broadband Lite customers) can also enjoy
unlimited Sky WiF1 in over 20,000 hotspets across the UK, all
Included as part of ther monthly broadband subscnption This
gives customers the opportunity to enjoy unhmited, free wireless
access across the high street and other locations where people
want to get online Consumers do not need to be Sky TV customers
to enjoy Sky’s great value broadband each of our products (except
Sky Broadband Lite) s also available on a standalone basis

in February 2013 we launched Sky Broadband in Ireland We
white-label BT Irefand’s products to offer Insh customers two
copper-based (DSI.) products Sky Broadband Lite and Sky
Broadband Unlimited Both products offer customers download
speeds of up to 24 Mbps (depending on the customer’s location)

> Sky Talk Sky Talk s a telephony service (including landhine) avardlable

to homes inthe UK and Ireland and has over 4 5 million customers
Sky Talk 1s available to customers who do not take a television
service
In the UK Sky Talk Weekends (with Sky Line Rental) offers
customers inclusive weekend calls of up to one hour to UK landiines
and Sky Talk Unlimuted (with Sky Line Rental) offers customers
unhmited calls {for up to one hour per call) to UK landlines and 22
international destinations InIretand Sky Talk Freetime offers
customers inclustve evening and weekend calls of up to one hour to
landlines in Ireland and Sky Talk Anytime offers customers inclusive
calls of up to one hour to landlines in treland and 20 international
destinations

> Sky WiFt We have continued to grow our Wif) footprint across the
UK and now have over 20,000 high bandwidth, public access
hotspots The quality of our hotspots In popular locations where
people dwell provides valued seamless internet access free of
charge to Sky Broadband Unlimited, Sky Connect, Sky Fibre
Unlirmated and Sky Fibre Unbimited Pro customers The service
provides flextbility and convenience and proves particularly valuable
for customers whio access Sky content on the go

Sky Business

We offer a number of our services including our HD service to
commercial TV customers in the UK and Ireland under a range of
contracts The types of contract and the channels which are available
to any particular commercial customer, depend primarily upon the
type of business premises within which such customers wish to show
our services Our commercial TV customers mclude offices, retail
outlets hotels pubs and clubs We also offer WiFi services to
commercial customers

ECJ judgment On 4 October 20M the European Court of Justice
("ECJS™y handed down its judgment in actions brought by the Premier
League ( PL") amongst others, against pubs using (and suppliers
suppliving) foreign decoder cards and boxes to view live PL football

The ECJ determined that restrictions in an agreement between the PL

and its Greek licensee which obliged that icensee not to supply
decoding devices to persons outside the licensed terntory are
contrary to EU laws The ECJ found that, although the PL did not have
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copynight in the ive coverage of its football matches, the PL wtle
sequences logo, anthem and graphical elements did attract
protection under the Copyright Directive The High Court consistently
applied the ECJ's jJudgment to the cases before it and the defendants
in the cwvil iugation (the foreign card suppliers) were found to have
infringed the PLs copynight The High Court also held that certain
provisions In the PLs agreements with foreign distributors prohibiting
the distnbution of decoder cards cutside of the authorised territory
were void under competition law

The PL appealed (to the Court of Appeal) a imited aspect of the High
Court decision which had found that the defendants had a defence to
the allegation of infringement of the PLs film copynght In December
2032, the Court of Appeal found that the defendants did have a
defence 1n refation to the film copynght but only because the UK has
falled to iImplement properly the Copyright Directive [t s likely that
the government will need to change UK law in order tobring it in line
with the Directive although there is no indication as to the timing of
any such change

QUR CONTENT
Overview of our content

The main reason why our customers come to Sky 1s the chotce of hugh
quality content that we provide Itis key that the content we offer
differentiates Sky from what Is avalable on the free-to-air channels

Our News Movies and Sports channels are best in breed and
considerable investment 1s now being made in our Entertainment
portfolio to provide distinct channel destinations We are increasing
our Investment In oniginal British content to £600 milkon per year by
the end of 2014 We have had considerable success with comedy -
with over 20 original senes deliverad i the last year -and will start to
deliver a range of new British drama series in the year ahead We are
also working with our partner channels such as History, National
Geographic and Comedy Central to increase theirr commitment to
delivering original British content

Our channel portfolio

Our entertainment channels

> Sky 1 Sky 115 our flagship entertainment channel proniding content
that appeals to the whole household The majonty of its content
Investment 1s in UK commissions with a focus on comedy and
drama Sky 1was once again nominated for Channel of the Year
{having won it for the first tme N 20 years last year) Its aims to
have 12 high profile shows every year that customers value - this
year they included Stelle Got To Dance Mad Dogs, Modern Farnily
Strikeback An idiat Abroad, The Simpsons, and Troffied Sky 1has
focused on increasing the number of long running British drama
seres and a new addition for the year ahead will bbe The Smoke, a ten
part drama series from the makers of Spooks

> Sky Lving Sky Living remains a destination of choice for our female
customers and their partners We have had considerable success
with new and returning US dramas - such as Elementary, Hanmibal,
Bones and Grey s Anatomy We have also started tointroduce British
comedy to the channel with the highly acclaimed Love Matters and
continue to deliver well loved formats such as Britain and Ireland s
Next Top Mode! High profile series coming to the channel this year
include Bracula (a co-production with NBC) Dol and Em (a semi-
improvised comedy set in LA) and The Face hosted by Naomi Campbell

> Sky Atlantic Sky Atlantic 1s the channel of choice for cinematic UK and
US drama The channel 1s the home of HBO content in the UK as part
of an exclusive output deal Key senes performers this year have been
Game of Thrones, The Following The Borgias Boardwalk Empire and
Girls It won four Baftas this year and was nominated for Channel of
the Year New British dramas corning to the channel inthe
forthcoming year include Fleming and The Tunnel

> Sky Arts Sky Arts 11s for audiences who love the Arts, and love
creative risk This year it has had its biggest audience ever with A
Young Doctors Notebook, an onginal UK commission, starring John
Harmm and Daniel Radcliffe It has had remarkable success with
Playhouse Presents - arun of one off plays starnng actors such as
Brenda Blenthyn Alison Steadman Vanessa Redgrave and Kylie
Minogue Sky Arts 2 continues to broadcast a range of the bestin
classical arts programming from around the world including opera,
Iiterature, theatre, film and dance Upcoming hughlights witlinclude
the first ever portraig competition with the National Portrait Gallery
and Talks Music a unique interview serigs giving an exclusive insight
Into the careers of some of the world's most iconic musie legends

Sky 1 Sky Living, Sky Atlantic Sky Arts1and Sky Arts 2 are all
broadcast In HD and are also avallable on Sky Go (except Sky Arts 2),
and content from the channels 1s avallable on demand wvia On Demand
Sky Go and Sky Go Extra

QOur partner channels

> To complement our own entertainment channels Sky's pay TV
offenng also includes a range of high guality channels from other
broadcasters This includes well known channels frommajor
international broadcasters such as Disney Discovery Viacom, Fox
and NBC Universal, amengst others Partner channe's such as
Comedy Central Gold Watch SyFy Fox and MTV add breadth to
Sky s entertainment offering, with some very popular UK
commissioned shows such as Dynama Magician impossible, which
delivered record audiences during the year Our childrens’ offering
includes channels from the trusted Disney and Nickelodeon brands
and our factual offering Includes some outstanding content from
the hkes of Discavery National Geographic and History Channel
The majority of our partner channels are now made available to our
customers N HD with great content available On Demand

Sky Movies

> Sky Movies Overview Sky Movies has an unbeatable range of films
Including most of the latest Hollywood blockbusters new British
films and a deep hbrary of all-tme greats Through our exclusive
agreements with the major studies and some of the leading
independents Sky Movies offers customers over 800 mowvies on
demand and across 11 dedicated channels including new premieres
every week Sky Movies customers can enjoy these new films within
9 months from their initial release In cinemas and at least 12 months
tefare any online movies subscription service
In the last year we created the pop up channel Sky Movies 007,
which 1s the home to the complete Bond film franchise - a world
first We also launched Sky Movies Disney a ground breaking
partnership bringing Sky Mowvies customers exclusive Disney movies
Together with Dtsney Movies on Demand we have the most
comprehensive Disney movies offering in the UK
In addition to enjoying movies whenever they want with Cn
Demand Sky Mowvies customers ¢an also watch movies wherever
they are with Sky Go The Sky Movies channels are also available via
NOW TV All of the Sky Movies channels are avallable n HD Wedont
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show any advertisements duning our films and we PIN-protect
pre-watershed

> Competition Commission Investigation In August 2010 Ofcom
referred the supply and acquisition of pay TV movie nghts and the
wholesale supply and acquisition of pay TV packages imncluding Sky's
movie channels to the Competition Comrmission ("CC7) for
mnvestigation The CC published its final report on 2 August 2012
concluding that the Group s position in the acquisition and
distribution of movies in the first pay window did not adversely
affect competition in the pay TV retail market and that accordingly
remedies were not required

Sky Sports

> Sky Sports Overview The Sky Sports Channels are Sky Sports 1 Sky
Sports 2, Sky Sports 3, Sky Sports 4, Sky Sports News and Sky
Sports 1 together wath therr HD simulcasts The channels are also
all avanable online on Sky Go and via NOW TV Some content from
these channels is alsc avallable On Demand In the 2012 calendar
year, we broadcast 49,000 hours of sport across our six channel
network '

> Sky Sports pragramming Our programming rnghts for the Sky Sports
Channels include exclusive five rights to broadcast 1n the UK (and in
most cases Ireland) arange of sport including a number of football
(including Premier League, UEFA Champtons League, Football
League and La Lyga) motorsport rugby union rugby league cricket,
golf and tennis events In 2013 Sky Sports set a number of new
record audiences for individual sports These include records for the
dramatic climax to the 2012 Rycer Cup Andy Murray’s win at the US
Open, and the recent Lions series Audiences watching on devices
other than televisions also Increased with Sky Go viewing regularly
adding 10% to In-home audience figures The year ahead 15 set tobe
ancther exciting vear for Sky Sports For the first time we will have
back to back Ashes senes with the summer series being played out
on the temporarily re-branded Sky Sports Ashes channel Coverage
under the new PL contract commences on 17 August 2013 and this
seasan we will broadcast 116 live PL games, more than ever before
The start of the 2013/14 PL season will also see the launch of our
new Game Changers programme which will aim to inspire greater
sports participation amongst children Both David Beckham and
Jessica Enrus-Hill willi be prowniding master-classes as features within
the show We also give valuable exposure to a wide range of other
sports which appeal to a smaller but equally committed audience

> In March 2006, the European Commission rendered legally binding
the PLs commitment to sell ive TV rights in six balanced packages
for the three seasons from 2010111, with no one bidder being
allowed to buy all six packages In February 2009 the Group
successfully bid for five of those six available packages (each of 23
games) of live nghts to PL football n both the UK and lreland for
three seasons to the end of the recently completed 201213 season
in June 2012, following a restructure of the tender process seven
packages of ive Premier League nights to 154 matches for seasons
201314 to 2015116 were offered by the PL (eight packages covering
184 matches inIreland) No cne bidder was allowed to winmore
than 116 matches We successfully secured five of the seven PL
packages (116 hve matches per year from the 2013/14 season) for the
UK and lreland

> Wholesale must-offer abligations On 31 March 2010, Ofcom published
Its decision to Impose wholesale must-offer obligations on Sky (the
WMO Obligations') for the channels Sky Sports 1, Sky Sports 2, Sky
Sports 1HD and Sky Sports 2 HD (the "Affected Channels™ The WMO

Obligations require Sky amongst other things to offer the Affected
Chanrels on awholesale basis to third parties which satisfy vartous
minimum gualifying critena (Including financial, technical and securnity
critenia). The WMO Obligations speaify maximum prices that Sky may
charge for Sky Sports 1andfor Sky Sports 2 Under the WMO
Obligations the wholesale priceis inked to Sky's retall price
The WMO Qbligations do not speafy a maximum price for Sky
Sports 1 HD and/or Sky Sports 2 HD Rather they reguire Sky to offer
these channels on a farr, reasonable and non-discriminatory basss In
April 2010, Sky applied to the Competition Appeal Tnbunal ("CAT") for
a suspension of the implementation of the WMO Obligations On 29
Apnl 2010 Sky's applicatiton was resolved by way of an agreed Order
from the President of the CAT The terms of the Order resulted In the
suspension of certain aspects of Ofcom’s decision pending the
outcome of Sky’'s substantive appeal In summary, the effect of the
Order 1s as follows
> Sky s required to offer the Affected Channels to each of BT, Top
Up TV and Virgin Media (' VM") for distribution via DTT and to VM
for distribution via cable Other parties may apply to the CAT to
be added to the list of persons to whom Sky is required subject
to the satisfaction of minimum qualifying cntena, to offer its
channeis (on 23 November 2010, REAL Drgital EPG Services
Limited was added to the list inrespect of DTH satellite
distribution but has not commenced distribution of any Sky
Sports channels)
> In the event that BT Top Up TV or VM enter into a distribution
agreement for Sky Sports Tandfor Sky Sports 2 the distnbutor s
required to pay Sky the equivalent of the maxamum price Sky may
charge for the channel(s) under the WMC Obligations The
difference between that price and the rate card price set by Sky
will be paid Into escrow

On 8 August 2012 the CAT handed down its judgment on Sky's appeal
against Ofcom's decision to impose the WMO Obligations (the “Pay
TV Judgrment™), pubhshing its full judgment on 26 October 2012 The
CAT found that "Ofcom s core competition concern 1s unfounded”
(Ofcomhad found that Sky deliberately withheld wholesale supply of
the Affected Channels) and that accordingly Sky's appeal must be
allowed

On 26 April 2013, BT was granted permission to appeal the Pay TV
Judgment to the Court of Appeal The Court of Appeal has stayed
the withdrawal of Ofcom s original decision (and therefore the
withdrawal of the WMO Oblhgations and distnibution of the morues

freid i escrow) penaing oetermination of BT's appeal

Sky 1s currently unable to determine whether, and towhat extent, BT's
appeal would be successful, and it s not posaible for Sky to conclude

on the financial mpact of any outcome at this stage, however, shoutd
the cutcome of the appeal process be adverse to Sky this may have a
significant effect on the financial position or profitabibity of Sky

> Ofcom Competition Act Investigation Following receipt of a
complaint from BT, on 14 June 2013, Ofcom opened aninvestigation
Into whether Sky has abused a dominant position contrary to
Chapter il of the Competition Act 1998 and/or Article 102 of the
Treaty on the Functioring of the EU BT's complaint alleges that the
terms on which Sky offered wholesale supply of Sky Sports land 2
to BT for its service on the YouView platform amount to an abuse of
dominance The complaint alleges that Sky 1s making wholesale
supply of Sky Sports 1and 2 to BT for its YouView service conditional
on BT wholesaling BT Sports Channels to Sky for retail on Sky's
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satellite platform BT 1s seeking interim measures from Ofcom
Ofcom has indicated that it expects to 1ssue a decision on the
intenm measures application in July Sky s currently unable to
determine the cutcome of Ofcom's investigation or of BT's
application for interim measures

Sky News

Sky News provides national and international news to viewers in the
UK, Ireland and across the globe The channel s broadcast
unencrypted on Astra satellites (see “Satellites” on page 15) and
distributed to viewers via cable and satellite networks in Europe
Africa the Middle East and Asia It Is also currently shown on most
cable networks In the UK and Ireland, on DTT in the UK as part of the
Freeview offening and on the Freesat offering in the UK An HD version
of Sky News 15 available only in Sky households Sky News 1s also
avalable to viewers on the Sky News website Sky News mobile
applications the Sky News for IPad application and on 3ky Go In June
Sky News was the first 24-hour news channel to launch an application
on Apple TV and Is already attracting a good audtence particularly in
the US Overall, Sky Mews reaches 107 million homes in 118 countries
most recently adding Japan to the list

Our television coverage of significant events such as the U'S Election,
the Boston Marathon Bomb and Margaret Thatcher s funeral has
delivered strong audiences

Our joint venture Sky News Arabia, also continues to grow audience
and we continue to collaborate more closely on relevant stories, for
example the recent coup In Egypt

Sky News Digital has seen significant growth over the past 12 months
with urique users across all platforms averaging six million each
month There have now been more than eight million downloads of
maobile Sky News apps

OUR ADJACENT BUSINESSES
Overview of our adjacent businesses

In addition to the retail and broadcast operations described above,
we operate a number of other operations including wholesaling our
channel portfolio, selling advertising on ours and partner channels
our Sky betting and gaming business and our international
distribution operation We are able to monetise our content
investments more broadly with these activities as they benefit from a
larger customer base

Sky Media

In 2013, we derved revenue of £440 mithion from advertising sales and
sponsorship (2012 £440 million) Sky Media sells advertising and
sponsorship across all of the Sky Channels and also acts as the
advertising and sponsorship sales representative for 17 channel
partners representing 69 channels We also sell online advertising
across Sky's network of websites mobile advertising, green-button
advertising, advertising across Sky's video on demand service and
product placement opportunities Sky is in the process of developing
Adsmart 1ts capability to deliver targeted advertising to Its customer
base and intends to faunch later in 2013

Wholesale Distribution

Overview of wholesale distnibution

In fiscal 2013, we derived £396 mulion in revenues from the wholesale
distribution of our channel portfolio (2012 £351 milion) Wholesale
operators (see "Wholesale Operators” section below) acquire the
right from us to distribute certain of the Sky Channels which they
cembine with other channels from third parties and distribute to ther
subscribers

Wholesale Operators

tn the UK we have arrangements in place with VM and Talk Talk for the
retransmission of certain of the Sky Channels and associated on
demand services on therr cable and IPTV systems respectively as well
as an agreement with British Telecommunications for the distribution
of Sky Sports 1and Sky Sports 2 via BT Vision Cardinal set-top boxes
only As of 30 June 2013, we no longer distribute Sky Sports 1and Sky
Sports 2 to TopUp TV Limited or otherwise via DTT inthe UK In
Ireland we have arrangements in place with UPC Communications
treland Limited for the re-transmussion of certain of the Sky Channels
to their subscribers via its cable and MMDS systems We also have
contracts with a number of smaller regional cable operators in both
the UK and Ireland

Free-to-air distribution

We currently broadcast versions of three of our channels Sky News
Challenge and Pick TV, unencrypted free-to-air via DTT in the UK and
since 3 December 2072 afso on Freesat

Betting and Gaming

We offer a range of betting and garming services under the “Sky Bet”
“Sky Poker” "SkyVegas and "SkyBingo brands,in relation to which -
Sky acts as bookmaker and operator These products are licensed by
the Alderney Gambling Contral Commission and are made availlable
across multiple platforms including by means of Sky set-top boxes, by
telephone, onthe internet and on mobite devices The gambling
business is certified by the gambling chanty GamCare and has in
place stringent social responsibility measures for the protection of
minors and other vulnerable people We also take active measuresto -
prevent persons resident in the US and other restricted juriscictions
from participating In our internet gaming and betting services

Sky Vision

In July 2012, we acquired the Parthenon Media Group a leading
independent international distribution and multi-media rights
management company Now rebranded as Sky Viston, it has
established anew distribution arm to market the international rights
to our oniginated content as well as content from third garties The
distribution capability generates revenues from Sky's content
irwestrment from the sale of overseas nights, which in turn enables us
to reinvest inthe UK's creative economy for the benefit of both
customers and content makers

INFRASTRUCTURE AND TECHNOLOGY
Overview of our infrastructure and technology

Sky utiiises a powerful hybnd network to deliver a tagh qualty
Integrated entertainment experience for our customers Satellite
remains the most efficient means to broadcast HD lve TV into the
home and the local storage of the HD set-top box gives customers
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the added capability of time-shifted viewing Our HD box 1s Ethernet
enabled and connects via broadband to give customers access to our
On Demand service We have also developed a range of software
applications that enable access to cur content across multiple
devices and away from the home Developing and maintaining our
technological capabilities is critical ta cur commitment to and
passion for continued INnnovation

Satellites

The digital transmissicns of cur channels, for reception both by DTH
customers and cable operators take place using capacity ona number
of satellite transponders on the SES Astra 2A 2F and N satelites and
until 3 October 2013, on the Eutelsat 28A satellite We contract with SES
Astra for the majority of this capacity (currently 32 transponders) and
until 3 October 2013, with Argiva for the remaining capacity (four
transponders onthe Eutelsat 28A satellite) InJune 2009, we signed &
leng term transpender arrangement with SES Astra which covers the
renewal of the arrangements cn 24 of our transponders Thase
transponder agreements have expiry dates between 2019 and 2025
and thus provide long term security for the platform As part of this
arrangement we aiso entered Into an inter-satelite back-up
transponder agreement which prowvides protection for 31 of cur SES
Astra supplied transponders in the event of transponder or satelite
fallures We have been designated a hon pre-emptible customer”
under each of our transponder agreements This means that inthe
event of satellite or transponder malfunction, cur use of these
transponders cannot be suspended or terminated by SES Astra or
Futelsat in favour of another broadcaster with pre-emption rights in
preference to us We have also put in place disaster recovery plans in
the event that we expenience any significant disruption of our
transponder capacity

We consider that these arrangements with SES Astra are essential to
the business of the Group within the mearing of section 417(8)(c) of
the Companies Act 2006

In addrtion to using some of the transponder capaaty that we have
contracted to broadeast Sky Channels, some of our transponder capacity
(and in some cases all of the capacity on a particular transponder) 1s
sub-contracted to third parties for the transmission of other channels or
services Including certain of the Sky Distributed Channels

Playout and uplink facilities

Cur uplinking faciities, located in southern England, provide uplinking
capacity for our digital services to the satellites referred to above
Our television channels are distributed from two sites with each of
the sites providing backup service for the other

Digrtal satellite reception equipment

In order to receve our DTH service customers arerequiredto have a
digital satellite system which includes a satelite dish and LNB (low
naise block converter), a digital satelite recewer {"set-top box™), a
smartcard and a remote contro!

We source all of our set-top boxes from our own manufacturing
division, Home Service and Supply Our Product Design and
Development division work with Home Service and Supply to design
specify, develop and sell HD set-top boxes (both PYRs and standard
set-top boxes) although the actual manufacture of these set-top
boxes I1s outsourced to factories in Romania and Chuna, and In
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conjunction with such activities support the development of
additional new features and functionality for those set-top boxes

Encryption and security

aMdina! (|

We use VideoGuard cond tional access technology to encrypt and
decrypt digital television and audio services and to control access to
certain channels on our DTH platform We use the VideoGuard
technology and distnibute smartcards in the UK and treland under an
agreement with NDS NDS supplies smartcards and undertakes ongoing
security development and other suppert services inretum for the
payment of fees by us In conjunction with NDS we maintain a policy of
refining and updating the VideoGuard technology In order to restrict
unauthorised DTH reception of our services We take appropriate
measures to counter the threats of unauthonsed reception, Including
the Implementation of over-the-air counter measures altering authonsed
smartcards in amannarwhich then renders counterfert smartcards
obsolete and seeking legal remedies both aviland criminal reasonably
avallable to us We constantly monitor and review other methods of
piracy of our services that may be developed and wifere appropriate we
deploy countermeasures to thwart such actmties

SIUBU IHADD

Other digital rights management and/or conditional access systems
are used to protect our content when it 15 distributed by means of
other platforms (e g cable DTT or via the range of devices relying on
Internet-delivery) Where we wholesale cur content these systems will
have been deployed and are operated by the relevant wholesale
customer (& g VM or TalkTalk) and simtlarly in relation to certan
devices (e g8 IPhones or Xbox) the device manufacturer may determine
the type of content protection system deployed

DTT Transmission

Argiva provides DTT capacity on Mulbiplex C for Sky's three DTT
channels under a technical services agreement which expires i
November 2014

L PPy IV T=lo ATV EN TUN

Communications Infrastructure

Our UK broadband network comprises a fixed access network a
public WiFi access network, and along distance core fibre network To
provide broadband and talk services in the UK we rent access to the
copper line to the customer heme from BT on regulated terms and
prices {as well as wholesale managed products from BT in some
instances) Those lines are connected to our own electronic
equipment In the local telephone exchange Our electronic equipment
1s currently sited In 2,323 telephone exchanges, covering
approximately §8% of the UK's population To provide fibre
broadband we purchased a further wholesale product from BT based
on fibre to the cabinet technology which BT 1s again obliged by
regulation to supply Our core fibre network 1s cne of the most
extensive all-IP, fibre optic networks in the UK It comprises 7500
kilometres of high capacity fibre optic circuits, stretching from
Cornwall to Scotland We do not operate our own network in Ireland
but instead supply Sky Talk and Sky Broadband in lreland using the
network of cur wholesale partner BT Iraland

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

The Companies Act 2006 reguires us to disclose the following
significant agreements that take effect alteror terminateona
change of cantrol of the Company
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Review of our business

continued

Premier League

In 2012, British Sky Broadcasting Limited (a Group subsidiary) entered
into an agreement (the “PL Licence ) with The Football Association
Premier League Limited (the ‘PL7) pursuant towhich the Group was
awarded five of seven available packages of live audio-visual rights for
Premier League football (the seven packages are together the Live
Packages ") together consisting of 116 live matches per season The PL
will not award Live Packages contaimng (n the aggregate mare than
116 live matches per season to a single licensee (either on its ewn or
as part of a consortium or threugh one or more of its related parties)
(the 'Single Buyer Rule’) Pursuant to the PL Licence, the PL can
suspend and/or terminate all of the nights which are included in, or 4
exercisable as part of, Live Packages containing In the aggregate up to
38 live matches per seascn In the event that a change of control of
the Company occurs at any time prior to the expiry of the PL Licence
which 1f it had occurred prior to the award of the Live Packages to the
Group, would have resulted in a breach of the Single Buyer Ru'e

Revolving Credit Facility

The Group has a £743 milhon syndicated revolving credit facility

(' RCF ) with a maturity date of 31 October 2017 There s one further
opportunity to request an extension of one additional year to the
RCF, at the lenders’ discretion, with a potential final maturity of
October 2018 The lenders can require any amounts cutstanding
under the RCF to be repaid in the event of a change of control of the
Cempany (other than in the event that Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
or any subsidiary or holding company thereof (or a subsichary of such
holding company) acquires such control)

Twenty-First Century Fox voting agreement

On 21 September 2005 the Company BSkyB Holdco Inc - 215t Century
Fox UK Norninees Limited and Twenty-First Century Fox Inc entered
Into a voting agreement pursuant to which 21st Century Fox UK
Nominees Limited s voting nghts at any general meeting are capped
at 3719% (the Voting Agreement ) The provisions of the Voting
Agreement cease to apply Inter alla on a change of control of the
Company

EMYN bond issue -

On 3 April 2007, the Group established a euro medium teymnote
programme (the “EMTN Programme’ ) which provides the Group with a
standardised documentation platform to allow for senior dabt
1ssuance In the Eurobond markets The maximum petential 1ssuance
under the EMTN Programme s £1 billion On 14 May 2007 under the
EMTN Programme the Company 1ssued Eurcbonds consisting of £300
million guaranteed notes paying 6 000% interest and maturing on

14 May 2027 (the"Notes ) Pursuant to the final terms attaching to
the Notes, the Company will be required to make an offer to redeem
or purchase Its Notes at its prinaipal amount plus interest up ta the
date of redemption or repurchase If there 1s a change of control of the
Company {1} which, If the Notes carry an investment grade credit
rating results In a downgrade to a non-investment grade rating or a
withdrawal of that rating, or (it) where if the Notes carry a non-
nvestment grade rating, results in a downgrade by one or more
natches or a withdrawal of that non-investment grade rating or (in)
whaere, If the Notes do not carry a credit rating, the Company does not
seek such a rating or 1S unable to achieve such arating, provided that
in each case the decision to downgrade, withdraw or not to award a

credit rating occurs within a certain period of time after the change of
control and the relevant rating agency ates that such decision(s)
resulted from the change of control

February 2008, Nevember 2008 and November 2012 bond issues

In February 2008 the Group entered into an indenture in respect of
US$750 miltion 6100% senior unsecured notes due 2018 In November
2008, the Group entered into an indenture Inrespect of US$600
million 9 500% senior unsecured notes due 2018 In November 2012,
the Group updated the November 2008 indenture inrespect of a
further 1ssuance of US$800 million 3125% senior unsecured notes
due November 2022 Pursuant to the final terms attaching to the
secunties the Company will be required to make an offer to redeem
or purchase Its securities at a price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the date of
redemption or repurchase If there 1s a change of control of the
Company (1) which 1f the securities carry an investment grade credit
rat:ng, results in a downgrade to a non-ivestment grade rating or a
withdrawal of that rating, or (1) which If the secunties carrya
non-Investment grade rating results in a downgrade by one or more
notches or a withdrawal of that non-investrnent grade rating, or (i)
where If the secunties do not carry a credit rating, the Company does
not seek such a rating or 1s unable to achieve such arating, provided
that in each case the decision to downgrade withdraw or not to
award a credit rabing occurs within a certain period of time after the
change of controf and the relevant rating agency cites that such
decision(s) resulted from the change of control

UK broadcasting licences

The Group Is party to a number of Ofcom broadcasting licences for
the broadcast of the Sky Channels The Broadcasting Act 1990 (as '
amended by the Broadcasting Act 1996 and the Communications Acty”
lays down a number of restrictions on those parties parmitted to

hold Ofcom broadcasting licences Among those restricted from
holding Ofcom broadcasting licences or from controling a heensed
company are (&) local authorities (b) political bodies () religious
bodies, (d} any company controlled by any of the previous categories
ar by their officers or associates (€) advertising agencies or any
company contralled by such an agency or inwhich 1t holds more than
a5% interest Licensees have an ongoing cbligation to comply with
these ownership restrictions Failure by a censee to do so (aither by
the licensee becoming a ‘disqualified person or any change affecting
the nature charactenistics or control of the icensee which would have
precluded the cnginal grant of the licence) may constitute a breach of
the licence and, if not rectified, could result in revocation of the

licence

Ofcom also has aduty under the Broadcasting Acts to be satisfied that
any person holding a broadcasting licence 1s fit and proper to hold those
licences and may revoke those icences If It ceases to be so satisfied

On 20 September 2012, Ofcom published its deasion finding the Group
to be a fit and praper holder of its broadcasting licences Inits decision,
Ofcom found no evdence that Sky was mvolved inany wrongdoing either
admitted or alleged to have taken place at the News of the World or the
Sun (together, the “News Group Newspapers”) However, Ofcom also
considered whether the characters and conduct of James Murdoch,
Rupert Murdoch and News Corporation to the extent implicated in, or
tainted by alleged or admitted wrongdoing at News Group Newspapers
were relevant to the Groups fitness and propriety to hold broadcasting
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licences Ofcom found that, In the arcumstances, iIncluding the
compliance record of the Sky channels from 2006 to 2012, the Group's
success dunng James Murdoch's tenure as CEQ and Chairman and the
current governance structure, the Group remaned fit ard proper to hold
broadcast beences Inits decision, Ofcom also noted the continuing
nature of ts duty to be satisfied that a licensee is fit and proper and that
it would consider Further evidence If it became available in future

Under the rules on privacy in the Broadcasting Code, Ofcom has
considered two instances of a Sky MNews journalist accesssng the email
of iIndwiduals suspected of criminal activity The Group s Audit
Commuttee corducted a thorough review of each of those instances
and concluded that the action was justified in the public nterest and
subject to proper editorial oversight On1July 2013 Ofcom published
Its conclusion that the broadcaster's nght to freedom of expresston,
including the freedom to receive and mpart information and ideas
without interference In the exceptional arcumstances of this case,
outweighed the indivduals’ expectation of privacy and found Sky not
in breach of the Broadcasting Code

SEEING THE BIGGER PICTURE

At Sky we want to build a business that 1s durable for the long-term
We know stmply being good for Sky is not enough To achieve
sustainable success, we must also be good for our customers our
people, our partners and the communities in which we live and work
We call this seeing the bigger picture

Gur Contribution

We are proud of the positive social and economic contribution Sky
makes to Britain and lreland as a successful and growing business

Improving our customers' lives

We have opened up choice In television bringing customers awide
range of the best content from the UK and around the world Qur
praducts offer world-leading innovation, helping customers to
manage their lives better by allowing them to watch TV and go enline
whiere when and how they choose Our news service makes awtal
contribution to media plurality in the UK, offering innovative, multi-
media coverage 24 hours a day As a result, citizens are better
informed and more engaged with democratic society

We are bringing competuition to the home commurications market
helping milliens of pecple to get onbine iIn an easy and affordable way
As aresult, they are mere connected to each other and to society as a
whole

Investing in the creative industries and sport

Over the past year, we have worked with more of the country’s leading
writers producers and actors to bring great new ideas to screen We
are on track to meet cur commitment to spend £600 million a year on
UK production and commissioning by the end of 2014 We have
worked with hundreds of production companies providing a platform
for their creativity and helping them grow their own businesses

We are a long-term supporter of sport at all levels We have
contnbuted over £15 billion to British and Insh sports orgarisations
over the last 22 years and helped to create mare fans for a wide range
of different sports Our investment has enabled sports bodies to
improve performance, commercial value, participation and
infrastructure at all levels

We have created a distribution platform that 1s now in over 40% of
British and Irnsh homes, enabling scores of ather broadcasters to
reach an audience and build therr business We have alsc beena
global pioneer of new technologies ike digital, HD and 3D TV, which
have subsequently become industry standards

We are committed to training and developing our people From
dedicated programmes for apprentices and graduates through to
Ife-long learming for our most expenenced employees we understand
that the skills of our people are integral to our commercial success
(see pages 21to 23)

Contribution to the UK economy

Sky makes a sigreficant contribution to UK GDP, estimated in a study
by Oxford Economics to be £59 bilhon over the past year Seventy-six
per cent of our revenue was retained in the UK where we also worked
with over & 600 suppliers

With over 24 000 people, we are now one of the country’s biggest
employers Cur impact on the wider economy has becorne
increasingly significant, with 120,800 jobs dependent on Sky across
the UK in the past year

Sky generated a £2 7 llion contribution to tax revenues in the last
year, equivalent to £43 for every person in the UK Qur direct tax
contribution was £1 3 billion, consisting of taxes borne of £440 nulion
and taxes collected of £8t0 million

A Responsible Business

Acting responsibly and being successful commeraiatly go hand in
hand Milions of homes across Britain and Ireland choose Sky They
have high expectations of us trusting us to do the night thing Our
high ethical social and environmental standards are essential to
maintaining that trust and underpin the decisions we take every day

This approach Is integral to the culture and values we seek to
promote at Sky It's set out through a series of commitments inour
Ways of Working, which s our code of conduct that everyone who
works at Sky is expected to adhere to

Our commitment to customers and viewers

Because we never forget that people make a choice when they buy
our products or watch our programmes, we commit to treating our
customers and wewers with respect and strive to make sure cur
services meet their needs and expectations

we maintam high editenal standards on our TV channels and cnline
services and this year we published our Sky News editorial guidelines
to help with decision-making in sensitwve or difficult situations

We take our responsibilities senously as a major advertiser and media
owner We follow the relevant codes set out by the Advertising
Standards Authority both for our own advertising and the advertising
from others that we carry on our services

We champion diversity on-screen, aming to reflect the diverse make
up of our customer base In our programmes Once again this year we
supported Intemational Women's Day showcasing leading female
directors, presenters and women insport over a week In March As
part of our dwersity and inclusion commitment we have increased
the representation of women as expert commentators on Sky News
pieces from 25% to 33% over the past 18 months
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Review of our business

continued

We help parents to keep ther children safe on our TV platform and
online, providing them with effective and easy to use tools and
making sure they understand how to use them Over the past year, we
have worked with industry, government and a range of non-
government organisations to develop a leading approach to
supporting customers to keep their families safe online We have
encouraged our customers to actwate our free parental controls
tools and made it a requirement for all new Sky Broadband customers
to make a choice about whether they want these controls or not We
made a strong contribution to raising the awareness of Safer Internet
Day 2013 with coverage on Sky News, Sky Sports, radio and our digital
channels

Over the year more than 1605 young people created their own Sky
mews report about using the internet and social networking tools
safely In Sky Skills Studios, our state-of-the-art free learning
experience that's inked to the curriculum They have helped raise
awareness more widely by sharing their videos with their schools,
parents and friends

We miake our products and services accessible to everyone, incl uding
those with disabilities We provide subtitling and audic description on
our TV channels and exceed the Ofcom requirements

Access service provision against Ofcom requirements®

20010 20112 201203
Key performance Annual Annual Annual
ndicator Quota Achjeved Quota Achieved Quota Achieved
Subtitiing (%) 60 68 70 74 70 73
Audio
Dascription (% 10 27 10 26 10 21
Notes

G} 201112 and 201213 datas independently assured by Delotte LLP and can be
wiewed onhine at sky com/biggerpicture

() Average across Sky Mews Sky 1 Sky Sports1 Sky Sports News and Sky Movies
Premier

(u} Average across Sky 1 Sky Sports1and Sky Movies Premier Sky Mews and Sky Sports
News are exempt

We continue to work with customers and organisations representing
disabled people to make sure our current and future products
include specaially designed features to meet ther needs This year Is
the 10th anniversary of our 80 strong Accessible Customer Service
team who continue to provide specialised support to customers with
disabitities

Our data management practices are overseen by our Executive Data
Governance Committee which reports in turn, to the Audit
Committee We take steps to make sure our customers’ personal
information 1s kept confidential and secure and 1s only used for clearly
communicated authorised purposes Our new product Adsmart
enables us to use our knowledge of our customers to deliver them
more talored and relevant advertising. We make sure our customers
can opt-out If they prefer us not to use ther data in this way

Our commitment to colleagues and the company

Because our pecple are critical to our success, we want to createa
culture where they ¢an do their best work and fulfil their potential
Equally, everyone at Sky has a respensibility to the Company to
protect its assets and its reputation and to play ther part in burlding
a successful and durable business We charmpion diversity inour
workforce and make sure our people are safe at work (see pages 21
to23)

Qur commitment to sharchelders

We take seriousty our responsibilities as a major British business
listed on the London Stock Exchange, maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and taking steps to ensure our communications
with investors are clear open and timely Our Board oversees the
alignment of the Company's strategy with the iInterests of our
investors and takes account of the interests of our stakeholders
(seepage 60)

Our commitment to business partners

Because our business relies on strong partnerships with many
suppliers and distnbutors we want to build productive, fair and
collaborative relatienships with them based on mutual mprovement

We expect everyone we do business with to deliver a hugh-quality
service and provide good value for money, as well as to behave
ethically and comply with all relevant laws and regulations We want to
be a good partner inreturn treating suppliers farrly rewarding good
performance and meeting all of our obligations to them

We promate better social and environmental standards through our
Responsible Sourcing Principles which we expect all our suppliers to
embrace Overthe past year, we have iImproved our Responsible
Seurcing Programme refining how we communicate our social and
environmental expectations to suppliers and enhancing the tools we
use to assess performance so that they are easy to use and support
industry standards We have also undertaken audits of key strategic
suppliers such as product manufacturers to assess their
performance against our Responsible Sourcing Principles, working
with them on areas for mprovement

Our commitment to the environment

Because we want o build a business that 1s sustainable for the long
term we understand the importance of minimising our environmental
impact and taking a leadership position i the business community

We know that operating efficiently saving energy and using natural
resources wisely helps us to be a better business, as well as
contributing to a more sustanable future for everyone To achieve
this we have set out a senes of bold environment targets and
commitments, expanded in November 2012, so that we have fewer
environmental impacts and better, more sustainable products

We continue to make very good progress on reducing cur impacts
Over the last year, we have reduced our carbon intensity by 33%
against the baseline we set in 2008/09 and we are on track tomeet
our new target of a 50% reduction by 2020 having reached our
previous target of a 25% reduction last year Our absolute gross
emissions are stable at 100 045 tonnes

Our continued long-ters investrment n low-carbon and renewabie
energy technologlies on our sites in London and Scotland means we
are now sourang 6% of our energy from our on-site wind turbine
Combined Cooling, Heat and Power plant and biomass boiler

We have further mproved the environmental sustainability of our
products, measuring curselves against a set of ambitious objectives
and commitments, which we review and update each year Our new
Sky+HD boxes now use less than 0 5W in passive standby and have
an "eco-mode”function that automatically puts the box into this
passive state Over the year we have been working to make our new
products mare energy efficient than previous models We use
life-cycle assessment such as the one we completed this year onour
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new Sky Hub our wireless router, to up skill the product designers in
our business on how to reduce environmental impacts effectively

We are sharing what we have learned with non-government
organisations other companies and policy makers, in order to drive
positive change on low carbon energy technologies and renewable
energy We also share our knowledge by working alongside our
production companies to enable thern to measure and reduce the
environmental mpacts of film making. We collaborate closely with our
key product manufacturers on process efficiencies and with our
logistics suppliers ensuring together we provide efficient and
effective distribution, maintenance and end-of-life recyclng for our
Sky products

Our total CO,e emissions®

Yeyperformance indicator Baseline 200910  2010m 20112 201213
Totalgross CO,e emissions

(tCO,e) 0 107215 110531 109042 100272 100045
Total net COge (1C0F 35860 44198 35070 24866 26564
Notes

(1) 2013 datais independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewad online at sky
com/biggerpicture '

(1} Historcal data is recalculated each year in ine with the latest Guidelines te Defral
DECC s Greenhouse Gas Conversion Factors for Company Reporting and re-stated
accordingly

{n} tCO,e emissions Including ermissions from premeses and company-owned vehicles
(Scopeland 2)

(v) Ournetemissions take into account the renewable energy procured froma
renewable energy tarff with Scottish and Southern Energy Group Scottish and
Southern retain on our behalf the Levy Exemption Certificates and Renewable
Energy Guarantee of Onigin (REGOS) In addition we offset our total gross emissions
through the purchase of Voluntary Carbon Standard credits

Our carbon intenssty®

Keyperformance ndicator  Target Baseline 2009/10™ 2010M1? 201112% 2012137

Carbon ntensity

(0O, effm revenue) 207 181 163 148 138

Changen total gross

tonnes per Emibionreverue

{(CO. e/ Em) (e -50 -B -21 -29 -33
HMotes

() 20MN12 and 2012/13 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLF and can be
viewed online at sky com/biggerpicture, previous years data was indepandantly
assured by ERM

(1) Performance relative to base year 2008/09

{m) Target s to halve our emissions (tonnes) relative to revenue (Em) by 2020

() Historicdata s recalculated each year in line with the latest Guidelines and Defra/
DECC s Greenheouse Gas Conversion Factors for Company Reporting and re stated
accordingly

Progress towards cur on-site renewable energy target®

Key performance indicator Target 20mn2 2002n3
Sky-owned sites to obtain 20%of therr energy
requrement fromowned of controlled renewables (%)¢ 20 2 6

Hotes

(1) 2012113 datais Independentty assured by Beloitte LLP and can be viewed online at
sky com/biggerpicture

{1y Measured against baseline data for 2008/09

Our commitment to complyingw;th the law and working with
regulators, government and media

We take steps to ensure compliance with all laws and regulations that
apply to our business and have well established functions across Sky
to that end Because we want external stakehelders to understand
our business and our contnbution, we engage In open and honest
dialogue with regulators, goverrment and media and we respend
promptly to therr enquires

Inspiring People to Take Action

As an entertainment and communications company with 112 miliron
customers across Britain and Ireland we have an opportunity to
reach beyond our business and make an even greater positive impact
and a valuable contribution to a more sustainable society

We choose to focus on four areas that were passionate about where
we believe Sky can make adifference and we can inspire people to
take action These are improving lives through sport champicning
creativity and opening up the arts, helping young people to build skills
for a changing world, and taking action to protect the environment

Using the power of sport to excite, Inspire and change lives

Sport is one of the central pillars of our content investment and we
believe in its power to improve lives We bring our customers a wealth
of sport on TV and that investment - over £15 billion over the last

22 years - helps to fund the sports we all love and get people
watching and playing But we want to do even more, so we also work
with our partners off screen using our reach and the power of the Sky
Sports brand toinspire more people to get involved

We do this through our grassroocts-to-elite support for British cycling,
and three complementary Sky Sports initiatives, each supported by
Sky Sports programming, marketing talent ambassadors and staff

> Sky Sports Living for Sport - this national schools-based
programyme runin partnership with the Youth Sport Trust uses
sports stars and skills to helpraise the aspirations and improve the
Iife skills of young people Now inits tenth year, over 1500 or one
third of all schools across the UK, participated this acaderic year
Over 30,000 students benefitted with 86% of lead teachers
reportng iImprovements in self-confidence and 90% reporting
improvements tn attitudes to learning amengst the students over
the past academic year

Raising aspirations and building life skills through Sky Sports
Living for Sport™

Key performance indicator Target 200810 2010/ 20012 200213
Number of schools tauing

part® 1500 269 376 866 1517¢3
HNotes

N 20112 and 201213 data 15 independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be
viewed online at sky com/biggerpicture

(1} Eachyear

Qi) Inthe 2012113 year as measured from 1 September 2012 to 1June 2013

> Sky Sports Scholarships - this mentoring and sponsorship
programme supports some of Bntain and reland s most exciting
emerging athletes, helping them to fulfil their potential on the
international stage and prepare them for life In the spotlight We
supported 11 scholars many of whom went on to achieve
international success at the World Championships, European
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Review of our business

continued

Championships and London 2012 We have now recruited the next
cohort of athletes in anticipation of similar success

> Sky Sports ECB (England and Wales Cricket Board) Coach
Education Programme - this programme has played akeyrole in
attracting and training cricket coaches in England and Wales,
equipping them with the skills necessary to deliver high-quality
coaching at all levels of the game ensuning the success of the sport
with a new generation of players Over 50,000 places have been
taken up on courses since the scheme started in 2007

» Cyching - our ground-breaking partnership with Brtish Cyeling aims
to get more people on their bikes through the inspiration of elite
success by Team GB and Team Sky, combined with our grassroots
Sky Ride initiatives that make it easy to participate Since the start
of the partnership i 2008, our elite cyclists have achieved
unprecedented success with 41 Olympic and Paralympic Gold
Medals and two British winners of the Tour de France Last summer
146100 people took part in the Sky Ride events we held across the
country Sky Ride Local, our guided ride programme delivered locally
throughout the UK, resulted inover 17000 people participating. In
September last year we met our target of over one millon more
people across the country cycling regularly cne year ahead of
schedule -

Improving lives through cycling®

Fey performance ndcator  Target  2009/10%) 2000/ 201M02 ¥ 201213
Humber of new paople
cychngregularly by 2013 1nullon 92000 376000 688000 115million
Motes

() 201112 and 201213 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLP and canbe
wiewed onlina at sky comfiggerpicture

) Number of new pecple cycling on average once a month or 12 times a year as a result
of Sky s initiatives

On) Cumulative year ornyear

Championing creativity and opening up the arts

Milhons of people love the arts but it s not always easy to see
favourite artists and performers We believe in opening up the arts to
more people That s why Sky Arts broadcasts 48 hours of arts
programmes a day, covering the whole range from classical arts to
rock concerts But we want to do more than just showcase the arts
on screen we want to do our bit to ensure great sdeas reach therr full
potental by working with the artistic community to help create new
works of art today and develop new talent for tomorrow

We do this through Sky Arts Ignition and Sky Arts Futures Fund

> Sky Arts Igmition - this series of partnerships with leading arts
orgamsatians across Bntam and Ireland aims to support the
creation of innovative new works and events that might otherwise
never get off the ground In September 2012, we launched an award
wirining first collaboration with Tate Liverpoo! and renowned
multimedia artist Doug Altken to create Sky Arts lgnition The
Source an outdoor installation exploring the roots of creatiaty
which was visited by almest. 50,000 peoptle In June 2013, we worked
with the V&A to bring Sky Arts Ignition Memory Palace to life a
unique exhibition based on the power of memory We are investing
in the thriving Insh arts landscape with our third project which will
launch in Ireland 1n the coming financial year

> Sky Arts Futures Fund - we are boosting the careers of five
emerging young artists a year by providing them with a £30 000
bursary together with support and mentonng from sentor Sky staff
and arts industry experts to develop therr commercial skils and

knowledge In 2013, audiences have enjoyed experiencing the
successful projects from the first artists we supported such as
QOpera Director Daisy Evan s Sifent Opera and Theatre Director Felix
Mortimer's The Trial This year following on from the five we
supported in 2012, we have chosen five maore young artists from
disciplines such as creative production, composition and poetry

Engagement with Sky Arts activities on the ground at Sky Arts
Igmtion The Source at Tate Liverpool® .

Key performance indicator Target 201213
Number of visitars 42000 49543
Note
() 2012113 datas independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed online at
sky com/Diggerpicture

In addition we broadcast Martella’s Book Show live in front of studio

audiences at the Cheltenham and Hay Literature festivals as welias
championing moments of creatwity amongst festval goers, offering
free creative classes and Inspiring performances in the Sky Arts Den

Helping young pecople to build skills for a changing world

We know that future success not just for Sky but also for societyas a
whole depends on equipping young people with the skilis they need
for a changing world That s why traring and development 1s a high
pricrity night across our business from front ine staff to future
leaders But we want to go further reaching beyond our erﬁployee
base to open up Sky to more young people raising therr aspirations
and helping them learn valuable new skills

As well as running strong graduate and apprenticeship programmes,
we do this through practical work expenence opportunities and our
dedicated jearning facility for schools on our campus in West London

> Sky Skills Studies - opened in September 2012, this unique free
learning experience takes schools behind the scenes at Sky n our
state of the art broadcasting facihty Linked to the curnculurm, it
helps students to build ife skills by working with our latest
technology to make their own televisionreport on subjects theyre
studying at school We set a target of welcoming over 12 00 young
people Inthe first academic vear and we are on track, reaching
9500 by the end of June 2013

Raising aspirations and buwilding Iife skills through Sky Skills
Studios® '

ey performance indicator

Target®
12,000

2012n3%
9588

Mumber of young people taking part
‘

Notes

() 201213 date s ndependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewad online at
skycom/biggerpicture

{1} Inthefirstyear from September 2012 to August 2013 the target will be 10 000 for
the next academic year

(u) Untl30 June 2013

> Work expertence, apprenticeships and graduate schemes - read
more about these onpages 21to 23

> Our local communities - we are Investing In long-term relaticnships
with local schools near our campuses in Hounslow, Scotland and
Leeds tohelp build life skills Qur network of Sky volunteers play an
active role iIn our local communities with 1691 people volunteering
their time to help make a difference In 2013 As well as all staff
having two paid days to volunteer each year, our employees can
make tax-free donations to any UK registered chanty of therr choice
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and we give an extra 50p for every £1donated We also support
employees fundraising through our match funding scheme

Taking action to protect the environment

We recognise that cimate change is one of the world's biggest
challenges and we have a responsibility to take action We want to do
more than minimising the environmental impact of our operations
and our products An even bigger opportunity lles in working together
with our 13 2 million customers to inspire them to join with us to tackle
climate change

> Sky Rainforest Rescue - we are now in the fourth year of our
partpership with WWF and the state government of Acre in Brazil to
help save one billion trees in the Amazon rainforest and protect the
region s rich natural diversity in 2013 we worked with Lily Cole Sky
Rainforest Rescue Ambassador model and environmentalist,
focusing on raising awareness of the threat of tropical
deforestation at home in Britain and Ireland We ve raised an
additionat £1 milbon to bring the amount raised to £3 million since
2009 which Sky has matched pound for pound to a total of
£6 million We've also worked with over 1200 families In local
communities on the ground in Brazil to make the forest worth more
alive than dead

Funds raised for Sky Rainforest Rescue
Target 200810 2010/ 20M12 2012113

¥ey performance Indicator

Tetal donations since the
launch of Sky Rainforest

Rescue in 2008 (£) 4milion®t 335000 790000 2milhon  3mlion

Total families helped
(umber™) 1000 1241

Notes

() 201N2and 2012/13 data 1s Independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be
viewed online at sky com/biggerpicture

() Cumulative year on year

1) E4 million to 2015 which Sky will match to a total of E8 million

{(v) Farmilies registered into the Land Certification Scheme

&) 2012113 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLPand can ba viewed online at
skycomibiggerpicture

PEOPLE

We aim to attract and select the best people and provide
opportunities so that everyone can fulfill their potential We work
hard to create a great place to work and build an open culture that
rewards and recognises great performance

Creating opportunities

Over the last year we have provided over 1,200 additional job
opportunities across a wide range of functions but speaifically in
Technology Sales and Marketing and Customer Service In addition to
new roles created, we have moved over 1000 of our people into
different roles broadening their experience and strengthening
successicn for the future The new jobs and the internal development
maves have been spread acress our locations in the UK and Ireland

Developing Our People

Qur people s performance I1s the key driver of our growth and success
Apart from creating career development through internal job mobility
we provide many opportunities for employees to build their
experience and skills through a wide range of development and skills
training This 1s achieved through face to face training by attendance
on external or internally run courses through our onling training and
education fachty, the Sky Development Studio, and through coaching
and mentoring

The Development Studio has had 385 000 visits this year More than
160 000 hours of e-learning courses have been completed via the
Development Studio up 93% on the last financial year In total

104 678 development days have been undertaken this year

We have continued to builld strong leadership capability of our senicr
team through traimning and the introductien of leadership surveys
which provide direct feedback to managers from their teams Last
year we apportioned an element of the senior managers annual
bonus directly to their performance in this area We also introduced a
series of "master classas which focused on delivering Sky's
Leadership behaviours and values and continued our programme for
the mest senior managers and directors in conjunction with Henley
Business School Durtng the year, 359% of those employed in
management positions were females

We recognise that to offer the best service in the country its
important for our people to be at the top of their game  Across the
Customer Service Group we have delivered cver 600,000 hours of
training and cver 100 days of leadership development during the last
twelve menths This has included multi-skill training for advisors so
that they are equipped to deal with quenes over the full range of cur
preducts and leadership training for our first and second line
management teams In addition we consolidated the success of our
externally accredited course Aspire by rofing this out te Customer
Service Advisors as well as Sales Advisors We have also implemented
large scale training and development programmes at our newly
created Dublin site ~

To further support the Company’'s “ONE Service Pilot” we ran team
working sessions to promote even higher levels of collaboration
across the different service activities and delivered new Service
Excellence programmes for our Engineers

Invasting in Epture Talant and Yauth

We have been investing heavily in providing opportunities for young
people As well as direct entry roles we have expanded our offer of
work experience and work placements this year Over 500 young
people have participated in one of our schemes which range from a
week s work experience programmes to a year s paid placement We
also run programmes for young people who might ctherwise find 1t
difficult to find opportunities in the job market, speafically In the
areas of Entertainment Content and News The 'Fast Forward ' and
‘Mama Youth” programmes have been running for several years and
go from strength to strength We introduced a new programme this
vear In Sky News for budding journalists from either a Black Asianand
Minority Ethnic (BAME) or financially disadvantaged background The
scheme I1s suppeorted by bursanes for those who would otherwise not
be able to take up the opportunity We have also continued to
develop our 17 year partnership with the National Film and Television
School by developing a production diploma that we help to deliver

MBNMAL [P
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Review of our business

continued

We recognise more and more young people are exploring alternative
options to university so we are increasing the number of
apprenticeship opportunities to around 100 across Sky with brand
new schemes In Marketing, Sky Production Services, Technology,
Contact Centres and Home Service & Supply We recruited close to
100 graduates into the business this year Our on-campus university
campalign was targeted to promote applications from diverse
backgrounds resulting in a 12% increase in female hires and a 1%
Increase In etl'[umc minority hires In comparisen to 20112

Our specialist software Engineening Academy has gone from strength
to strength, this year hinng 24 of the brightest technology minds We
invest In an intensive training programme which rap:dly develops thew
software skilis whilst exposing them to arange of live, cutting edge
development projects

Employee Engagement

We want all our people to feel Involved and engaged inour business
Therefore we need toknow what our people are thinking and how
they feel about working for Sky We have a variety of ways of keeping
close to our employees, two of the most significant ways are the Sky
Forum and the People Survey

The Sky Forum is a team of 88 elected employee representatives from
across the business This year new members from Sky Ireland were
elected to join the group The Sky Forum meets several times a year
to discuss awide range of business challenges and to provide input
that helps Sky to continuously Inncvate and improve the way we
operate Meetings are run throughout the year to address local issues
and are supplemented by two Sky-wide meetings which are attended
by the CEQ and other executives Each member has aresponsibility to
collact the views of the people they represent and to provide
information back to them Increasingly we are also able to drive
information, dialogue and idea generation though use of the
corporate social media site 'Chatter

We run our people survey every 4 months and use external
benchmark data from Towers Watsoen to compare our performance
against other UK companies The benchmark informaticn shows us
that participation 10 our surveys Is congistently higher than
experienced elsewhere (averaging 75% across the 3 surveys this year)
It also shows that we perform better than other large UK companies
in 9 out of the 11 categories we measure Qur score for employee
engagement shows an average of 94% This 15 up 7 points from last
year's reported figure and 11 points above the external benchmark
The employee engagement category includes questions about
whether our people suppert our strategy, understand how their work
contributes to it, are willing to go the extra mile to help us succeed
and are proud to work for Sky We are delighted that over 90% of our
people continue to respond positively to these key questions

Diversity and Inclusion

We believe that a diverse workforce creates a stronger business and
therefore we work to create an environment that encourages
diversity and Innovation We have established a number of diversity
networks to connect people to Informatien that s relevant for them
and to help us ensure that our employment practices are inclusive
LGBT@Sky 1s a network for lesbian, gay bisexual and transgender
employees we have a network for women and a Diversity and

Inclusion@Sky network to champion diversity at Sky We have driven
awareness of diversity and the benefits it brings to the business
through use af stories anc blogs on our internat communication
network which often generate higher thantypical page views across
our intranet and the feedback 1s very positive We also continued the
roll out of an awareness training programme on Unconscious bias

This year we implemented a week long season of programmes across
our channels to mark Internaticnal Women's Day and also held an
event at Sky Studios that was webcast to the business We work in
partrership with SWIMM (Seruer Women in Media Mentoring) to
mentor rising (female) stars in'the media industry

Overall, the proportion of female and BAME employees has held firm
across the year We continue to work with arange of external
partners Lo support our work in diversity and our relationship with
the broadcasting industry's Cultural Diversity Nétworks (CDIN) 1s
particularly important in this regard Sky News was one of the first
broadcasters e sign up o the campaign to challenge the gender
imbalance among media contributors and we have made great
progress In this achieving a gender balance of on-arr contributors
Over the last eighteen months our average ratio of male to female
commentators has improved from 4 1tc 21

Sky Is an equal opportumities employer and we believe that everyone
should have full and fair consideration for all vacancies promotions
training and development Sheuld an employee become disabled
during ther employment at Sky, where possible we will actively
re-train and adjust their environment to allow them to maximise their
potential Over the course of the year we have partnered with various
not-for-profit organisations with the aim of providing more
opportunities for people with disabilities

Health and Safety
The health and safety of all our people I1s of paramount importance to us

We take a holistic approach to keeping Sky a safe place to work so
whilst acaident prevention and safety traning 1s a priority the
long-term welloeing of our people 1s equally important This year we
have Implemented a range of new initiatives such as Home Service
and Supply’s Drive Safe campaign and specific Manual Handling
training We have also ntroduced Engineer medical assessment
programmes to promote and protect the health of our field
workforce ahearing protection programme for the Formula One
support teamand a brand new Occupational Health Service in Ireland
launched following the opening of our Dublin contact centre

It 15 also essential that as a business we remain resilient to
unexpected events and our dedicated Business Continuity Team help
Sky protect the services our people deliver to our customers Last
year with the London Olympics 2012 our Business Continuity Team
were speafically engaged with multiple stakeholders on the
contingency planning (n preparation for the impact that the Clympics
could have had on our business operations across the UK We have
5Q0 peocple across the business now actively engaged on business
continuity initiatives and training As a result, our business continuity
plans and our ability to execute against them continues to improve
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Recognition and reward

There are a number of recognition schemes across the Company that
provide us with the opportunity to raward and recognise employees
who have provided exceptional customer service or have gone the
extra mile in delivering their normal day to day duties In addition, we
continue to run an annual Corporate Scheme called Believe in Better”
that rewards outstanding achievement This year the awards had a
record number of nominations with over 3,700 people and around
570 teams being nominated The 3 top winners were awarded with a
long-haul holiday for them and a partner with close to 50 people
recenving other significant prizes

We continued to share Sky's success with our people We awarded an
above average pay Increase and specifically weighted the balance of
the pay review to those on lower Incomes

In addition, for those pecple choosing to participate in the Sky
sharesave scheme, they saw gains of up to 90% of the onginal option
price for options which vested in 2013

QOther items included our annual twe day music and entertainment
event "Sky Fest” for our employees and theair families which included
regional events this year to reflect Sky's growing regional footprint
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group risk register is reported formally to the Audit Committee
twice a year and focused risk reporaing on selected themes occurs on
aquarterly basis Additional information on the Group s internal
control and risk management processes 15 set out in the Corporate
Governance Report (see page 44)

This section describes the current pnncipal nisks and uncertanties
facing the Group In addition to summarsing the matenal nsks and
uncertainties the table below gives examples of how we mitigate
those risks

The Group has a formal risk management framework embedded
within the business to support the identification and effective
management of nsk across the Group

The divisions within the Group are each responsible for managing and
reporting risk in accordance with the Groups nisk management policy
and standards that have been approved by the Audit Committee The
risks are then consolidated nto a Group nisk register which provides
an overview of the Group risk profite

Description of nisk

Mitigatian

Market and competition

The Group operates In a highly competitive environment and faces
competition from a broad range of organisations Technological
developments also have the ability to create new forms of guickly
evolving competitton

A failure to develop the Group s product proposition inhine with changing
market dynamics and expectations could erode the Group s competitive
position

Great content is central to Sky's product praposition and increased
competition could impact the Group s ability to acquire content that its
customers want on commercially attractive terms

Economic conditions have been challenging in recent years and the
future remains uncertain A significant economic decline could impact
the Groups albxlity to continue to attract and retain customers

The Group continues to make significant investments In Innovation

The Groups product development strategic aim 1s to be at the forefront
of progressive technology

Please see the ‘Review of our business” section for further details of
these products

The Group regularly reviews its priang and packaging structures to
ensure that Its product proposition s appropnately placed within the
market

The Group works closely with its marketing partners to ensure that the
value of its offenng 1s understood and communicated effectively to its
customers

The Group makes significant Investments in the origination of UK
content as well as acquisition from across the world

The Group alse works to develop and maintan the brand value
associated with its individual channels

Regulatory breach and change

The Group is subject to regulation primartly under UK Insh and European
Union legisiation

The regimes which apply to the Groups business include but are not
mited to

> Gambling - Alderney Gambiing Commission regulation

> Broadeasting - the Group 1s subject to Ofcom s licensing regime urder
the Broadcasting Acts 1990 and 1996 and the Communications Act
2003
These obligations include the requirement to comply with the retevant
codes and directions 1ssued by Ofcomineluding, for example the
Broadcasting Code, the Code on the Scheduling of Television
Advertising and the Cross Promotions Code
Please see page 16 of the Business Review for further details of our UK
broadcasting licences

The Group manages these nsks through active engagementin the
regulatory processes that affect the Group s business

The Group actively seeks to identify and meet our regulatory obllgat;ons
and to respond ta emerging requirements This includes for example

> Gambling - controls and processes are in place to monitor our
compliance with, and aur adherence to our obligations under the
Alderney Gambling Commission regulations Wa are subject to regutar
independent audit by the Commission against the regulations

> Broadcasting - compliance controls processes and contacts are n
place in Entertainment Movies Sports and News services Interaction
with Ofcom s co-ordinated between the Compliance, Regulatory and
Legal departments

> Platform services - processes are In place to monitor third party
broadcaster access to the digital satellite platform and to ensure that
this 1s provided on farr, reasonable and nen-discriminatory terms and
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Description of nsk

Mitigation

Regulatory breach and change continued

> Platform services - as a provider of EPG and CA services, the Group 1s
subjgect to regutation under the Commurwcations Act 2003 which
amongst other things, requires it to provide EPG and CA services to
other broadcasters on farr reasonable and non-discnminatory terms,
and

» Telecommurmications - the Group 1s subject to the General Conditions
of Entitlement adopted under the Communications Act 2003 which
impose detaled requirements on prowders of communications
networks and services

The Group s alsc subject to generally apphicable legislation including but
not imited to, competition (antitrust) consumer protection data
protection and taxation

The Group is currently, and may be in the future subject to proceedings
and/or investigation and enquines from regulatory authorities

The Groups ability to operate or compete effectively could be adversely
affected by the outcome of investigations or by the introduction of new
laws, policies or regulations, changes in the interpretation or application
of existing taws policies and regutations, or fature to abtain required
regulatory approvals or hcences

> Telecommunications - comphance controls processes and contacts
arein place overseen by the Customer Comphance Committee to
manitor cemphance and performance against the General Conditions
of Entitlement

NAND] P Nt

The Group maintains appropriate oversight and reporting supported by
traning, to provide assurance that itis comphant with regulatory
requrements
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Customer service

The Groups business 1s based on a subscnpuon model and its future
suCcess relies on building long-term relationships with 1ts customers A
failure to meet its customers expectations with regards to service could
negatively Impact the Group s brand and competitive pesition

The Group stnives consistently to exceed its customer expectations to
put its customers first to understandwhat they want and to be
responsive to what they say

The Group makes significant investments in arder to deliver continuous
development and improvement to its customer service capabilities

The Group hasincreased and 1S contineng to Increase the number of
contact centres lecated across the United Kingdom and Ireland and has
implemented ongoing training and development plans

The Group benchmarks Its customer service experience and strives to
be the best i class

Technology and business interruption

The products and services that the Group provides to 1ts customers are
rehant on complex technical Infrastructure

A failure in the operation of the Group’'s key systems or Infrastructure
such as the broadcast platform, customer management systems or the
telecommunications networks on which the Group relies could cause a
failure of service to our customers and negatively Impact our brand
Dewals of ourinfrastructiure and tecnnology are set out on pages 14 to
15 of the Business Review

The Group makes significant investment in technology infrastructure to
ensure that It continues to support the growth of the business

The Group 1S committed to achieve best in class business continuity
standards and makes significant investments in the resihence and
robustness of its business infrastructure

continuity exercises to ensure ongoing readiness of key staff systems
and sites

The Group also orgamses regular scenana hased group-wide business

Supply chain

The Group relies on a number of third parties and outsourced suppliers
operating across the globe tc support its supply chain

A significant fallure within the supply chain could adversely affect the
Groups ability to deliver products and service to Its customers

The Group continues to irwest in its supply chain infrastructure to
support its business plan commitments

Arcbust supplier sefection process is 1n place with appropriate ongeing
management and menitoring of key partners and suppliers

The Group performs regular audits of key suppliers ang of therr
Installations and wherever possible has dual supply capability
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Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Description of nsk

Mitrgation

Financial

The effective management of its financial exposures 1s central to
preserving the Group's profitability

The Group has some exposure to the European financial cnsis although
the Groups net euro cash flows are approximately 3% of total group
revenues and the Greup s practice 1s to hold less than £10 milion on
deposit In euros

Anumber of the Group's syndicate banks are headquartered in Europe
but the Group does not currently anuicipate drawing the RCF

The Group's finance teams are embedded within the business to provide
support to management and to ensure accurate financial reperting and
tracking of our business performance Reporting on finanaial
perfarmance is provided on a monthly basis to senior management and
the Board

The Group continually invests in the improvement of 1ts systems and
processes In order to ensure sound financial management and reporting

The Group manages treasury risk by mmimising nsk to capital ang
provickng appropnate protection against foreign exchange and interest
rate movements

Cash investment 1s made In line with the Group s stnct treasury policy
which 1s approved by the Audit Committee and sets imits on deposits
based on counterparty credit ratings No more than 10% of cash
deposits are held wath a single bank counterparty, with the exception of
overnight deposits which are invested in a spread of AAAm rated
hguidity funds

Allnon-sterling debt 1s swapped at inception to ensure appropnate
currency and interest rate protectionis in place, and trading currency
risk 1s hedged up to 5 years in advance

The Group manages Its tax risk by ensuring that nsks are (dentified and
understood at an early stage and that effective compliance and
reporting processes are in place

The Group continues to maintain an open and proactive relationship
with the regulating tax authonties which are pnimanly HM Revenue &
Customs The Group aims to deal with taxation issues wherever possible
as they arnse in order to avoid unnecessary disputes

Security

The Group must protect its customer and corporate data and the safety
of its pecple and infrastructure as well as needing to have in place fraud
prevention and detection measures

The Group Is Tesponsible to third party intellectual 5roperty owners for
the security of the content that it distributes on vanous platforms (Sky’s
own and third party platforms)

A significant breach of secunty could impact the Group s ability to
operate and deliver against Its business objectives

The Group takes measures ranging from physical and logical access
controls to encryption, or equivalent technelogies to manage Its
secunty risks

The Group continues to iInvest N new technelogical controls and in
improving broader business process and works closely with law
enforcement agencies and policy makers in order to protect its assets
and to comply with 1ts contractual cbligations to third parties

Projects.

The Group Invests in, and delivers, significant capital expenditure
projects in order continually to dnve the business forward The failure to
deliver key projects effectively and efficiently could result in significantly
increased project costs and impede our ability to execute our strategic
plans

A cormmon project management methodology 1s used to enable the
Group to manage, moritor and control Its major capital expenditure
projects and strategic programmes This includes standardised
reporting and monthly reviews by senior management

Third party partners will where appropriate be engaged to provide
support and expertise inour large strategic programmes complex
initiatives and for emerging technologles

Intellectual property protectron

The Group 1 commen with other service providers, relies on intellectuat
property and other proprietary nghts, incuding in respect of
programming content, which may not be adequately protected under
currert laws or which may be subject te unauthorised use

Please see page 11 of the Businass Review

We maintain an ongoing programme to support appropriate protections
of our intellectual property and other nights This includes, for example,
the use of automated on ine monitoring tools the smplementation of on
screen impanting of content together with an active programme to
protect our trade marks
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Description of nsk

Mitigation

People
People at Sky are cnitical to the Group s ability to meet the needs of its
customers and achieve Its goals as a business

Fallure ta attract or retan sutable employees across the business could
et the Group s ability to deliver its business plan commitments

Making Sky a great ptace to work 1s central to the Group s strategy The
Group champions diversity and develops tatent through a number of
actmties incuding the Graduate program, Cevelopment Studio an
apprenticeship scheme and a leadership programme

The Group has well established channels and procedures to recruit and
retain 11s employees and to ensure that an adeguate number of suitable
employees work within (ts customer service teams and across all its
operations

Further detall on our people 1s set out on pages 21to 23 of the Business
Review
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Directors’ report - Financial and operating review

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion and analysis 1s based on, and should be read
1n conjunction with the consolidated financial statements ncluding
the related notes, that form part of this Annual Report The
conselidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB and as adopted by the EU

The Group mantains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday
nearest to 30 June in each year In fiscal 2013 this date was 30 June
2073 this being a 52 week year (fiscal year 2012 1 July 2012, 52 week
year) For gonvenience purposes, the Group continues to date its
consolidated financial statements as at 30 June and to refer tothe
accounting penod as a year

Areconcihation of non-GAAP measures 15 set out onpage 114 and a
detaled reconcihation of profit to adjusted profit is induded innote 8
to the consolidated financial statements

OVERVIEW AND RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

During the current year, total revenue increased by 7% to

£7235 million, compared to the year ended 30 June 2012 ( the prior
year ) Adjusted operating profit for the current year increased by 9%
to £1330 millon resulting in an adjusted operating profit margin of
18 4% compared to 18 0% in the prior year Reported aperating profit
was £1,291 million, compared to £1 243 millon in the prior year
Adjusted free cash flow was 13% higher at £1628 million, compared to
£910 million in the prior year

Adjusted profit for the year was £963 millon generating adsusted
basic earnings per share of 60 0 pence compared to an adjusted
profit of £875 millon and adjusted basic earnings per share of 50 8
pence in the prior year Reported profit for the year was £979 milkon,
generating basic earnings per share of 60 7 pence, compared toa
profit of £906 million and basic earnings per share of 52 6 penca In the
prior year

Our successful transition to more broadly-based growth combined
with the acquisition of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-line
telephony business, has delivered an increase of 3 263,000
subscription products in the year to a total of 31634000 Of this
increase 706,000 arose from the 02 acquisition and 2563 000 from
orgaruc growth

At 30 June 2013, the total number of TV Customers in the UK and
Ireland was 10 422,000, representing a net increase of 134,000 in the
current year, ncluding subscribers to our new internet TV service NOW
TV launched in July 2012 The total number of HD customers was
4786,000 representing 46% of total TV Customers This represents
growth in HD customers of 10% In the current year The number of
Muitiroom customers also continued to grow increasing by 87,000 in
the current year to 2,489,000, 24% penetration of total TV Customers
Sky Go Extra, our new paid-for mobile TV service, had a total of

166 Q00 customers at 30 June 2013 just five months after launch

Strong growth in our home communications products 1s driven by
both organic growth and the acquisition of the O2 consumer
broadband and fixed-lne telephony business The number of
Broadband customers increased by 905,000 1n the current year to
4906 000 The number of Telephony customers reached 4 501,000
representing an Increase of 733 000 1n the current year The number
of Line Rental customers increased by 801000 in the current year to

4,364,000 in all 35% of our customer base now takes all three of TV,
broadband and telephony up from 32% last year

We are progressing with our plans to connect more SkytHD boxes to
the Internet with 2,709 000 TV households with connected boxes as at
30 June 2013 anincrease of 1,714,000 year onyear

Sky Go, our mebile video service, attracts a great. response from

customers with quarterly unique users at 3 257000 in the fourth

quarter compared to 2,740,000 1n the fourth quarter last year an |
increase of 19%

Our total customer base increased by 552,000 to 14,830 000
compnsing 11153 000 retail customers and 3 677,000 wholesale ‘
custorners taking at least one paid-for Sky channel increases of

547000 and 5,000 respectively on the prior year

Churn for the current year was 10 8% (2012 10 2%) which reflects the
continuing pressure on househeld budgets In a tough economic
environment but was within our 10% to 11% target range

During the year we unbundied 358 additional exchanges increasing
our footprint to approximately 88% network coverage

CORPORATE

The Board of Directors 1s proposing a final dmvdend of 19 0 pence per
ordinary share resulting in a total dividend for the year of 30 0 perce,
representing growth of 18% over the prior year full-year dividend The
ex-dividend date will be 13 November 2013 and, subject to shareholder
approval at the Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM™) the
dividend wilt be paid on 6 Decemnber 2013 to shareholders of recard on
15 November 2013

0On 29 November 2011 at the Company's AGM, the Company was
granted the authority toreturn E750 million of capital to shareholders
via & share buy-back programme (the ‘November 201 Authornity') This
authority was subject to an agreement between the Company and
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc (formerly known as News Corperation)
(and others) dated 28 July 201 whereby following any market
purchases of shares by the Company Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
would sell to the Company sufficient shares to maintain its percentage
shareholding at the same leve! as applied prior to those market
purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would be
the price paysble by the Company in respect of the relevant market
purchases (the “2011 Share Buy-back Agreement™)

At the Company's AGM on 1 Navember 2012 the Company was granted

the authority to return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders

via a share buy-back programme (the November 2012 Authonty’) This |
authority was subject to an agreement between the Company and ‘
Twenty-First Century Fox Inc (and others) dated 28 July 2012 on |
substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement

0On 25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return a further £500 milion of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme Shareholder approvals will be sought at the
Company's AGM on 22 November 2013 The Company has entered into
an agreement with Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. (and others) under
substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement
The agreement 1 conditional on the appropriate shareholder approvals
being granted The effect of the agreement 1s to provide that there will
be no change in Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc s economic or veting
Interests in the Company as a result of the share buy-back programme
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In the year to 30 June 2013 the Company repurchased for cancellation
80549 699 ordinary shares representing 5% of the Company s 1ssued
share capital as at 30 June 2013 for a total consideration of

£627 millon which included stamp duty and commission of £3 milion
This comprised 25 milion shares under the November 2011 Authonty
and 56 milhon shares under the current Novermnber 2012 Authonty The
closing share count at the end of the financial year was 1593,905182

US$800 rmullion of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November
2022 were 1ssued in November 2012 At the time of issuing these
notes, the US dollar proceeds were swapped into pourxds sterling
(E£503 milion) After hedging, 100% of the resulting sterling liability was
subject to fixed interest rates at an average rate of 3 23%

On 30 April 2013 the Group completed the purchase of the Q2
consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business from
Telefénica UK Total consideration comprised £180 million of cash
relating to the purchase price, contingent consideration of £20 millien
and a £S5 millon provisional cash adjustment relating to working
capital and active su\bscnbers

OPERATING RESULTS
Revenue

Qur revenue1s principally derived from retail subscription whotesale
fees advertising and installation, hardware and servicing

Qur retall subscription revenue is a function of the number of
custorners (residential and cormmercial) ncluding those subscribing to
a TV product or a standzlone home communications product the mix
of services subscribed to and the rates charged Revenue from the
provision of pay-per-view services, which inctude Sky Box Office and
Sky Store, 1s Included within retai! subscnption revenue

Cur wholesale subscription revenue, which 1s revenue derived from the
supply of Sky Channeis to cable DTT and Internet Protocol Television
("IPTV™) platforms 1s a function of the number of subscribers on the
relevant operators platforms, the mix of services subscribed to and
the rates charged to those wholesale operators

Our advertising revenue 1s mainly a function of the number of
commercial impacts defined as individuals watching one thirty
second commeércial on our wholiy-owned channels together withthe
quality of iImpacts delivered and overall advertising market conditions
Advertising revenue also includes net commissions earned by us from
the sale of advertising on those third party channels for which we act
as sales representative

Installation, hardware and service revenue includes income from
set-top box sales and installation, service calls and warranties

Other revenue principally includes income from Sky Bet, techrical
platform services, third party set-top box sales public access WiFi
services, and programme distribution fees

Operating expense

Our operating expense arises from programming, direct networks,
marketing, subscriber management and supply chain, transmission,
technology and fixed networks and administration costs

Programming costs include payment for (1) lcences of television nghts
from certain US and European film licensors including the resutlts of
foreign exchange programme hedges (i) the nghts to televise certam
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sporting events and sports production costs (i) other programming
acquired from third party licensors (v) the production and
commissioning of orginal programming, and (v) the rights to retail the
Sky Distnibuted Channels to TV Customers The methods used to
amortise programming iInventories are descnibed in section (g) of note
1to the consolidated financial statements “Inventories”

Under our current pay television agreements with the US major movie
studios, we generally pay a US dollar-denominated licence fee per
current movie, calculated on a per movie subscriber basis Dunng the
year we managed our US dollar / pound sterling exchange risk
primarity by the purchase of forward foreign exchange contracts and
currency options (collars) for up to five years ahead (see note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements)
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Under the DTH distribution agreements for the Sky Distributed
Channels we generally pay a monthly fee per subscnber for each
channel the fee In some cases being subject to periodic Increases
(due to factors such as Inflation or viewing performance), or we

pay a fixed fee or no such fee at all Anumber of our distnibution
agreements are subject to minimum guarantees which are linked to
the proportion of the total number of TV Customers receving specific
packages Our costs for carriage of the Sky Distributed Channels will
{where amonthly per subscnber fee is payable) continue to be
dependent on changes in the subscriber base contractual rates,
viewing performance and/or the number of channels distributed

Direct network costs include costs directly related to the supply of
broadband telephony and iInternet-based TV services to our
customers This includes call costs monthly wholesale access fees
and other variable costs associated with our network

Marketing costs include (1) above-the-line spend (which promotes our
brand and range of products and services generally) (1) below-the-
line spend (which relates to the growth, retention and maintenance of
the customer base, including commissions payable to retaillers and
other agents for the sale of subscriptions and the costs of our own
direct marketing to our existing and potential customers) and () the
cost of providing and instaling digital satelite reception and home
communications equipment for new and existing customers In excess
af the relevant amount actually receved from customers for such
equipment and installation

Subscriber management and supply chain costs include customer
management costs, supply chain costs and associated depreciation
Customer management costs are those assocated with managing
new and existing customers including customer handling and
customer bad debt costs Supply chain costs relate to systems and
infrastructure installation costs of sateliite reception equipment and
home communications equipment, and installation costs of new
products purchased by customers such as HD and Multiroom set-top
boxes including smartcard costs Customer management costs and
supply chain costs are largely dependent on customer levels and new
custemer additions in the year

Transmission technology and fixed network costs include costs that
are dependent upon the number and annual cost of the satellite
transponders that we use Our transponder capacity 1S primanty
supplied by the SES Astra and Eutelsat satellites Transmission,
technology and fixed network costs also include the costs associated
with transmission uphink home communications connectivity costs
and the costs of our broadcasting faciity, Sky Studios
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Administration costs include depreciation, channel management, faciliues
other central operational overheads and the expense recognised for
awards granted under our employee share option schemes

For certain trend information related to our revenue and operating
expense see the "Trends and other nformation” section below

Current year compared to prior year

Revenusa
The Group s revenie can be analysed as follows
2013 2012
For the year to 30 June £m % £m %
Retall subscnption 5951 82 5593 82
Wholesale subscrniption 3596 5 351 5
Advertising 440 6 440 7
Installation, hardware
and service a7 1 a8 1
Other 361 5 309 5
i 7235 100 6791 100

Group revenue Increased by 7% to £7,235million (2012 £6 791 millior)
with growth in both retail and wholesale operations and improvement
In the more eyclical operations in advertising and pubs and clubs

Retail subscription revenue grew by 6% to £5,951 million (2012 £5593
mullion) reflecting continued product and customer growth and the
benefit of price increases which came into effect In September 2012

wholesale subscription revenue increased by 13% to £396 million
(2012 £351 millior) as we continue to benefit from greater take-up of
Sky premium channels on other platforms, despite the volume of
wholesale subscribers remaining flat

Advertising revenue was flat year on year at £440 miflon (2012 £440
million) as a result of headwinds impacting the sector including the
impact of market decling in the first quarter as & result of the
Olympics, offset by growth underpinned by increased ratings for our
media partner channels with whom we share revenue upside

Installation, hardware and service revenue of £87 milllon was lower
year on year (2012 £98 millior) due to improved product reliabhity an
increased number of customer self-installations and right-first-time
engineer visits

Other revenue Increased by 17% to £361 million (2012 £309 mullion)
due to continued strong performance from Sky Bet which saw an
InCrease In unique users In the year and growth in international
programme sales due to more original commissions

Operating expense .

The Group s operating expense excluding adjusting tems (as detailed
on page 31) canbe analysed as follows

2003 2012

For the year to 30 June Em % Em %
Programming 2,486 42 2298 42
Direct networks 715 12 676 12
Marketing 1me 19 1064 19
Subscritrer management
and supply chain 647 n 621 1
Transmission
technology and fixed
networks 401 7 395 7
Admenistration 540 ] 514 9

5905 100 5,568 100

Direct Costs

Programming costs increased by 8% to £2,486 milhon (2012 £2,298
rmilliori} in fine with our expectations Sports accounted for the
majority of the absolute Increase due to the inclusion of Formulal
Ryder Cup and Lions costs not inthe prior year Movie costs increased
angd included investment In expanded rights agreements to support
new product offerings such as Sky Go Extra and NOW TV
Entertainment costs saw the fargest percentage increase (15% year on
year) as we continued to Invest in new and exclusive UK-commissioned
content across our channel portfolio

Direct network costs iIncreased by onty 6% to £715 milllon (2012 £676
million) despite a 15% growth in home communications product
volumes on an organic basis reflecting our work on network efficiency
within our communications cperation

Other Operating Costs

Marketing costs increased 5% to £1,116 milhon (2012 £1064 million)
although reduced by 30 basis ponts as a percentage of sales yearon
vear Lower cost route-to-market sales and lower acquisition volumes
helped to offset additional marketing spend to support the launch of
NOW TV and anational broadband campaign which included the
taunch of fibre i the second half of the year

Subscriber management and supply chain costs were up 4% at
£647 milhion (2012 £621 milhon) driven largely by hugher Sky Italia
set-top box sales and higher broadband volurmes

Transmission technology and fixed network costs increased by 2% to
£401 million (2012 £395 million) due to the Increased transmission of
additional content from the Formula 1 channel Sky Go, NOW TV and
On Demand, largely of fset by continued efficiencies

Administration costs were up 5% at £540 rillion (2012 £514 mulilon)
refiecting the biennial phasing of our share incentive plans Excluding
this, adrinistration costs would have been Pat on last year

Operating profit and operating margin

Adjusted operating profit Increased by 9% to £1,330 millen in the
current year, as a result of strong growth in subscription revenue

and cost efficencies In our operations Adjusted operating margin
(caleulated as total revenue less all operating expense as a
percentage of total revenue) for the current year was 18 4% compared
to 18 0% in the prior year
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Reported operating profit Increased by 4% to £1291 millonin the
current year, as a result of the factors described above and the
one-offitems outhned in “Adjusting items” below

Joint ventures and associates

Joint ventures are entities in which we hold a long-term interest and
share control under a contractuat arrangement with other parties
Our equity share of the net operating results from joint ventures and
associates increased by £7 million to £46 million in the current year
This iIncluded a profit on disposal of a joint venture of £9 million
arising from the sale of our Investment i MUTV Limited Inthe prior
year this included a profit on drsposal of a joint venture of £7 milon,
arsing from the sale of our investment in Chelsea Digital Media
Limited

investment income and finance costs

Finance costs have decreased by 3% to £108 mithor (2012 £111 million)
as the result of a £5 million write-of f of the previous RCF facility fee in
the prior year and a £4 miilion increase In non-cash fair value gains on
derwvative financial Instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting
and hedge effectiveness This has been offset by an additional
interest charge arising from the :ssue of the $800 million Guaranteed
Notes entered into in November 2012

Taxation

The total tax charge for the current year of £278 milion (2012 £283 mullion}
comprises a adrent tax charge of 288 millon (2012 £270 milkoryand a
deferred tax credit of £10 millon (2012 dharge of £13 million). The lower tax
charge inthe current year was pnimarnly due to the lower UK corporation
taxrate

Profit for the year and earnings per share

Profit For the year was £979 million, compared to £906 milion in the
prior year The increase in profit was pnimarily due to growth in
subscription revenue and cost efficiencies in our operating
expenditure

The Group s earnings per share are as follows

2013 2012
pence pence

Earnings per share from profit for the year
Basic . 607 526
Diluted 597 522

In order to provide a measure of underlying performance
management has chosen to present an adjusted profit for the vear
which excludes items that may distort comparability See note 8 to
the consohdated financial statements for a detaited reconciliation
between profit and adjusted profit For the year

The Group s adjusted earmings per share from adjusted profit for the
year are as follows

2013 2012

pence pence

Basic 600 508
Diluted 591 504

Adjusting rtems

In the current year reported operating profit of £1,291 million included
anet charge of £33 millien relating to the adjusting items outlined
below
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In the current year we recognised againof £32 million relatingto a
credit note receved from BT following an Ofcom determination that
BT had overcharged for Ethernet services between 2006 and 2009
During the year we also reached a final settlement of disputes with a
former manufacturer of set-top boxes suppled between 2004 and
2008, resulting in a gan of £33 million

In each of these Nstances it was our customers who were most
impacted Accordingly we decided to pass the benefits of the
resalution of these disputes back to customers with two one-time
programmes First we targeted a small cohort of around 150 000 of
our customers who currently have one of the earliest versions of our
Sky+HD box to offer them a free upgrade to the current version
allowing them the same functionality as the vast majority of HD
customers Second we are offering wireless connectors to selected
Sky Movies customers, enabling them to connect their existing
Sky*tHD box to the full range of On Demand services We recognised a
charge in the year for these two one-of f Imibiatives of £56 milkon

s ueADe

Reported operating profit for the year also included a £33 millon
charge relating to a corporate effiiency programme resulting in the
redundancy of approximately 250 head office employees and

E15 million of costs relating to the acquisition and integration of Q2 s
consumer broadband and fixed-fine telephony business

Reported profit for the year included a gain of £9 million on the
disposal of our iInvestment In MUTV Limited and a gain of £23 million
for mark-to-market gains relating to the remeasurement of all
derivative financial instruments not qualfying for hedge accounting
and hedge ineffectiveness
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In the prior year reported operating profit of £1,243 millon included a
net benefit of £20 million This consisted of a £31 milion gain relating
to the break fee from News Corporation (subsequently renamed
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc) net of related costs, and £11 miflion of
restructuring costs which comprsed severance payments inrelation
to approximately 35 semor roles as part of a restructuring initiative to
improve operational efficiency both of these amounts were classified
as admirustration costs

In the prior year reported profit for the year included a cost of

£5 muihoin due Lo writing of f fees relating to the previous RCF, a gain of
£7 millon on the disposal of our investment in Chelsea Digital Media
Limited and a gain of £19 million for mark-to-market gains relating to
the remeasurement of all derivative financial nstruments not
qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge ineffectiveness

Tax adjusting items and the related tax effects on the above items
resulted in a 77 milkon credit (2012 £10 millon charge)

Balance sheet

During the year total assets increased by £836 million to £6,345 !
rillion at 30 June 2013 Non-current assets ncreased by £542 million
to £3,776 milhon, primarily due to an increase of £288 million in
ntangible assets and property plant and equipment and an increase
of £194 million n available-for-sale iInvestments significantly resulting
from the increase in the value of our Investment in 1TV plc
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Current assets increased by £294 milion te £2,569 milion at 30 June
2013 This Increase was significantly due to a £236 million net increase
n cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits, driven by the
proceeds from the November 2012 bond 1ssue, and a £92 million
Increase innventories resulting frorm further investment in
programming content

Total labilities increased by £768 million to £5,333 millien at 30 June
2013 Current habilities increased by £219 million to £2 317 mullion,
primanily due to an increase in trade and other payables Non-current
llabilities ncreased by £549 milion te £3 016 million principally due to
a £511 millon increase in the Group's non-current borrowings
following the November 2012 bond 1ssue

Foreign exchange

For details of the iImpact of foreign currency fluctuations on our
financial position and performance see note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements

Liquidity and capital resources
An analysis of the movement 1n our net debt (Including related fees) s
as follows

Non-
Asat Cash cash As at
luly move- move- 30 June
2012 ments ments 2013
£m £m £Em £m
Current borrawings 8 Q) 4 i
Non-current borrowings 2398 498 13 2905
Borrowings-related dervative
financial instruments (356) - 29 (32N
Gross debt 2,050 457 46 2,593
Cash and cash equivalents (464) (351) - (815)
Short-term deposits (710} ns - (595)
Netdebt 876 261 46 1183

The Group refers to net debt in discussingits indebtedness and
iquidity position Net debt 1s a non-GAAP measure that management
uses to provide an assessment of the overall indebtedness of the
Group The most similar IFRS GAAP measures are current and
nen-current borrowings see note 20 to the canscolidated financial
statements

Management uses net debt to calculate and track adherence to the
Groups borrowing covenants as disclosed in note 20 to the
conselidated financial statements Management monitors the
Groups net debt position because net debt 1s a commenly used
measure in the Investment analyst community and net debt, with
certain adjustments 1s a key metnic used by Moody's and Standard &
Poor s In thelr assessment of the Group s credit rating As such,
management makes decisions about the appropriate investing and
borrowing activities of the Group by reference to amengst other
things, net debt

Our long-term funding comes primarily from our Issued equity and US
dollar and sterling-denominated debt For details of the Group's
facilities long-term funding, iIndebtedness position and the terms of
matenial debt arrangements, including compliance with borrowing
covenants see note 20 to the consclidated financial statements For
details of the Group s treasury activities segnote 22 tothe
consolidated financial statemeants

Our principal source of iquidity 1s cash generated from operations,
combined with access to a £743 millson committed RCF which expires
on 31 October 2017 At 30 June 2013 this facility was undrawn

(30 June 2012 undrawn)

Cash flow

Adjusted free cash flow increased by 13% to £1,028 milkon (2012 £910
millien) reflecting growth in adjusted EBITDA, a positive working
capital movement, lower interest and capital expenditure

Capital expenditure of £454 milhon (2012 £457 millor) was shghtly
lower than last year despite an increase in investment in the fourth
quarter as we started the construction of a new bullding on cur main
site and commenced the integration of acquired O2 fixed-Ine and
telephony customers

Net debt increased to £1183 million (2012 £876 millon) primarily as a
result of the share buy-back and dividend growth Gross debt was
£2.593 mijlion with £1,410 milhon of cash and cash equivalents at

30 June 2013 The Group's iguidity and headroom remain comfortable

Trends and other information

The significant trends and factors which have a matenal effect onour
financial performance are outhined below

The total number of paid-for subscription products was 31,634,000,
an Increase of 3 269 000 during the yaar Paid-for subscription
products consist of TV, HD Multroom, Sky Go Extra Broadband, Tak
and Line Rental products This includes the impact of the acquisition
of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business

The total number of retail customers including standalone home
communications customers was 11153,000, an increase of 547000
customers during the year, including the impact of the acquisition of
the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-hne telephone business

We expect growth in the number of products sold and customer
numbers to continue as a result of the quality, choice, reliability and
value of the services that we provide, which 1s expected to generate
increased retal revenue on a per customer basis

Churn for the current year was 10 8%, compared to 10 2% in the prior
year Qver the medium term we expect our churn to remain broadly
around this level

During the current year, the number of wholesale subscribers taking
at least one paid-for Sky channe! in the UK and ireland was 3 677,000
compared to 3,672 000 in the prior year Our wholesale subscribers
are wholly dependent on the strategies of the refevant wholesale
operators generally as they relate to the distribution of our Channels
(for furtner details see ' Directors’ report - Business review - Review
of our business” or page 10)

Advertising revenue was flat year on year In the short term, the UK
television advertising sector Is expected to remain volatile and
challenging reflecting the continued wider economic uncertainty

The Group s programming ¢osts have increased in the current year
reflecting our continued commitment tomvesting in high-quality
content We expect programming costs will continue to increase and
note our commitment to increase our Investment N UK onginated
content and production
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Direct network costs increased during the current year and are
expected to increase in future years The expected increase reflects
Increasing Sky Broadband and Sky Talk subscribers scaling our LLU
presence and the growth of broadband traffic to support ncremental
customers and fibre capability increasing Inish broadband
subsecribers and Increased usage per customer

Marketing costs increased in the year and are expected to increase In
future years in order to maintain our share of voice 1n an increasingly
competitive environment

Subscriber management and supply chain costs were flat year on
year The leve! of growth in both the total number of customers and
the number of additional services taken by cur customers (for
example HDY will remain key drivers of these costs in future as wilt our
ability to deliver rate efficancy iImprovements across our contact
centre and supply chain operations

Adrnistration costs, excluding the impact of phasing of our share
incentive plans, were flat year on year Going forward, our aim is to
hold the rate of growth in administration costs below that of revenue
growth

Off-balance sheet arrangements

AL 30 June 2013 the Group did not have any undisclosed of f-balance
sheet arrangements that require disclosure as defined under the
applicable rules of IFRS

Events after the reporting period

On 25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme

For further details see note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements
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Board of Directors

Al

1 Nick Ferguson CBE
Chairman

Appointed to the Board 15/06/2004
Nationality” British

Committee membership
tember of the Remuneration and Corporate
Governance & Nomknat:ons Comruttees

Skills and expenence

Extensive experience in leadership roles

in the finance sector Co-founder and
instrumental in the development of Schroder
Venitures (the private equity groug which
later became Permira) of which he served

as Chairman from 1384 to 2001 Priortobus
appontment as Charman of the Company
on 3 Apn! 2012, he served as Deputy
Chairman and Senior Independent
hon-Executive Director Chairman of Alta
Advisers Limited aninvestment advisory
firm since January 2007 Former Chasrman

of the Courtauid Institute of Art for ten years
before retirng in July2012 Charman of SVG
Capital pkc a publicqueted private equity
group from April 2005 to Novernber 2012

2 Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executrve OFficer

Appointed to the Beard 16/08/2004
Nationality Briush

Skills and experience

Jaremy oined the Company as Chief
Financial Officer (CFO)In 2004 and was
appointed CEQ in December 2007 Ha has
extensive expenencein the retaling and
fast-rnoving consumer goads sactors Prior
tojoining the Company Jeremy was Group
Finance Director of D5G international plc
(DSG) formerly Dixons Group plcand prior to
DSG he spent 12 years at Procter & Gamble
inavanety of roles inthe UV and Europe:

Until June 2013 Jeremy was Non Executive
Director and the Charman of the Audit
Cormmittee of Marks and Spencer Group plc
Jeremy Is a Board Member of the chanty
Youth Sport Trust and s & Business Member
afthe National Centre for Unwersibes

and Business

3 Andrew Griffith
chief Financal Officer

Appointed to the Board 07/0472008
Mationality British

Skolls and expenence

Anexperienced finance professional
Andrew joined the Company 1N 1999 and
held a number of senior financareles prioy
to his appointment as CFO 10 April 2008
Inaddition ta his role as CFO Andrew

has executive respansibility for

Sky’s commercial businesses including -
advertising. data services and broadcasting
to heensed premises Andrew joined the
Company from Rothschild the investment
banking organisation, where he provided
financial and strategic advice tocorparate
chents inthe technology media and
telecommunications sector He has adegree
in law from Nottingham Umiversity and

15 amamber of the 100 Group of Finance
Directors and Advisary Board of the Oxford
Uniiversity Centre for Business Taxation

4 Chase Carey
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 30/01/2013
Nattonality American

Skulls and expenence

An executive with extensive media and
Pay TV expenence Chaseis President and
Chief Dperating Officer of Twenty First
Century Fox Inc and Chairman of the
Supervisory Board of Sky Deutschland AG

Former President and Chief Executive
Officer of DIRECTY Inc where he led the
operaticns and strategicdirection of the
Direct TV Group Prior tojoiamng DIRECTV Inc
he was Co-Chiaf Operating Officer of

News Corporation (subseguently renamed
Twenty First Century Fox Inc)and Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Fox
Television Group

5 Tracy Clarke
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 11/06/2012
Nationality Britsh

Commmuttee membership
Member of the Rermuneraticn and the
Bigger Picture Commuttees

Skitls and expenence

An experenced banking and human
resources professienal Group Head People
Compliance Communications and Culture
at Standard Charterad Bank Tracy has spent
most of her carear in banking roles both
nthe UKand nHong Fong Aformer
Nor-Executive Dirgctor of SC First Bank

i Korea (2005-2007) and Non-Executive
Director of Eaga plc (2007-2011) where

she chaired the Femuneration Committee
Tracys atrustee of the charity WORKINg
for YOUth Amember of the Institute

of Financial Servicas and a Fellow of

the Chartered Institute of Personnal

and Development

& David F DeVoe
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 15/12/1994
Naucnality American

Skills and experience

A finance professional with extensive
exparience In the media sector From July
2013 David will serve as Senior Advisor ta

the Board of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
(formerly known as News Corporation)
having served as CFO from 1990 to June 2013
and as aSemior Executive Vice President
from 1996 to June 2013 David 1s a Director of
Shine Limited and has previously served as a
Director of Gernstar-Tv Guide (2001-2008)
and as a nrector of DIRECTV (2003-2008)
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7 Martin Gilbert
Independent hton-Executive Director

Appomnted to the Board 29117200
Natrona® by Bntish

Committee membership
Charman of the Audit Commuttee and
member of the Remwneration Committee

Skills and experience

Expenenced finance professional and
entrepreneur and CEQ of Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC the fund management
group that he co-founded in 1983 Heis
amember of the Scottish Government s
Finanaal Services Adwvisary Board Martin
ts former Chayman of Chaucer PLC and was
Hon-Executive Director of Dynmark
internationat Limited Heis aDirector ofa
rurnber of nvestment trusts and is
Chairman of Firstgroup plc.

8 AdineGrate
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 17/07/2013
Nationality Swedish

Skilts and expenence

An exacutive with extensive finance and
investment management expenence Adine
has operated at the top tiers of Nordic
based internationat business for the past
two decades Charrperson of NASDAQ OMX
Swedish Listing Committee and Vice
Chairperson of AP7 a Swedish pension and
savings asset managemant company

A Board member of Three(Scandinavia) a
mobile tafecommurications and broadhand
operator SOBIAB an international specialty
healthcare compary Sampo OY aleading
financial and iINsurance institution and

S vedavia AB an arport operator Formerty
Executive Vice President and Managing
Director of irvestor AB owner of a number of
Nordic based international companies

Adine s Chairperson of Base23 and Friends
of a Designmuseum

9 Andy Higginson
Senior Independent
Non-Execubtive Director

Appointed to the Beard Qu09r2004
Natonalty Bntish

Committee membership

Charman of the Cerporate Governance
& Narminations Committee and member
of the Audit Committee

Skills and experience

A former Director of Tesco plc having spent
15 years at the company first as Finance
and Strategy Drector and latterlyas

Chief Executive of their Retating Services
business His early career was with Unilever
Guinness Laura Ashiey and the Burton
Group He s amember of the 100 Group of
Finance Directors Andy s Chawrman of
Poundland Limited and N Brown plcand a
Non-Executive Director of Woolworth SA
and tha Rughby Football Union

10 Dave Lewis
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 16/13/2012
Nationa'ty British

Committee membership

Member of the Audit, Corporate
Governance & Nominations and the:
B gger Picture Committees

Skills and experience

Experienced executive with strong
coperational expertise Dave s President,
Personal Care for Unilever pic, where he alse
sits on the Unilever Leadership Executive
Joming Unilever as a graduate traree n
1987 he has held a variety of seror roles in
Europe South Amenica and Asia, including
President for the Americas and Chairmary
of Urilever UX and Ireland

11 James Murdoch
Non-Executive Director

Appeinted to the Board 13/02/2003
Nationality Amercan

Committee membership
Charman of the Bigger Picture Committae

Skdlls and experience

An expenaenced media executive wha

has held a number of senior leadership
roles withun Twenty First Century Fox Ing,
{formerty knownas Naws Corporation). He
has been a Director of the Company since
2003 having served as CEQ from November
2003 until December 2007 and Charman
from December 2007 until April 2032

James is Deputy Chief Qperating Officer
Chairman and CEO International at
Twenty-first Century Fox, InC. James 1s
amember of the Board of Directors and
Executive Committee at Twenty-First
Century Fox, Inc and amember of the
Board of News Corporation, Inc Between
2000 and 2003 he was Chaimman and CEQ
of Star Group Limited James s a former
Non-Executive Director of GlaxaSmithKline
ple (2009-2012) and Sotheby's (2010-2012)

12 Matthisu Pigassa
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 29172011
Navonality French

Committee membershio:
Member of the Audit Committes

Skills and experience

Leading investment banking professicnal
and former civilan administrater of the
Franch Mirustry of Economy and Finance
In 2002 he joned investment banking fum
Lazard Matthieu 1s Deputy CEQ of Lazard
in France and Vice Chairman of Lazard in
Europe He s also the owner of a French
publshing group Les Inrockuptibles and
aco-controling shareholder of the leading
newspaper publisher Le Monde and the
French edition of the Huffington Post.

A Board member of Groupe Lucien
Bamére Denchebourg and Relax News

12 Danny Rimer
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Beard 07/0472008
Nauona! ty” Swiss.

Comnuttee membership

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and member of the Corporate Governance &
Normuinations Committee

Skills and experience

Investment finance professional and
entrepreneur with extensive expenence
of building investment businesses
intemationally Specfic sector knowledge
and skills focus mclude Internet
infrastructure software and seraces
technelegy communications ecommerce
and media business. General Partner of
the venture capital firrn Index Ventures
Management L1P (index Ventures) Prior
tojoining Index Ventures, he was a
General Partner of The Barksdale Group

Danny serves on a number of boards
including Etsy Inc, First Dibs Inc

Flippoard Inc. FON Wireless Limited
Nasty Gal. Inc, RghtScale Inc and Viagogo

14 Arthur Siskind
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 19M/199
Natonality American

Committee membership
Member of the Corporate Governance
& Nominations Committee

Skills and expenence

Highly experienced lggal practitioner and
member of the Bar of the State of New

York since 1962 Senior Advisor tothe
Charman since January 2005 and Director
Ementus since October 2012 of Twenty-First
Century Fox Inc {formerfy known as News
Corporation) Arthur served at Mews
Corporation as an Executive Director from
1991 to Cctober 2012, Group General Counsel
from 1991 to Decamber 2004, as a Servor
Execute President from 1996 to December
2004 and as an Executive Vice President
from 19581 t0 1996 Adjunct Professor of Lan
at tha Cornell Law School (2007-2009) and
Adjunct Professor of Law at Georgetown
Uneversity Law Center (2005 2007)

18 lndy Sutk awatv

Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board 01/06/2013
Nationality American

Committee membership
Member of the Rermuneration Commitiee

Skills and expenence

Executve Charman of Inmarsat ple, global
reobile satelite communications provider
Andy has previousty held a number of e
management positions in the
telecommunications ndustry nduding
Chuef Executive ard President of Spont.

PCS and Chief Executive of NTL (UK) and
roles at US West and AT&T Andy s
Non-Executive Chaiman of the Supervisory
Board of Ziggo NV, & Dutch rational

media and COMMUNCATIONS CoMmpany
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Corporate governance report

CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

On behalf of the Board it gives me great pleasure to introduce this
year's Corporate Governance Report | would like totake this
opportunity to provide you with some direct insight into the Board s
views on Corporate Governance, our focus dunng the year, the changes
to our Board compaosition through the year and the Board's first
external Board evaluation

As a Board, we are the stewards of the Company It 1s cur responsibility
to ensure that the Company’s strategy 1s aligned to the interests of
our investors and takes account of the Interests of all the Company's
stakeholders As individuals we believe that effective Corporate
Governance Is based on honesty Integrity and transparency and can
only be fully realised within an environment of open robust and
effective debate This 1s the Board culture we foster at Sky, and it 1s my
personal responsibility as Chairman to ensure that we continue to live
this culture and promote it within our business

Firstly, | would like to address our Board composition There have been
anumber of changes in Board and Committee membership during the
year 1am pleased to welcome Dave Lewis Chase Carey Andy Sukawaty
and Adine Grate to the Board Jacques Nasser and Lord Wilson of
Dinton both retired frem the Board during the year Chase Carey who
previously served as a Non-Executive Director from February 2003 to
February 2009 replaced Thomas Mockridge fellowing his resignation
n January 2013 In order to clarify the roles of Board members, within
our Corporate Governance Report, on pages 37 and 38 we have
included a detalled description of the Directors roles and
respeonstbilities

It has been the Board's strategy to attract directors who complement
and expand upon the skill set of the Board We seek to appoint
directors who prowvide diversity (n background, expenence and views
We recognise that gender diversity can bring a greater range of
viewpoints to boardroomn debate and imgrove board dynamics

In line with corporate governance best practice, during the year an
external Board evaluation was undertaken by Alice Perkins of JCA
Group The feedback from the evaluation confirmed that the Board
and each of its Committees continue to operate effectively and that
each Director continues to make an effective contribution and retains
a strong commitment to their role The resulting development themes
that arose from the evaluation are discussed on page 41

During the year we have continued our work 1n promoting greater and
mere effective engagement with our shareholders Andy Higginsen,
our Executive Directors, and | have met with institutional investors
and analysts Along with Danny Rimer Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee we will continue to engage with shareholders over the
course of the coming financial year

Nick Ferguson
Chairman

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code”) provides the
standard for corporate governance in the UK The Financial Conduct
Authority requires isted companies to disclose whether they have
complied with the provisions of the Code throughout the finanaial
year The Code as revised In September 2012 will apply to the Company
during the next financial year For this financial year, the Company has
continued to apply the 2010 version of the Code

The Board considers that the Company has fully complied with the
provisions and applied the main principles of the Code for the whole
of the year ended 30 June 2013 This section of the Annual Report
along with the Remuneration Committee s report on Directors’
remuneration on pages 48 to 56 and other governance and statutory
disclosures on pages 57 te 59 provide details of how the Company has
applied the main principles Further information on the Code s
available on the Financial Reporting Council's website frc org uk

LEADERSHIP
Role of the Board and its Members

The Board has collective responsibility for the management direction
and performance of the Company and provides leadership withina
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to be
appropriately assessed and managed The Board sets the strategic
direction ensuring that the necessary resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives and deliver sustainable performance

The Board takes a long term cutlock and sees itself as responsible to
a wide range of stakehalders, whilst pursuing its objectivesina
manner consistent with its statutory duties for the benefit of the
Company s members as awhole

The Directors of the Board are selected on the critena of proven skill
and ability in therr particular field of endeavour and a diversity of
outlook and experience which directly benefits the operation of the
Board as the custodian of the business A full biography of each Beard
member 15 provided on pages 34 to 35

The Board agenda

The roles of the Chairman and CEO are separate and have been s¢
since the Company’s shares were admitted to listing In 1994 Theroles
and expectations of each Director are clearly defined and recorded
within therr letters of appointment or service contracts The roles and
responsibilities of the Board members are explained below

To maintain an approprate level of control over the day to day affairs
of the Company, the following matters are subject tothe
determination and/or approval of the Board and are contained within
the Company s “Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board

> approval of the annual budget and any changes toit,

>amajor change In the nature, scope or scale of the business of the
Group,

> approval of the Interim and final results

> approval of any dividend policy,

>changes relating to the Group s capital structure including
reductions of capital and share buy-backs

> the entering Into by the Group of a commitment or arrangement (or
any series of related commitments or arrangements) which
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whether budgeted or unbudgeted, involves or could reasonably
involve the payment or receipt by the Group of amounts equal to or
in excess of £200 milllon in aggregate value

> the entenng into by the Group of a commitment or arrangement or
any series of related commitments or arrangements) with a related
party (as defined by the Listing Rules) which involves, or could
reasonably involve, the payment or recaipt by the Group of amounts
equal to or In excess of £25 million 1t aggregate value

> approval of resolutions to be put forward to shareholders at a
general meeting

> changes to the structure size and composition of the Board
following, if applicable, recommendations from any committee to
which the Board delegates consideration of such 1ssues,

> appointment and removal of the Chairman of the Board and the
CEQ, and

> determining the independence of Non-Executive Directors

The full schedule of matters reserved for decision making by the
Board can be found on the Company’s corporate website at sky com/
corporate In the event that a matter s required to be resolved by a
vote of the Board, the matter shall be decided by a majerity of votes in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association The Chairman
does not have a casting vote

Board Focus

Dunng the vear and in addition to Its reserved and standing matters
the Board also considered and recewved a number of updates and
presentations relating among others to

> The Company’s finance and cperations

> Governance and formal business

> The general market and economic outlock
> The competitive landscape

> Products and services

> Content Investments

Strategy Away Days

In February 2013 members of the Board attended an offsite day
dedicated to the Company’s strategic pricnties This format gives
Directars a further opportunity to explore, analyse and challenge
management on its strategic approach At this year s away day, the
Board were engaged in and received presentation and updates
relating to

> The Company's five year financial plans
> New product developments

> Growth of existing business activities
> Opportunities and market trends

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chairman

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board ensuring its
effectiveness on all aspects of its role and setting its agenda This
Includes ensuring, via the Company Secretary that the Directors
receive accurate timely and clear informatien The duties of the
Chairman include the following

> to provide a sounding board to the CEQ

> toencourage and ensure effective communicaticn with
shareholders and ensure shareholder views are communicated to
the Board as awhole

> to facilitate a structure to allow the effective contribution of all
Directors, and of Non-Executive Cirectors in particular,

> to create an environment which engenders canstructive relations
between Executive and Non-Executive Directors

> to organise the business of the Board so that it can be carred out
effectively and efficiently

> to lead the Board in discussions regarding the Company’s strategy
and inthe achievement of It s objectives

> toensure Beard committees are properly established, composed
and operated and

> to enhance the Company’'s public standing and image overalll

The Chief Executive Officer

The CEQ is respeonsible for the daily operation of the Company,
advanang long-term shareholder value, supported by the
management team He 15 accountable and responsible to the Board
for the management and operation of the Company He is also
Involved in the management of the sccial and environmental
responsibilities of the Company The duties of the CEC include the
following

> to beresponsible and accountable to the Board for the
management and operation of the Group

> to prepare and implement plans and programmes for the
attainment of approved objectives and to recommend such plans
and programmes to the Board as appropriate

> to provide leadership inthe Greup s commitrnent to attaining high
business standards generally

« > to create the conditions within the Group for the efficient operation

of all business units,

> to establish and maintain relationships with shareholders and
potential shareholders and majcr external bodies

> tokeep the Board informed on allmatters of matenal impertance,
and

> to chair mestings of the Executive Committee

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director (SID)

The role of the SID Is to provide both support and a counterbalance to
the position of Chairman and encompasses the following

> to provide & sounding board to the Chairman

> to serve as an alternative source of advice to the Chatrman for the
other Non-Executive Directors,

> together with the other Independent Non-Executive Directors, to
evaluate the performance of the Chairman and agree development
points required
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Corporate governance report

continued

> along with the Chairman to llaise with institutional shareholders
and representative bodies during the year, and

> to assist shareholders in resolving concerns should alternative
channels be nappropriate

Non-Executive Directors

Collectively, and specifically within the rerit of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors the Non-Executive Directors are responsible
for the following aspects of governance of the Board

> to scrutinise the performance of management in reaching agreed
aobjectives and monitor reporting,

> ta satisfy themselves on the integrity of financiat infermation,

> to ensure financial controls and systems of risk management are
robust and defensible

> to determine appropriate levels of remuneration of Board members,
and

>to determine the composition of the Board in respect of succession
planning

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary s responsible for the following in respect of
effective Board operation

> to ensure good information flows within the Board and its
committees between senior management and Non-Executive
Directers

>to facilitate Director Induction and assisting with professional
development, and

> to advise the Board through the Chairman of all corporate
governance obligations and develepments In best practice

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who advises on corporate governance matters Board
procedures and other relevant rules and regulations In addition
Directors have the right to seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense

During the year, Chris Taylor was appointed Company Secretary in
place of David Gormley who moved to another role within Sky

Board and Committee framework

Audit
Committee

Bigger Picture
Committee

Environment supportive of challenge

The effective operation of the Board 1s dependent on the inherent
checks and balances within the varnous Board roles As highly qualified
and successfulindsviduals in their respective fields of endeavour all
Independent Non-Executive Directors influence, debate and
contribute to decisions relating to the strategy of the Company, its
performance and its impact on stakeholders The Independent
Non-Executive Directors are evaluated and judged on the quality and
content of therr contributions to Board debate and are expected to
offer alternative viewpoints and challenge perceptions and decisions
as appropriate

Board delegation

The Board has delegated specific responsibilities to Board
committees, notably the Audit, Remuneration, Corporate Governance
& Nominations and the Bigger Picture committees Fach committees
terms of reference can be found on the Company s corporate website
The Board Is satisfied that the terms of reference of each of the
committees satisfy the requirements of the Code

The minutes of committee meetings are made available to all Board
Directors on atimely basis At each Board meeting the chairman of
each committee provides the Board with a brief update of the work
currently being carried out by the committee they charr

A committee of senior management generally meets on a weekly basis
to allow prompt discussion of relevant business issues 1t 1s chaired by
the CEQ and compnises the CFO and other senior executives from
within the Group

Remuneration
Committes

Corporate Governance &
Nominations Committee
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Meetings of the Board during the year

The Board met five times during the year Attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year s set out in the table below
The table shows the number of meetings each Director and Committee member were eligible to attend

LI 4 DA

»

Corporate
Governance &
Board Audit  Pemuneration Nominations  Bigger Prcture
Number of meetings held inyear 5 6 3 4 2
Cirector
leremy Darroch, CEOQ 5/5
Andrew Gnffith &5
Chase Carey? 2
Tracy Clarke ™ 5/5 313 212
Dawvid DeVoe™ 4/5
Nick Ferguson™*? 5/5 313 44
Martin GilbertW? 5i5 6/6 2i3
Andy Higginson( X«d 4/5 5/6 3/
Dave Lewrg ! Fmxer¥ E'E] 2/2 n 1n
James Murdoch™ 5/5 212
Matthieu Prgasse™* ) 35 36
Danny Rimerd %% 515 3/3 314
Arthur Siskind 5/5 4/4
Andy Sukawaty™? il
Thomas Mockndge™¥? 213
Jacques Nassert? 212 il
Lord Wilson of Dintan” 2%+ 44 313 22
HNotes
@) DaveLews was appointed to the Board on 16 Navember 2012 Chase Carey was appointed ta the Board on 30 January 2003 arxd Andy Sukawaty was appointed to the Board on
1June 2073

(1) Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee member Lord Wilson of Dintonretired as a member on1June 2013 and Dave Lews became amember on 11 June 2013

1) Audit Committee member Andy Higginson stepped down as Chairman of the Audit Committes onl November 2012 Dave Lews became a member on 30 January 2013

(V) Bigger Picture Committee member Dave Lewis was appointed as a member on 30 January 2013 and Lord Wilson of Dinton resigned as a mamber on 1 June 2013

(¥) Remuneration Committee member Jacques Nasser retred as a member on 1 Novernber 2012 and Andy Sukawaty became a member on 11 June 2013

(v1} Jacques Nasser retired from the Board on 1 November 2012 Thomas Mockridge resigned from the Beard on 30 January 2013 and Lord Wilsen of Dinten retired from the Board en
1 June 2013

(vi} David DevVoe was unable to attend a Board meeting due to 8 conflicuing News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox Inc ) meeting.

(vin) Andy Higginson was unable to attend a Board meeting due to family commitments

(1} Matthieu Pigasse was unable to attend Board and Committee meetings due to overseas travel on Lazard business and personal reasons

(x} Thomas Mockndge could not attend a Board meeting as he resigned from the Board that day
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continued

EFFECTIVENESS
Board composition and independence

The Board currently comprises 15 Directors, made up of two Executive
Directors and 13 Non-Executive Directors At least half of the Board of
Drrectors are determined to be independent by the Board in
accordance with provision B12 of the Code Biographies of each of the
Dhrectors are set out on pages 34 to 35 and identify those Directors
who are 1n the view of the Board independent within the meaning of
the Code On appointment the Chairman met the independence
criteria set out in provision B11 of the Code

The Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range of
expenence and expertise to the Group's affairs and carry significant
weight In the Board's decisions The independent Non-Executive
Directors are encouraged to challenge management and help develop
proposais on strategy Time s regularly put aside at Board meeatings
to discuss the strategic direction of the Company

Prior to appointment and on an annual basis each Board member
receves and completes a questionnaire to determine factors that
may affect independence according to best practice statements
contained within the Code The respeonses to the guestionnalre assist
the Board in ascertaining whether a Director 1s ndependent in
character and judgement and whether there are relationships or
arcumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect the
Director s jJudgement

Appointments to the Board and succession planning

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee keeps the
Board s balance of skills knowledge experience and the length of
service of individuals under constant review In respect of succession
planning and supplementing the skill set of the Board, there 1s an
established procedure for the appointrment of Directors In brief the
Committee identifies the set of skills and experience required and,
with the assistance of external search agencies selects ndviduals to
take Board positions on review of therr indvidual ments The process
adopted by the Committee around Director recruitment 1s discussed
In the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee s report on
pages 45 and 46

Board diversity

The Board has noted the findings of the Davies Review and has
published a statement of its intention to increase female ~
representation on the Board This statement can be found on the
Company’s corporate website The Corporate Governance &
Nomnations Committee is responsible for succession planning and
further information of the work of the Committee during the vear can
be found on pages 45 and 46

Directors’ reappomtment

In respect of Code provision B 71 all Executive and Non-Executive
Directors will retire and offer themselves for reappointment. at the
2013 AGM of the Company in compliance with the Code

Board and committee changes during the year

At the Company’s AGM on T Navember 2012 Jacques Nasser retired
from the Board and also as a member of the Remuneration

+

Committee Following the AGM Martin Gilbert was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee in place of Andy Higginson who
remains a member On 16 November 2012, Dave Lewis was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director On 30 January 2013 Dave
Lewis was appointed as a member of the Audit Cornmittee and the
Bigger Picture Committee and on 11 June 2013 he was appointed as a
mamber of the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee

On 30 January 2013, Themas Mockridge resigned and Chase Carey was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director On1June 2013, Lord Wilson of
Dinton retired from the Board and as a member of the Corporate
Governance & Nominations Committee and the Bigger Picture
Committee On1June 2013, Andy Sukawaty was appointed as an
Independent Nen-Executive Director On 11 June 2013 Andy Sukawaty
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee On

17 July 2013 Adine Grate was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director )

Time commitment

Executive Directors are not allowed to take on the chairmanship of a
FTSE 100 company but are allowed to take up one external non-
executive FTSE100 appointment and retain any payments in respect
of such appointments Any external appointments for the Executive
Directors are considered by the Corporate Governance & Nominations
Committee AllNon-Executve Directors are advised of the likely time
commitments required on induction and are expected to devote
sufficient time for the effective discharge of therr functions The
Company provides Non-Executive Directors with appropnate support
and faciities for consideration of the Company’s strategy and
performance, and a dialogue with the Chairman 1s strongly
encouraged o that any Issues regarding confliicting commitments
and time pressures can be addressed approprately

Induction & training

All new Directors receive an inducticn tailored to their ndvidual
requirements The inducticn process involves meeting with all of the
Company’s Executive Directors and Senior Executives This facilitates
their understanding of the Group and the key drivers of the business’
performance Durning the year Directors have recewved presentations
from a number of areas of the business including Customer Growp, Sky
Media, Sky Sports and Strategic Planning Group The Chairman meets
with the Directors throughout the year to review and agree ther
individual training and developmental needs

In consultation with the Chairman and CEQ, the Company Secretary
organises and facilitates directors’ induction For example, Dave Lewis
was appointed to the Board on 16 November 2012 and has undergone
the mitial stages of iInduction which have included meetings with key
executives, a meeting with the Bigger Picture team, and a tour of the
Sky Skills Studio During the remainder of 2013 he will attend an
outside broadeast and visit a customer call centre

Information provided to the Directors

The Company Secretary 1s responsible for ensuring good infarmation
flows withun the Board and its committees, between serior
management and Non-Executive Directors For each Board and
Committee meeting, Directors are provided with a tailored Board pack
at least one week prior to the meeting To improve the deliveryand
security of Board papers, the Company has adopted an electronic
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system whereby Directors board packs are accessible and avallable
rrespective of geographic location Directors regularly receive
additional information from the Company between Board meetings
including a daily press summary and a monthly Group performance
update Where a Director was unable to attend a meeting, they were
provided with all the papers and information relating to that meeting
and were able to discuss 1ssues ansing directly with the Chairman
and CEQ

Conflicts of interest

Under UK company law, all Directors must seek authorisation before
taking up any position with ancther company that conflicts, or may
possibly conflict, with the Company's Interests The Compary's
Articles of Association contain provisions to allow the Directors to
authorise situations of potential conflicts of interest sothat a
Director)s not in breach of his duty under company law All existing
external appointments for each Director have been authonsed by the
Board and each authorisation 1s set out in a Conflicts Register
Directors are required to notify the Board of potential confiicts so
that they can be considered, and If appropriate authorised by the
Board Inaddition, the Corporate Governance & Nominations
Committee conducts an annual review of Directors’ conflicts and
reports its findings to the Board

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee reviewed the
Board s conflicts during the financial year and concluded that
conflicts had been appropriately authonised and that the process for
authorisation s operating effectively The Corporate Governance &
Nominations Committee and the Board will continue to monitor and
review potential conflicts of interest on a regular bass

Directors & Officers’ Insurance and indemnity

Thea Company recogrises that all Directors are equally and collectively
accountable under the law for the proper stewardship of the
Company’s affars The Company maintains a Directors and Officers
lability ;insurance policy which meets defence costs when the Director
15 net proved to bave acted fraudulently

Additionally the Company’s Articles of Association allow the Company
to indemnify the Directors and deeds of indemnity have been 1ssued
to all Directors of the Company

Board Evaluation

In ine with corporate governance best practice, an external Board
evaluation was undertaken during the year The process was
faciitated by Alice Perkins who works for the coaching dwision of JCA
Group which Is separate to the recruitment division engaged by the
Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee duning the year to
assist In the recruitment of non-executive directors JCA Group have
no other relationships with the Company

Following discussions with the Chairman Senwor Independent Director,
CEO and the Company Secretary JCA Group prepared discussion
guidelines which formed the basis for one to one interviews with all
Board members and the Company Secretary The areas covered by the
discussion guidelines included

> Orgarusation of the Board and its compositon
> Committee organisation and composition
> Strategy

RAGIAS? whAULISNY]

> Peer reviews

> Board relations with key stakeholders

> Risk, comphance and financial monitoring

> Qverall Board effectiveness and succession planming

Mg (PraURUIY

The findings were presented to the Corporate Governance &
Nominations Committee and the Board for discussion in Octaber
2012 The feedback confirmed that the Board and each of its
Committees continue to operate effectively and that each Director
continues to make an effective contnbution and demonstrates a
strong commitment to the role

The Board discussed the key findings and agreed the following action
points

> The Board induction process would be reviewed and strengthened

> The compaesition of the Beard and its Committees would be kept
under review

> Board information flows would be reviewed to ensure that all
Directors are kept up to date withdevelopments in between
meetings,

> The Board and Committee meeting schedule would be reviewed

The performance of each director was evaluated as part of the
evaluation process based on self-analysis and input from the other
directors It 1s the Board s intention to continue to review Its
performance and that of its Committees and individual directors on
anannual basis |n respect of the evaluation process for the 2013114
financial year, it 1s likely that a mixture of external faciitation and
internal faciitation will be used

ACCOUNTABILITY

Throughout this report and, as required through other periodic
financial statements, the Board Is committed to providing
shareholders with a clear assessment of the Company's position and
prospects The Audit Committee has responsibility for oversight of
corporate reporting, risk management and the Company’s relationship
with its auditor A full description of the Aucht Committee s terms of
reference 1s Included in the Audit Committee Report on pages 42

to 45

Significant risks to the business are kept under constant review and
appropriate matenal controls are sanctioned and employed as
appropriate The Company’s principal risks and examples of how we
mitigate those risks are detailed on pages 24 1o 27

REMUNERATION

The Board believes in adopting remuneration packages that are
appropriate for attracting retaming and motivating Directors The
Remuneration Committee s report on Directors’ remuneration on
pages 48 to 56 explains how remuneration packages and
performance incentives are employed by the Company at Board level
The Remuneration Committee I1s responsible for setting the
Remuneration policy for the Board and ensures that no Director 1s
involved indecisions affecting their own remuneration
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholder communications

Presentations and webcasts on the development of the business are
available to all shareholders on the Company’s corporate website The
Company also uses email alerts and actively promotes downloading of
2l reports enhancing speed and equality of shareholder
communication The Company has taken full advantage of the
provisions within the Companies Act 2006 allowing the website to be
used as the primary means of communication with shareholders
where they have not requested hard copy documentation The
shareholder information section on pages 116 to 117 contains further
details on electronic shareholder communications together with more
general nformation of interest to shareholders which s also included
on the Company’s corporate website

Shareholder engagement

The Company s committed to maimtaining and improving dialogue
with shareholders in order o ensure that the objectives of both the
Group and the shareholders are understoad A programme of
meetings with institutional shareholders, fund managers and analysts
takes place each year The Company also makes presentations to
analysts and Investors around the time of the half-year and full-year
results announcement, conference calls are held with analysts and
investors following the announcement of the first quarter and third
quarter results and presentations are made during the year to many
exsting or potential shareholders at investor conferences

The Annual General Meeting

The Board views the AGM as an opportunity to communicate with
private Investors and sets aside time at the meeting for shareholders
to ask questions At the AGM the Chairman provides a brief summary
of the Company’s actiities for the previous year te the shareholders
All resolutions at the 2012 AGM were voted by way of an electronic poll
This follows best practice and allows the Company to count all votes
rather than just those of shareholders attending the meeting As
recommended by the Code all resolutions were voted separately and
the voting results, which included all votes cast for, against and those
withheld together with all proxies lodged prior to the meeting, were
indicated at the meeting and the final results were released to the
London Stock Exchange as socn as practicable after the meeting The
announcement was also made avallable on thae Company’s corporate
website As in previous years, the proxy form and the announcement
of the voting resuits made It clear that a ‘vote withheld’ 1s not a vote
in law and will not be counted in the caleulation of the preportion of
the votes for or against the resolution

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman Martin Gitbert

Members Martin Gilbert Andy Higginson Dave Lewis and
Matthieu Pigasse

Chairman's overview

During the year, the Committee continued to focus on the financial
performance of the Company, Internal audit, sk management,
compliance and financial governance In accordance with the Code the
membership of the Committee consists exclusively of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

This year the Committee has received a number of presentations from
the management of different business areas, ncluding technology
entertainment and legal and regulatory to improve its understanding
of their operations and the risks they face and how those risks are
managed

The Committee has also reviewed the Group s Integration of the G2
consumer broadband and fixed-lne telephony business, received
presentations from the Chairman of the Data Governance Committee
the Director of Peaple n relation te Health & Safety and received
regular reports from the Company’s internal audit function and
external auditor

During the year Andy Higginson stepped down as Chairman of the
Commuttee and | would like to thank him for his stewardship of the
Committee during his Chairmanship Andy remains a Commitiee
member Dave Lewis joined the Commities in January 2013 bringing
strong operational experience which will add to the quality and
effectiveness of discussions at Committee meetings

Martin Gilbert
Committee Charman

Attendance at Committee Meetings

The Committee has clearly defined terms of reference as laid down
by the Beardwhich are available on the Company’s website The
Committee 1s chaired by Martin Gilbert and the other members are
Andy Higginson, Dave Lewis and Matthieu Pigasse The CFOand
representatives from the external auditor and the internal audit
department attend meetings at the request of the Committee The
CEO and other business and finance executives attend meetings from
time to time The Committee Chairman reports regularly to the Board
on its activities

David DeVoe and Arthur Siskind have a standing invitation te attend
meetings of the Committee Ther attendance at these meetings 1s as
observers cnly and In anon-voting capacity
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Changes to the membership of the Committee during the year

Andy Higginson stepped down as Charman of the Committee on

1 November 2012 and was replaced by Martin Gilbert and remains a
member of the Committee Dave Lewrs was appointed as a member of
the Committee on 30 January 2013

The role of the Committee

The Chairman reports regularly tc the Board on its activties Its main
duties include

> making recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment reappointment and removal of the external auditor
and discussing with the external auditor the nature scope and fees
for the external auditor’'s work

> reviewing and making recommendations to the Board regarding the
approval or any amendment to, the quarterly, half year and annual
financial statements of the Group

> reviewing the Group s significant accounting policies

> reviewing the Group's systems of internal control,

> reviewing the Group s treasury policies,

> recommending the appointment of the Group s Director Audit, Risk
Management and Compliance

> reviewing the audit plan and findings of the Group's internal audit
function,

> manitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group s internal
audit function

> approving all non-audit services provided by the Group's external
auditor in accordance with the Group s policy

> monitoring the Group s whistle-blowing policy,

> reviewing and monitorng comphance with the Company’s business
standards and codes relating te anti-bribery and corruption,
competition law, data protection, health and safety and other
compliance programmes

> reviewing a schedule of all transactions between the Company and
related parties entered into during the year and which exceed
£100 000 in value and payments pursuant thereto

> approval s required for the entering into by the Group of a
commitment or arrangement (or any senes of related commitments
or arrangements) with a related party which involves or could
reasonably involve the payment or receipt by the Group of amounts
equal to or In excess of £10 million but not exceeding £25 millon in
aggregate value Any transaction in excess of £25 million in
aggregate value must be submitted to the Committee and if
approved by the Committee must also be submitted to the full
Board for approval,

> to approve (subject where applicable te Board approval) all
transactions which falt within the Listing Rule definition of related
party transactions and to recommend such transactions as it
approves to the Board

The Committee members have considerable financial and business
experience and the Board considers that the membership as a whole
has sufficient recent and relevant financial experience to discharge its
functions In addition the Board has determined that each member of
the Committee has sufficient accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the UK Listing Authority's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules
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The Committee reviewed the significant areas of judgement in line
with the Group's critical accounting policies as set out on pages 72
and 73 with particular focus on the following

> Retail subscription revenue the majonity of the Group's revenues
derve from retail subscriptions The Group applhies jJudgement In
determiming the allocation of consideration from customers to
different elements of the contract The Committee keeps the
policies under review and confirms with management that this
policy has been applied consistently

> General entertanment programmng inventory the Committee
reviews the policy for the recognition of content costs and seeks
assurances that it has been applied appropriately The amortisation
methed for general entertainment programming inventory requires
more judgement and the committee received a presentation from
management on the policy and reviewed the different genres of
programmes by comparison with viewing profiles and industry
benchmarks

> Capitalisation of intangible and tangble non-current assets the
Committee obtains assurances from management that the Groups
project contrcls are operating and that the requirernents of IAS16
and IAS 38 regarcing the capitalisation of expenditure have been
fallowed

Activities during the year

The Committee met six times during the financial year Meeting
agendas were organised around the Company s financial reporting
cycle and items covered were as follows

HUE NI ZVRTIIN

Financial management and reporting

> raceved regular updates from the CFO on the financial performance
and financial management of the Group,

> reviewed the Company’s Annual Report, half-yearly results and
interim management statements,

> reviewed the Group s accounting policies, and

> receved quarterly reports from the treasury function on the
funding, hquidity, going concern and operational capabilities of the
Group and compliance with treasury policies

Ues I8

Internal control

> considered the effectiveness of the Group s Internal controls aver
financial reporting,

>reviewsd the mibernal audit depar unent s resounces and annual
audit plan

> reviewed quarterly reports from internal audit on the results of its
audit work and management s implementation of its
recommendations

> recewved quarterly updates from nternal audit on the status of
Senior Accounting Officer (SAD) certification work to ensure SAQ
coempliance and

> evaluated the effectiveness of the Internal audit department

External Audit Matters

> recewved regular reports from the external auditor

> reviewed and approved the 2012/13 audit work plan

> receved regular updates on the use of non-audit services provided
by the external auditor and ensured that all services and fees were
approved In accordance with the Group’s policy,
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Corporate governance report

continued

> reviewed the effectiveness, quatity of work and independence of
the external auditor

> approved the re-appointment, remuneration and engagement
letter of the external auditor, and

> private meetings with the external auditor for additional discussion
and assessment of activities

Risk management

>reviewed the Group’s Risk Register

>receved nsk presentations from various business areas

> approved the Group’s Risk Management Policy and Standards and
> received an insurance renewal update

QOther

> reviewed quarterly secunty updates which include whistle-blowing

>receved areport on cyber security

> reviewed quarterly related party transactions reports, and

> reviewed the Groups implementation of adequate procedures in
relation to the Bribery Act 2010

The Committee also received updates from the Director of Tax and
Treasury, the Chairman of the Data Governance Committee and the
Director of People on health and safety

The external auditors attended six meetings of the Committee during
the year The Director Audit, Risk Management and Compliance has
direct access to the Committee Chairman and the external audit
partner

Internal control and risk management

The Directors have overall responsibility for establishing and
maintaining the Groups systerns of internal contral and risk
management and for reviewing their effectiveness These systems are
designed to manage, and where possible eliminate the nsk of failure
to achieve business objectives and 1o provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss There s an
ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group in accordance with the revised
gurdance on internal control 1Issued by the Financial Reporting Council
In October 2005 Duning the penod under review ne significant fallings
or weaknesses were identified

The Committee on behalf of the Board, considers the effectiveness of
the operation of the Group's systems of internal control and nisk
management dunng the year and this review has been carned out for
the year ended 30 June 2013 and up to the date on which the financial
statements were approved This review relates to the Company and
its subsidiaries and does not extend to joint ventures The Committee
meets on at least a quarterly basis with the Groug s Director Audit,
Risk Management and Compliance and the external auditors

There 1s a comprehensive budgeting and forecasting process and the
annual budget which 1s regularly reviewed and updated 1s approved
by the Board Performance 1s monitered against budget through
weekly and monthly reporting cycles During the financial year under
review monthly reperts on perfermance were provided to the Board
and the Group reports to shareholders each quarter

In respect of Group financial reporting, the Group finance teamis
responsible for preparing the Group financial statements and there

are well establishad controls over the financial reporting process
These are alsodocumented in line with the requirements of the SAQ
legislation and the controls are reviewed and signed off to confirm
their continuous operation by the control owners twice a year and are
independently tested by the internal aud:t team

The results of the SAO testing are reported to the Committee ona
quarterly basis

There are risk registers which identify the risks faced by the Group
and these are consolidated into a Group Risk Register The registers
detall the controls that manage the nsks and where necessary, the
action plans to mitigate the risk exposure The business develops the
action plans and the internal audit team monitors their
implementation The Committee formally reviews the Group Risk
Register twice a year and there s a roling programme where senior
executives from the business present their risk management plans
The Group s principal nisks and uncertainties are detailed inthe
Business Review on pages 24 to 27

The internal audit team provides objective assurance as to the
affectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control and risk
management to the Group s operating management and to the
Committee

Disclosure controls and procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls procedures and systems
that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
as part of the Company's UK listing obligations s accumulated and
communicated to management including the CEQ and CFO, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

The Company has established a Disclosure Committee The committee
15 chaired by the Company Secretary and its members consist of
senior managers from the finance and legal departrments It has
responsibility for considenng the materiality of information (including
inside information) and, on a timely basts, determination of the
disclosure and treatment of such infermation The Disclosure
Committee also has responsibility for overseeing the process for the
formal review of the contents of the Company’s Annual Report

Changes ininternal controls

No change In the Groups internal contrel over financial reporting has
occurred during the year ended 30 June 2013 that has matenally
affected, or is reasonably likely to matenally affect, the Groups
internal control over financial reporting

Audrtor independente

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Committee has reviewed audit
independence and scope of non-audit services and independence
safeguards with Deloitte LLP, the Group s external auditor As part of
the review the Audit Committee has recewved and reviewed
confirmatien inwriting that, n Deloitte LLP's professional judgement
Deloitte LLP 1s independent within the meaning of all UK regulatory
and professional requirements and the objectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff 1s not imparred

The Committee was satisfied throughout the year that the objectivity

and independence of Deloitte LLP was not in any way impaired by

either the nature of the non-audit related services undertaken dunng
r
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the year, the level of non-audit fees charged, or any other facts or
arcumstances Audit and non-audit services provided during the year
were approved by the Committee An analysis of auditor remuneration
15 disctosed n note 5 to the consolidated finanaal statements

Audit and non-audrt services

The Group has a policy on the provision by the external auditor of
audit and non-audit services, which categorises such services
between

> those services which the auditor 1s not permittad to provide

> those services which are acceptable for the auditor to provide and
the provision of which has been pre-approved by the Committee
and

2 those services for which the specific approval of the Committee 1s
required before the auditor s permitted to provide the service

The policy defines the types of services falling under each category
and sets out the cnteria which need to be met and the internal
approval mechanisms required to be completed prior to any
engagement An analysis of al! services provided by the external
auditor 1s reviewed by the Committee on a quarterly basis

During the year the following examples were deemed to be pre-
approved in accordance with the policy

> Comfort procedures in retation to 2012 bond 1ssue
> 1XBRL tagging of statutory accounts
> Assurance of certain KPIs for the Bigger Picture Review

Audit partner rotation

The external auditor 1s required to rotate the audit partner
responsible for the engagement every five years The current lead
partner started his term of office In relation to the 2010/11 finanaial
year

Tenure of external auditor

The appaintment of Deloitte LLP as the Group s external auditor
(incumbents since 2002)1s kept under review The Committee has
approved the external auditor's remuneration and terms of
engagement and is fully satisfied with the performance, objectivity,
quality of challenge and independence of the external auditor Having
performed a review of effectiveness the Committee has
recommendea tnat a resolution to reappoint Lhe exlern gl auditur as
the Company’s statutory auditors be proposed at the Company's
forthcorming AGM In addition to the anrwal review of effectiveness
undertaken when considering the recommendation to shareholders
regarding the annual re-appointment of the external auditor, the 2012
version of the Code now requires the Company to undertake a
competitive tender for the role of external auditor on a comply or
explain basis every tenyears The present audit partner’s permitted
fifth and final year 1s the year ending 20 June 2015 and it 1s the
Committee s current intention to conduct a competitive tender to
select auditors for either that year or the year ending 30 June 2016

Data Governance

The Data Governance Committee (the “DG Committee*) reports to the
Committee The role of the DG Commuttee 1s to ensure that
approprate procedures and controls are in place to ensure that the

Group processes personal data in accordance with Data Protection
taws and that indwiduals are able to exercise their rights under such
laws Aset of policies are i place which outline and promote
consistent, standards and practices in the collection and use of
personal data across the Group The policies also set. out the
responsibilities of employees in managing personal data and the
escalation process to be followed, should employees become aware of
any breach of policy These policies are subject to regular review by
the OG Committee ~

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE &
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Chairman Andy Higginson

Members Nick Ferguson, Andy Higginson, Dave Lewis, Danny Rmer
and Arthur Siskind

Chairman’s overview

We have had ancther active year continuing our orderly programme of
1eplacing Independent Non-Executive Directors as they retire We
have secured the appointment of two new independent non-
executive directors Dave Lewrs and Andy Sukawaty succeed Jacques
Nasser and Lord Wilson of Dinton on their retirement from the Board
Athird candidate Adine Grate was appointed tothe Board on 17 July
203

Succession planning 15 a key part of our annual programme and for
each position we have reviewed the existing skill-set on the Board,
specifically in terms of background, knowledge, expenence and the
diversity of the Board We have balanced this with the Company's
strategic direction and objectives to ensure that each appointment
strengthens the Board so that it ¢an help and chalienge management
to grow and take the business forward

We have used external consultants to help us with the recruitment
process and members of the Committee and the Chief Executive
Officer have met with a number of candidates throughout the year
who met the Committees criteria This year's Board evaluation
process was undertaken by an external Company for the first time
Alice Perkins of JCA Group facilitated the evaluation process which
irnvolved her meeting all Board members and the Company Secretary
through a seres of one to one Interviews The resuits of the
evaluation were vary encouraging The evaliation faund that the
Board and 1ts Commuttees are operating effectively and that the
Directors are making an effective contribution A number of action
points were agreed wiich are generally aimed at buillding on and
IMProving existing processes

The Board as a whole welcomes the opportunity to adapt to
Innovations and change within the field and 1s actively progressing
initiatives such as addressing gender balance on the Board sourcing
the nght skills to complement our talented management team and
creating robust succession plans to safeguard the Company's future
performance

The Commititee continues to comprise a majority of Non-Executive
Directors in comphance with the Code

Andy Higginson
Committee Charrman
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Corporate governance report

continued

Changes to the membership of the Committee during the year

Lord Wilson of Dinton retired as a member of the Commuttee on 1June
2013 Dave Lewis was appointed as a member of the Cornmittee on
1 June 2013

The rote of the Committee

The Chairman reports regularly to the Board on its actmties Its main
duties include

> the identification and nomination for approval by the Board, of
candidates to fill Board vacancies as they anse,

> the drafting of requirements for a particular appointment to the
Board, taking into consideration the present balance of skills
knowledge and experence on the Board,

> the regular review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the recommendation of any changes to the Board or
succession planning,

> the provision of a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly
what I1s expected of new appaintees to the Board, in terms of time
commitrment term of office and committee service as well as their
duties and liabilities as a Director including details of the Company’s
corporate governance policies and Directors and Officers lability
Insurance cover and

> the monitoring of the Company's compliance with applicable
Corporate Governance Codes and other similar requirements

Activities during the year

During the year the Committee reviewed the composition of the Board
and Its committees and followed a formal recruitment process to
identify candidates who meet the Board s criteria During the year,
Committee members and the CEQ met with a number of potential
candidates

The Committee used JCA Group an external recruitment consuttancy
to help the Committee identify possible candidates and run the
recrutrment process The coaching arm of JCA Group which s a
separate business to the recruitment arm, performed the external
Board evaluation during the year JCA Group has no other connection
with the Company JCA Group were replaced by Ridgeway Partners as
the Company’s external recruitment adwvisors 1n October 2012

The recruitment process involved the Chairman of the Committee
working closely with the external recruitment consultants to ensure
that they understood the Company s requirements The external
recruitment company approached potential candidates and a short
Iist of candidates was drawn up and reviewed by the Committee

An interview process was then undertaken which involved members of
the Committee and the CEC meeting the candidates

The Committee recommencded two candidates to the Board during
the year Dave Lewis and Andy Sukawaty A third candidate, Adine
Grate was recommended to the Board during the year and appointed
on 17 July 2013 Each of these candidates has a background
experience and skill set which will help strengthen the Board and
improve Its diversity

The Board and the Committee have noted the findings of the Davies
Review and it 15 the Committee's intention to Increase female
representation on the Board as the Company continues to follow its
orderly programmae for replacing members of the Board as they retire

The Commuttee also reviewed the independence of the Non-Executive
Directors and recommended to the Board that there be no changes to
the ndependent status of the current independent Non-Executive
Directors The Non-Executive Directors who are considered by the
Board to be independent are clearly identified on pages 34 to 35 The
Board's criteria for determining whether a Non-Executive Director 1s
ndependent are set out In the Memorandum on Corporate
Governance which can be found on the Company's corporate website

The Committee’s review took into consideration the fact that by the
date of the Company’s 2013 AGM Andy Higginson will have served on
the Board for more than nine years Prowision B11 af the Code states
that serving more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of a Non-Executive Director s independence The
Committee concluded that Andy Higginson continued to demonstrate
the essential characteristics of independence expected by the Board
and that there are no relationships or circumstances that are likely to
affect or could appear to affect, his jJudgement Andy Higginson has
agreed to serve as a member of the Board until the 2014 AGM in order
to maintain a degree of certainty and smooth handover of Board and
Committee experience and knowledge and help to faciitate the
integration of the recently appointed Independent Non-Executive
Directors to the Board

The Committee reviewed the Board s conflicts during the financial
year and concluded that Directors conflicts had been appropriately
authorised and that the process for authonsation was operating
effectively The Commuttee and the Board will continue to monitor and
review potential conflicts of interest and take action to mitigate them
as necessary
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BIGGER PICTURE COMMITTEE
Chalrman James Murdoch
Members Tracy Clarke Dave Lewis and James Murdoch

During the year the Committee has continued to provide strategic
leadership in relation te Sky's Bigger Picture programme

It has been a good year with strong progress made in each of our
chosen areas of focus - sport arts, envrcnment and skills This
progress s detalled on pages 17 to 21 and at skycom/biggerpicture

The Cormmittee 1s pleased with the focus and scale of the work being
done and believes that it 1s making a significant contributton to the
sustainability of the business and its reputation

| would like to welcorme Dave Lews to the Committee and thank Lord
Wilson who stepped down from the Committee duning the year for
his valuable contribution as a member of the Committee He has
served on the Committee since its inception and has made an
important centribution to the growth and success of the Bigger
Picture programme during that time

James Murdoch
Committee Chairman

Changes to the membership of the Committee during the year

Dave Lewis was appomnted as a member of the Bigger Picture
Cornmittee on 30 January 2013 and Lord Wilson of Dinton retired as a
member of the Bigger Picture Comemittee on 1 June 2013

The role of the Committee

The Chairman of the Bigger Picture Committee reports regularly to
the Board on its activities The main duties of the Bigger Picture
Committee include

> reviewing and approving the Bigger Picture strategy

> seeking external stakeholders views on the Bigger Picture strategy
and performance

>reviewing and approving the annual reporting of the Bigger Picture
activities,

>monitonng progress in achieving the Bigger Picture objectives and
tay marfarmance indicators,

> ensuring the resources and skills are available to implement the
Bigger Picture strategy and

> providing the Board with an cverview of the social, environmental
and ethical impacts of the Company’s activities and how they are
beng managed

Activities during the year

Qver the year, the Committee reviewed the positive progress made in
rasing consumer awareness and favourabiity through the Bigger
Picture initiatives The independent quarterly mass consumer survey
shows that 64% of customers and 43% of consumers are now aware
of the Bigger Picture tnitiatives

The Committee also cversaw a number of key developments In
relation to Sky's Bigger Picture initiatives They reviewed the new
environment targets and accompanying cornmitments that Sky has

set to 2020 that will ensure the business has fewer impacts and
better more sustamnable products year on year

They oversaw the expansion of Sky Sports Living for Sport into a third
of all secondary schools inthe UK, together with the launch into
ireland For the latter a target of also reaching one third of all
secondary schools by 2016 has been set

The Committee reviewed the progress of the second phase of Sky
Rainforest Rescue continuing to drive on the ground implementation
In the project area in Brazil, while also Increasing the activity to raise
awareness, In the UK, of rainforest deforestation in the Amazon

Having agreed the Sky Arts Ignition strategy last year this year they
oversaw the launch of projects in partnership with Tate Liverpool and
the V&A, afong with support and mentening of five emerging young
artists

Two years ago, the Committee challenged the management team to
further strengthen the Bigger Picture imibiatives and extend their
reach At therr final meeting of the year they noted the significant
progress made ta increase the positive social and environmental
impact of Sky on the UK and Ireland
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Directors’ remuneration report

Dear Shareholder

©On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present our report on Directors
remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2013 At Skywe are clear that
our executive remuneration policy i1s key to the successful execution of
our business plan, our growth strategy and the delvery of value to our
shareholders The current remuneration framework continues to serve
the Company and its shareholders well We set tough performance
targets commensurate with a growth business in 2 highly-competitive
sector Fixed pay 15 set low compared to market but achievement of
stretching targets delivers sigrificant but appropniate rewards for our
Executive Directors through the annual bonus the Long-Term Incentive
Plan and Co-Investment Plan awards This has been anoutstanding year
for Sky and we believe that our remuneration policy aligns executive
performance with shareholder value creation

Our Long-Term Incentive Plan is atypical, vesting every second year
breaking the annual vestng cycle A consequence of thisis that the value
of the remuneration delivered to executive directors will spike every other
year The Committee reviewed the vesting schedule and concluded that it
continues to support the overall strategy of the business

When taking decisions on executive pay we take account of the prevailing

, facts and arcumstances and the guidelines that are set for all employee

remuneration across the Company In this way we manage nsk and best
protect Sky and its shareholders The Remuneration Committee
continues to retain discretion to change remuneration either up or down
to appropnately reflect Company or individual performance which we
believe 1s In the best interests of our shareholders

Inwhat has remained a tough consumer environment, we sold more
products to more customers and increased the amount they spend with
us Over the year we added erganically 2.6 million new subscription
products, and with the acquisition of the 02 consumer broadband and
fixed-hne telepheny business we will fimish the year witha total base of
paid-for products of 316 milion This Is more than double the level of five
years ago As a result of our strong performance IN communications we
became the UK's second largest breadband prowider, with more than 49
million customers, achieving this miestone less than seven years after
launching broadband services We ended the year with 5.2 million
customers, up 547,000 on last year making Sky the chokce of well over
40% of households across Britain and treland

This strong operational performance combined with our continued focus
on cost control and efficlency, has translated into excellent financial
performance and increased returns to sharehiolders Total revenue
imcreased by 7%, adjusted operating profit was up by 9% to £1330 million
while adjusted basic earmings per share was 60 0 pence anincrease of
18% on last year and almost two and a half times the level of five years
ago In hight of this, the Board has proposed a full-year dvidend of 300
pence an Increase of 18% which represents the ninth consecutive year of
growth On the strength of the Group s overall performance, annual
bonuses were paid out close to maximum levels

This 1s the year in which the Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LFIP” or "Plan’)
awards made in 2010 and 20711 are due to vest, inline with our bienmal
vesting schedule Inlight of our outstanding performance, these awards
vested In full Over the three year period of the plan shareholders have
benefited from excellent performance revenue has increased by £15
billion (27%), we have added £460 milllon to operating profit (53%) and
almost doubled EPS from just over 30 pence to 60 pence per share In
addition we have returned, via didends and share buy-backs, £25 billion
to shareholders whilst our share price (using the undisturbed share price

of £5 40 preceding the proposed News Corporation (subsequently
renamed Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc) offer) has nsen by 50% As
previcusly stated our Planis atypical vesting every other year as opposed
to every 12 months, therefore total remuneration for this year will spike
when compared to last year

The Remuneration Committee has decided to nkrease the base salanes of
the CEO and the CFO by 275% and 5% respectively Thisis the first Increase
since July 201 and for Andrew Gniffith reflects an increase in responsibility
for Sky's commercial businesses The base pay of the CEO still rernains lower
than that of his predecessor in 2007 The overall pay increase for emplayees
15 2.75% ncreasing to 375% for those earning less than £50,000 per year
Indvdual pay awards range from 0% to over 5% Qver the last two years for
employees eaming less than £50,000 per year the average ncrease s 8%
considerably nexcess of average pay increases i the UK and reflectve of
the significant contnibution that all our employees make to the continued
suacess of our business Ourdisciplined approach to the management of
fixed pay and our firm behef n rewarding for performance means that the
ratio of fixed tovanalsle pay of 14% 86% for our Executive Directors
compares favourably to the average of 26%.74% for our comparator group

During the next financial year, the Committee will continue to review and
take Into acoount the revised remuneration reportingregulations provided
by the Department of Business, innovabion and Skills We continue torefine
anddevelopthe structure of our report to prowde greater darty and

transparency and welcome feedback from our shareholders onits contents

Finalty lwould ke teannounce that | will be stepping downas Charman of
the Committee mmediately after the Compiarty/’s AGM in November 2013 ana
Tracy Clarke will be taking over as Charr

Danny Rimer
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

1 Sky’s remuneration principles, policy and structure

11 What are Sky’s remuneration principles?
Four key principles underpin our Executive Director remuneration
policy

> We reward our people farrly and competitively to attract and retain
the skills we need to deliver significant growth invalue

> The level of base pay Is decided in the same way as for all
employees based onindmwidual performance and experience,
the size and scope of the role taking account of total
remuneration

> Short term operational performance Is rewarded through the
annual bonus and total remuneration i1s geared towards achieving
challenging long-term strategic objectives and provides the
opportunity to earn significant rewards for outstanding
performance

> We take care to ensure that remuneration does not inadvertently
encourage inappropriate risk taking

Our reward policy for Executive Directors how It supports the
business strategy and the terms of operation are summansed in the
table below The table reflects the policy that applied in 2012/13 and
what 1s envisaged for 2013/14 Section 13 looks at each element in
more detal and includes our approach to recrustment policy and
contracts of employment

Execution of policy 1s guided by our responsibility to shareholders the
performance of the Company and ensures far and appropriate
reward to Executive Directors and zll employees
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12 What is our remuneration policy®

AADIATT SIS

Element How it supports Sky s strategy

Annual opportunity Structure Operation and Other details

Basic salary Attracts and retains Executive Directors

[TV

> {E0-£935000
> CFO- £573 500

> Reviewed annually effective from 1July

> Set relatively iow versus our peer group (the 20
companies in the FTSE 100 above and below Sky by
market capitalsation),

> Nomcreases on ¥ July 2012

> On1July 2013 mncreases of 2 75% and 5% respectively
for the CEQ and CFO

Drives and rewards the delivery of annual
perfarmance geals

Annual bonus

> Performance measures and weightings aie reviewed
eachyear Currently three equally weighted measures.

> Operating profit growth - measures operational efficency

> Operating cash flow - shows ability to generate and
manage cash

> Product net growth - critical measure to execute
our strategy

> Stretching performance targets are set annually
Maximum konus is paid only if targets are achieved or
exceeded Bonus payouts for perfermance below the
targets set are at the discretson of the Committee

> 200% of salary (CEO)
> 150% of salary (CFO)

Encourages personal investment and
shareholder alignment, rewards long-term
focus and performance achievament

Co-Investment Plan

> Awards granted during the year
Executive Directors may invest up to half of ther
carned annual cash bonus in shares The mvestment
shares are matched on a gross basis and vest
based on three-year compound annual EPS growth
as follows
> Below RPL +3% - no matching shares vest

>150% of basic salary > RPI +3% - shares vest 1 for1
(CEQ) > RPI +6% - the shares vest in full

> N2 5% of basic salary > Forawards in 201314 the only changa te the above s
(CFO) that RPl +6% has been changed to RPI +5%

Executive directors
may invest up to half of
therr earned annual
cash bonus tn shares

The maximum annual
opportunity Is

Rewards longer-term value creation and
aligns Executive Director Interests with
those of shareholders

Long Term Incentive Plan

> 600000 shares (CEQ) Forawards vesting in 2013

> 320000 shares (CFO) 3 100% subyect to three-year operational targets of
EPS Operating cash flow and Revenue growth

Forawards in 201314

> 70% of the award 1s based on achievement of
operational targets {equally weighted on EPS
operating cash flow and revenue growth)

> 30% of the award i1s based on TSR relative to the
FTSE100

> Awards are based on number of shares this avoids
the “flow through” effect of salary ncreases when
awards are determined as a percentage of salary

> Further detarls of the vesting structure are on pages
51and 53

VR I VLIV IR

PRET

Attracts and retang Evecutneg Directors

Pens.on and other benefits

> Renafits ara broadly in inawith those for all employees

> Defined contnbution pension with cash supplement for
amounts 1n excess of the Annual Allowance and cash In heu
of employer contributions where Lifetime Allowance is
reached

> Income protection for all members of up to
two thirds of salary

> Insured death in service of up to one-third of salary
which can be taken entirely as a pension or 50% lump
sum and 50% pension or entirely as a lump sum
subject ta the lifetime allowance

> Healthcare 4xbase salary fe cover useofa
company car and 30 days holday

> CEQ recarves a cach
supplementin ieu
of pension

> CFOreceves acash
supplement in excess
of Annual Allowance

Notes

(1 Operating profit, operating cash flow EPS and revenue growth are generally defined as adjusted operating profit, adjusted operating cash flow adjusted EPS and adjusted
revenue growth However the Committee will review the measures and may amend definitions at its drscretion

(1) The performance standards for the Co-Investment Plan and the Long-Term ingentive Plan are set in the light of the business plan for each year and the longer-term stratagy

(i) The ught brk between pay and performance coupled with the Remuneration Committee practice of exerasing its judgement when determuning whether payouts are justified under Sky's
ncentives plans creates an in-built malus® provision, the Committee retams the discretion to withhold or vary downwards the vesting of shares based on it rewew of performance.
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Directors’ remuneration report

continued

We operate a policy which delivers upper quartile pay for superior
performance and sigruficantly lower pay If performance 1s below our
stretching targets Our disciplined approach to the management of
fixed pay and our firm belief in rewarding for performance means that
the ratic of fixed to variable pay of 14% 86% for our Executive
Directors compares favourably to the average of 26% 74% for our
comparator group of the 20 companies n the FTSE 100 above and
below Sky by market capitalisation The varnable components of the
package - annual bonus the Co-lrvestment Plan and the Long-Term
Incentive Plan - anly deliver significant payouts when the Executive
Directors have achieved stretching financial and strategic goals
Participation In the Co-Investment Plan 1s eptional encourages
personal long-term investment and shareholder alignment, and
rewards long-term focus and performance achievement,

The chart below shows the relative importance of the elements of
total remuneration for the Executive Directors in a year where goals
are exceeded and the variable plans payout in full

MAXIMUM REMUNERATION AVERAGE OF
EXECUT!VE DIRECTORS

I Fixed pay {14%)
Bonus (20%)
e
(51%)
‘ Co-investment (15°6)

1 3 How I1s the remuneration package structured®

The policy table on page 49 sets out the key elements of our executive
rermuneration structure of fixed pay annual and deferred pay, long
term incentives and pensions and other benefits These are described

in further detail below
rd
Basic salary

Basic salaries for the Executive Directors are reviewed annually on
1 Julyin ing with all employees When reviewing salares the
Committee takes Into account the overall employee salary review
budget the range of salary increases based on performance,
market comparisons, the performance and experience of the
individual, behaviours the size and scope of the role and the value
of total remuneration

Annual bonus plan

The annual bonus drives the achievement of annual financial and
strategic business goats The plan, which 1s the same for senior
executives 1s based on three equally-weighted measures which are
key performance indicators for our business

> adjusted operating profit
> adjusted operating cash flow
> net product growth

The annual bonus plan encourages Executive Directors to focus on
achieving dermanding performance standards that are aligned to our
growth strategy The maximum bonus may be payable ff these ’
standards are achieved or exceeded

The Committee can use its discretion to vary the bonus payment toeach
Executive Director up or down based on its assessment of factors which
it considers to be of matenial Importance in determining the final
outcome - both those which the Committee considers to beinthe
control of the Executive Directors and those which are outside of their
nfluence The Committee makes its assessment of performance in the
context of a number of arcurmstances for example

> The general economic environment and the impact on consumer
spenching power

> Sky's performance relative to its competitors

> The competitive landscape including entry and exit of competitors

> Significant over or under performance of one or more of the three
key metrics

> Personal performance of the Executive Directors

The Committes also considers Sky's underlying performance

The maximum bonus opportunitias for 2013114 are unchanged at
200% and 150% of basic salary for the CEO and CFQ respectively
An explanation of the performance outturn for 2012/13 against
the measures and the resulting payouts under the annual bonus
15 shown on pages 52 and 53

Co-Ilnvestment Plan °
The Co-Investment Plan (CIP) offers Executive Directors and invited
senior executives the opportunity to invest up to half their annual
bonus in the Company s shares and earn performance-related
matching shares inreturn for therr investment This plan s central to
our pay policy in that it encourages personal long term investment
and shareholder alignment, and rewards long-term focus and
performance achievernent Participation is voluntary but encouraged
Fixed pay Is relatively low and executives can contnbute tothe CIP to
maximise their pay opporturity

The maximum award of matching shares 1s 15 times the gross
equivalent of the Investment Matching shares vest at one times once
a threshold performance of RPI plus 3% 15 achieved and thereafter on
astraight line basis up to a maximum of 15 times at RP plus 5% (2013
scheme) or 6% (2012 scheme) We expect 2013 awards to be granted in
August 2013 Matching shares vest after three years only if three-year
EPS growth exceeds the mimimum levels of average annual growth

The table below sets out performance thresholds under the 2012
scheme
EPS growth performance

{annual average growth
over three-year term)

Match awarded
(number of matching shares awarded
per deferred share*)

Less than RPI+3% 420
RPI +3% 10
RPl +4% . 17
RPI+5% 133
RP1+6% 15
Morethan RPl +6% 15

Straight-line interpolation between points

*1e onan equivalent gross basis
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Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP")

We cperate an LTIP for our Executive Directors and other senior
executives to reward long-term focus and performance achievement
which in turn drives the growth strategy of the business delivering
long-term value creation for shareholders

The key features of the Plan are as follows

> Awards of shares are made annually at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee

>The grants are awarded as a number of shares rather than as a
percentage of salary or monetary value in order to provide greater
alignment with shareholders The value of an Executives award 1s
therefore linked to the share price and avoids the perverse effect of
a fail in the share price resulting in an increase in the number of
shares under award It also avoids the compounding effect on LTIP
awards as aresult of Increases in basic salaries

> The Committee reviews the number of shares to be granted to the
Executive Directors annually and retains discretion to vary the
number awarded The number of shares granted annually has
remained unchanged over the past five years, with the exception of
201 when additional awards were made due to the potential News
Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc}
bicd

> The LTIP cperates over a three-year performance cycle Unlike
aother companies which grant the full award at the start of year
one, we make the award in two tranches one at the beginning of
the cycle and one in the second year Awards are made annually
but there is a two year interval between vesting dates rather than
the 12 months that is typical of the UK market The LTIP awards for
the performance period July 2010 to fune 2013 vest in July 2013
The next vesting, for the performance period July 2012 to June
2015 will be in July 2015 In plans with annual vesting, realised
awards year-on-year are broadly similar Our approach breaks
the annual vesting cycle and leads te significant variation in
realised pay with zero vesting in one year followed by a large
vesting the followng year

> To ensure an cutcome that 1s far to both shareholders and
executives, the Committee has discretion to determine haw shares
should be treated in the event of change of control

Performance measures for 2012/13 awards

The Committee regularly reviews the measures under the LTIP to
ensure they align to the strategic objectives of the business The
performance measures for the 2012 and 2013 awards which may vest
in 2015 are as follows

Operational targets - 70% of the award
There are three equally weighted operational performance measures
each of which 1s a key indicator of Sky's continued success

> EPS growth measures our “bottom ine’ performance

> Operating cash flow measures our ability to generate and manage
cash

> Ravenue growth key to our growth strategy

Points are awarded for performance on the three operational
measures as follows

> For EPS, two points are awarded for growth of RPI +3% per year with
the maximum ten points awarded for RPl +5% per year or more

> For operating cash flow and revenue growth, one point I1s awarded
for 75% achrevement of “target” on a shiding scale up to ten points
for 105% or mere

> One peint equates to 10% of the award vesting, with maximum
vesting for 21 points or more vesting on a straight-line basis
between these points

Performance measures for the period fuly 2012 to June 2015 are
shown in further detail In the table below

Average EPS growth Qperating cash flow Revenue growth

Performance Performance

Performance Points achieved Paints achieved Points

achieved awarded  (%oftarget) awarded (%oftarget) awarded
105% N 105%

RPI+5% pa 10 or more 10 or mere 10

RPI+45%pa 8 100% 8 100% 8

RPI+4% pa 6 95% 6 95% 6

RPI+35%pa 4 90% 4 Q0% 4

RPI+3% pa 2 85% 2 85% 2

Less than

RPi+3% pa o] 75% i 75% 1
Less than Lessthan

/5% 8] 75% 0

The top end of the EPS growth range was set for awards in 2012 and
2013 at RPI +5% pa This 1s equivalent to growth in earnings of 26%
over three years If RPI 1s 3% a year This level of growth in earnings was
set at alevel which exceeded consensus research analysts estimates

Relative TSR performance - 30% of the award

Relative TSR was reintroduced as a measure for the 2012 and 2013
awards having been excluded in the awards made in 2010 and 201
which vest i July 2013 due to the impact on our share price of the
possible bid from News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-
First Century Fox Inc) The Company’s TSR performance 1s measured
relative to the TSR of the constituents of the FTSE 100 If the
Company's TSR perforrmance 1s below median the TSR element of the
award lapses in full For median performance 10% of an award may

vest, with the full 30% vesting for upper quartile performance Vesting

18 on a straight-line basis between these points as shown below

TSR vesting schedule

Payout
(% of grant)

1 L 1 1 A J

Beiow 50 &5 &0 BS 0 ke &0
Med :n

Final TSR rank (%)

TSR cakeulations are conducted independently by Towers Watson
appointed as advisors tothe Committee In 2013
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Directors’ remuneration report

contmued

Pension and other benefits

We operate a defined contribution plan for all eligible employees,
the BSkyB Pension Plan (' Pension Plan ) The Comparny has ne legacy
defined benefit plans With effect from 1July 2073 all eligible
employees are automatically enrolled into the Pension Plan

Individuals whose pension contributions exceed the Annual Allowance
or the Lifetime Allowance for pension tax relief are paid a cash
supplement Jeremy Darroch became a deferred member of the
Pension Plan on 1 July 2012 on reaching the Lifetime Allowance He was
paid a cash supplement during the year of £158,564 in lieu of pension
contributions Andrew Griffith received a cash supplement of £36,986
in lieu of pension contributions N excess of the Annual Allowance

The Pension Plan has income protection of up to two-thirds salary
and insured death In service of up to one-third salary which can be
taken entirely as a pension, or 50% lump sum and 50% pension, or
entirely as & lump sum subject to the Iifetime allowance The Pension
Plan also has Life Assurance cover up to two times for employees who
are auto-enrolled, increasing to four times for members who joined
prior to 1 July 2013 and fer aute enrolled members who choose to
Increase their contributicns All employees are eligible to receve
private medical Insurance In addition the Executive Directors have the
use of acompany car

1 4 What other share schemes do we operate?

Managemant Long-Term Incentive Plan ("MLTIP")

The Company also operates a MLTIP for selected employees excluding
the Executive Directors and senior executives who partiapate in the
LTIP Awards under this scheme are made at the discretion of the CEQ,
within the parameters agreed with the Remuneration Committee The
MLTIP mirrors the LTIP in designin order to ensure alignment between
participants to both schemes

Executive Share Option Schemes (“Executive Schemes”)

Sky has in place Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Option
Schemes under HMRC guidelines No options have been granted
since 2004

Sharesave Scheme

The Sharesave Scheme Is open to UK and Insh employees Options are
normally exercisable after either three or five years from the date of
grant The price at which options are offered s not less than 80% of
the middle-market price on the dealing day immediately preceding the
date of nvitation It is the policy of the Company to make an invitation
to employees to participate In the scheme following the announcement
of the year-end results Currently approximately 6100 employees
participate in these schemes

1 5 What are the key elements of the Executive Directors’ service
contracts?

Executive Diractors service contracts contain a maximum notice
period of one year and a non-compete provision of one year Inthe
event of termination Executive Directors may be entitled to up to one
year's salary and benefits which may be payable in lieu of notice by
the Company No bonus is payable inrespect of any notice period not
worked by the individual In the event of termination “for cause’ salary
and benefits would be payable only up to the date of termination

Jeremy Darrochs Initial service contract on appointment as CFO
commenced on 16 August 2004 The contract was revised on’7
December 2007 when he became CEQ Andrew Griffith's service
contract was revised on 7 April 2008 when he was appointed CFO

Copies of the Executive Directors service contracts are available for
inspection dunng mermal business hours at the Company’s registered
office on any business day and will be available at the place where the
AGM s being held from 15 minutes prior to and during the meeting

1 6 Do the Executive Directors have any external appointments?
Outside appointments for Executive Directors are considered by the
Corporate Governance & Nominattons Commttee to ensure they
would not cause a conflict of interest and if not are then approved by
the Chairman on behalf of the Board It 1s the Company’s policy that
remuneration earned from such appointments may be retained by the
ndmdual During the year ended 30 June 2013 Jererny Darrach served
as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
Marks and Spencer Group plc and earned £85 000 Jeremy stepped
down from both appointments on 19 June 2013

2 Performance and awards

As shown on pages 4 and 5, we delivered excellent financial results ina
tough consumer environment Customers continue torecognise the
great value we offer by choasing Sky over other providers and buying
more services from us

Against this background we set out below the outcomes far the key
elements of our remuneration programmes

21 Basic Salary

The Remuneration Committee has decided to increase the base
salaries of the CEQ by 2 75% and the CFQ by 5%, reflecting his increase
inresponsibilites This s therr first Increase since July 20M and s in
the context of an overall pay increase for employees of 2 75%
Increasing to 3 75% for those earning less than £50 000 per year Over
the last two years for employees earning less than £50,000 per year
the typical increase 1s 8%, considerably in excess of average pay
Increases N the UK and reflective of the significant contribution that
our employees make to the continued success of our busingss

2 2 Annual bonus payouts

Based on our relative performance against tha key bonus measures
and competition the Committee has deaided to award near maximum
bonus payouts of 195% of base salary for the CEQ and 145% for the
CFQ, which compared to maximum possible payouts of 200% and
150% respectively

2 3 Co-Investment Plan

The Remuneration Committee has agreed that the matching shares
under the CIPwill vest in full on 31 August 2013 The average adjusted
EPS growth rate of 23% per year over the three-year period exceeds
the thresheld for maximum vesting Details of the performance
targets which apply are included in the policy section on pages 50
and 51

Outstanding awards under this plan are shown in the takle on page 56
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2 4 LTIP - vesting and awards

Performance measures for 2010/11 awards

The awards made 1n 2010 and 2071 are dependent on cperational
performance measures TSR was not included as a performance
measure given the Company’s share price at the tirme of grant being
materally impacted by the possible News Corporation (subsequently
renamed Twenty-First Century Fox Inc)bid Points have been
awarded for performance on three operational measures as follows

Average EPS growth Operating cash flow Revenue growth
Performance Performance
Perfermance Points achieved Paints achieved Points
achieved awarded {(%oftarget) awarded (% oftargety awarded
105% 105%
RP +8%pa 10 or more 10 ar mare 10
RA+7% pa 8 100% 8 100% 8
RPl+6% pa 6 95% [ 95% &
RPI+5% pa 4 90% 4 90% 4
RPl+4% pa 2 85% 2 85% 2
RP +3%pa 1 75% 1 75% 1
Less than Less than Less than
RPI+3% pa 0 75% 0 75% G
Actual points awarded
Average EPS growth Operating Cash Flow Revenue growth
Actual points awarded Actual points awarded Actual points awarded
1600 1000 807

Over the three-year penod of the plan, shareholders have benefited
from excellent performance, almost doubling of EPS from just over 30
pence to 60 pence per share returning via dividends and share
buy-backs £2 5 billion to shareholders and the share price nising by
50% We are delighted that Company performance has been
exceptional creating significant shareholder value and resulting in
100% vesting for LTIP awards made in 2010 and 201! based cn the
number of points awarded exceeding 21 The vesting date 1s 29 July
2013

2013 Award

The Committee has agreed that Jeremy Darroch will be granted an
award of 600,000 shares and Andrew Griffith will be granted an
award of 320 000 shares on 26 July 2013 This 1s the Year 2 award of
the 2012-2015 Plan and is the same number of shares as was awarded
at the start of the performance period in 2012 These awards will
normally vest on 26 July 2015 subject to the performanca measures
being achieved

The operational performance conditions of the LTIP award in 2013 will
remain the same as for those made 1n 2011 and 2012 These are EPS
growth, operating cash flow and revenue growth and 70% of the
award will vest dependent on these measures (see page 51) The EPS
growth target for the maximum award,of 10 points has been set at
RPH5% pa (equivalent to 26% growth in earnings over three years If
RPl1s 3% p a) This level of growth In earnings was set at a level which
exceeds consensus research analysts’ estimates

In addition, 30% of the award will vest dependent on relative TSR
performance please refer to page 51

2 5TSR performance

The graph below shows the Company's TSR for the six years to

30 June 2013 measured as the value of a £100 holding In ordinary
shares at the start of the period The performance 1s shown relative to

the FTSE 100 and FTSE Media 350 indices which represent the broad
market indices within which Sky shares are traded
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2 6 Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Non-Executive Directors’ fees are reviewed annually The current fees
are set out in the table below

Fee category (per annum) 2013114 2012113

£ £
Chairman 462 375 450000
Deputy Chairman 32,000 30000
Basic fee 6C 000 58000
Committee Chalrman 25000 25000
Committee Members 10000 10000
Senior independent Director 40000 40000

(i) Therole of Deputy Charrman is not required to be filled at the present time

The Committee has agread to increase the Chairmanss fee by 275%
and Non-Executive Directors’ ("NED') basic fees to £60 000 per
annum effective TJuly 2013 Each NED 1s engaged by the Company for
an initial term of three years In accerdance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code all Directors submit themselves for annual
reappointment

2 7 Chairman and Non-Executive Director letters of appointment

Date of letter of appointment

Nick Ferguson 3Aprnl 2012
Chase Carey 30 January 2013
Tracy Clarke 1 June 2012
David DeVoe 15 December 2004
Martin Gilbert 25 November 2011
Adine Grate ! 17 duly 2073
Andy Higginson 1September 2004
Dave Lewis 16 November 2012
James Murdoch 7 December 2007
Matthieu Pigasse 29 November 2011
Danny Rimer 7 April 2008
Arthur Siskind 19 November 1991
Andy Sukawaty 1Jung 2013

2 8 Share ownership

Sky has no formal share ownership requirement but, as the Directors
interests table shows in section 29, the Executive Directors have both
increased their level of share holdings in the Company during the year
The holdings for the CEO and CFO are 354,575 and 114,452
respectively, the equivalent on 30 June 2013 of holdings with avalue
of three (3x) tmes salary and one and a half (15) times salary
respectively based on the close share price of £792 on 28 June 2013
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contmnued

2 9 Directors’ interests
The Company encourages the Non-Executive Directors to buitd up a
holding in the Company's shares and has introduced a facihty wheraby
Non-Executive Directors can elect to receive a portion of their fees in
BSkyB shares Shares are purchased on a monthly basis in the market
The Directors who are deemed to be affillated with Twenty-First
Century Fox Inc (formerly known as News Corporation) James
Murdoch, Chase Carey David DeVoe and Arthur Siskind, are not
permitted to participate in this facility This s due to the fact that
under Rule 9 of the Takeover Code they would be deemed to be acting
in concert with Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc if they were to purchase
shares in the Company and this would place Twenty-First Century Fox
Inc under an chhgation to make a mandatory offer for all of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company

The mterests of all serving Directors in the ordinary share capital of
the Company during the year were

At 30 June At 20 June

2013 2012
Jeremy Darroch 354575 296,157
Andrew Griffith 14 452 87533
Chase Carey® - -
Tracy Clarke 895 -
Dawvict Devoe - -
Nick Ferguson 2128 14,966
Martun Gilbert 2281 971
Andy Higginson 6571 5639
Dave Lews™ 705 -
James Murdoch - -
Maithieu Pigasse 2477 1058
Danny Rimer 21022 15836
Arthur Siskind - -
Andy Sukawaty® a5 -

3 2 Remuneration Committee activities

Date Key issues discussed

July 2012 Performance outturn for 201213 bonus & LTIP cnteria
2010413

Performance measures and target settung for LTIP
2245

Performance measures and target setting for 201213
bonus

Employee salary review

Pay review - CEQ & CFO

CEQ s pension arrangements

Rewtew of draft Report on Directors remuneration

December Remuneration consultancy tender process
2012
May 2013 Benchmarking analysis = Executive Directors total

package review vs the market

Governance and executive pay Update on the BIS
requirements and the general executive pay
environment,

Performance update - Bonus, LTiP and Co-Investment Plan

(1) Davatews Chase Carey and Andy Sukawaty were appointed respectwely tothe
Board on 16 Novemnber 2012 30 January 2013 and 1June 2013

Adine Grate was appointed on 17 July 2013 and does not have any
beneficial holdings in the Company No cther Director held any
interest In the share capital, ncluding options, of the Company or of
any subsidiary of the Company during the year All interests at the
date shown are beneficial and there have been no changes between
1 July and 25 July 2013

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the share price traded within the
range of 6775and 899 5 pence per share The middle-market closing
price on the last trading day of the financial year was 792 pence

3 Governance

31 Membership of the Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Committee chared by Danny
Rimer met three times Tracy Clarke Nsck Ferguson, Martin Gilbert and
Andy Sukawaty are members of the Committee On 1November 2012,
Jacques Nasser retired from the Board and as a member of the
Committee Andy Sukawaty joined the Committee on 11 June 2013
Attendance dunng the year 1s show on page 39

The full terms of reference for the Committee are avallable on the
Company’s corporate website

June 2013 Directors Remuneration Report
Performance update
Discussion on pay prinaples

3 3 Advisors to the Remuneration Committee

Following a competitive tender process in December 2012 the
Committee appointed Towers Watson in place of New Bridge Street as
independent advisors to the Committee Towers Watson provide a
range of other services to Sky relating to pensions Prior tothat New
Bridge Street @n Aon Hewitt company) acted as independent
advisors to the Committee, and did not have any other role within the
Company The Remuneration Committee 15 satisfied that the advice it
receives on Executive Director remuneration 1s independent and
obyective Terms of reference have been agreed and will be monitored
througheut the appointment Towers Watson subscribes tothe
Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of Cenduct in relation to
executive remuneration The Code clanfies the scope and conduct of
the rcle of remuneration consultants when advising UK isted
companles

The Chief Executive and the Director for People provide information
and advice and attend meetings as required The Committee s also
supported by the Company Secretary Finance and Human Resources
functions Noindmduals are involved 1n the decision in relation to
their own remuneratfon

3 4 interaction with shareholders

We are commutted to engaging with our shareholders and every year Sky
holds a meeting to talk about remuneration 1ssues with the Company's
major shareholders and institutional Investor groups We find that this
enables us totake shareholders’ views fully into account when making
decisions about remuneration At last year's AGM 88 6% of shareholders
voted in favour of our remunerationreport

During the year, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee also
held meetings with institutional sharehelders and analysts to discuss
views on the Company's remuneration policy
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4 Directors’ remuneration in 2012113 (audited)

The emoluments of the Directors for the year ended 30 June 2013 are shown below g
[
Total Total Total -
emoluments empluments  emoluments 2
before Including including z
Salary and Bonus pension  Employer's pension pansion
fees scheme Benefits 2013 pensions’! 2013 2012
£ £ E E £ £ £
Executive
Jeremy Darroch 935000 1823250 175 686" 2933936 - 2933936 2883119
Andrew Gniffith 573500 831575 53090 1458165 33333 1491498 1521050
Non-Executive
Nick Ferguson 450000 - - 450000 - 45000 230657
Chase Carey™ 24612 - - 26612 - 24612 -
Tracy Clarke 78000 - - 78000 - 78000 4413
Dawvid DeVoe 58000 - - 58 000 - 58,000 56 500
Dave Lews™ 45312 - - 45 312 - 45312 -
Marten Gilbert 94 666 - - 94 666 - 94666 356N
Andy Higginson 151333 - - 151333 - 151,333 13179
James Murdoch 93000 - - 93000 - 93000 89 417
Matthieu Pigasse ©8000 - - 68000 - 68000 35060
Danny Rimer 103,833 - - 103,833 - 103833 73167
Arthur Siskind 68000 - - 68000 - 68000 66500
Andy Sukawaty™? 5,666 - - 5666 - 5666 -
Thomas Mockridge™? 51,333 - - 51333 - 51,333 63808
Jacques Nasser™ 22956 - - 22956 - 22956 67108
Lord Wilson of Dinton® 73583 - - 73583 - 73583 97333
Total emoluments 2896794 2654825 228776 57803585 33333 5813728 5583913~

Thus table is qudited

Notes

() Jeremy Darroch was given a pension cash supplement of £158 564 and Andrew Griffith was given a pension cash supplement of £36,986 during the financial year See page 52
for further information Dunng the year Jeremy Darroch received a taxable benafit of £16 018 regarding use of a company car

() Jeremy Darroch s & deferred member of the Pension Plan having reached his ifetime allowance effective 1 July 2012

(1) Thomas Mockndge resigned from the Board and as Deputy Chairman on 30 January 2013 Chase Carey was apponted on 30 January 2013

{v) JacquesNasserreured from the Board and its Committees an 1 November 2012

) LordWilsonof Dinton retired from the Board and its Committeas on 1.June 2013

(v) Dave Lews was appointed 1o the Board on 16 November 2012 and became a member of the Audit Committee and the Bigger Picture Committee on 30 January 2013 and a
member of the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee on 11 June 2013

) Andy Sukawaty was appointed to the Board on 1June 2013 and became a member of the Remuneration Committee an il June 2013

{vn1) Total emoluments for the year ended 30 June 2012 includes former Directors of the Compary who ne longer serve as Directors

Wt e s Y e s

Share schemes

Long-Term Incentive Plan

|

Mumber of shares under award Market Market

At Granted Exercised Lapsed At price price Date

30 June during during during 30 June at date Exercise at date Cateof fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year the year theyear 2013 ofaward pnce of exercse Award exercisable Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 200000 - 200000 - - £4543 ml E70612% 310708 310711 310716
380000 - 3B0000Q - - £5463 nl £706112% 260809 310711 310716
600000 - - - 600000 £7010 nia nfa 290710 290713 290718
Q00000 - - - 900000 £7120 nfa nfa 290711 290713 290718
- 6000060 - - 600000 E7065 n/a nfa 260712 260715 260720
Andrew Gnffith 320000 - - - 320000 £7110 nja nfa 290710 290713 290718
455000 - - - 455000 £7120 nfa nfa 290711 290713 290718
- 320000 - ~ 320000 E7065 nla nfa 260712 260715 260720

This tabie 1s audited

Notes

(8) 570000 LTIP awards were exercised and subsequently disposed of at £706112 per share with the remaining 10 000 sold at £7 075 pence per share
() The aggregate value received by the Directors on exercise of the LTIP befare tax was £4 095 588 (2012 £8 692 338)

(1) See performance conditions for LTIF on pages 51and 53

(w) Following the vesting of awards participants costinuing te be employed by the Company have five years to exerose ther award
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Directors’ remuneration report

continued

Co-Investment Plan

Details of all outstanding awards held under the Co-Investment Plan are shown below

Number of shares under award Market Market

At Granted Exercised At price price Date

30 June dunng dunng 30 June at date Exercise at date Dateof fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year the year 2013 of award price  ofexercise Award exercisable Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 204 425 - - 204425 £5405 nja nfa 270809 270812 270817
18349357 - - 183935 £7075 na nfa 31081 310813 310818
2077299 - - 207729 £6 460 nla nfa 300811 300814 300819
- 184149 - 184149 £7640 nfa nfa 280812 280815 280820
Andrew Griffith 75506 - 75 506™ - £5405 nfa E76161 270809 270812 270B1V7
69672 - - 69672 £7075 nfa nfa 310810 310813 310818
95793% | - - 95793 £6 480 nfa nfla 300811 300814 300819
- 84,7139 - B4 713 £7640 n/a nfa 280812 280815 280820

This table 15 eudited

Notes
See performance conditions for the Co-Investment Plan on page 50

(a) The aggregate value received by Andrew Griffith on exercise of the CiP before tax was £575 061 (2012 nil)

() Jeremy Darrochholds 59 662 shares as a match under thisawvard
(n) Jererny Darroch holds 66 0V shares as a match under this award
(u) Jeremy Darroch holds 58 518 shares as a match under this award
(v} Andrew Gnffith helds 22 601shares as a match under this award
) Andrew Griffith holds 30 440 shares as a mateh under this award
(v} Andrew Griffith holds 26 919 shares as a match under this award

Executive Share Options

The Company has not made any Executive Share Option awards since 2004

Detalls of all outstanding options held under the Executive Schermnes are shown below

Number of shares under award

Market
At Granted  Exercised At price Date
30 June during dunng 30 June Exercise atdate fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year the year 2013 price ofexergse  exercisable  Expiry date
Andrew Griffith 44184 - - 44184 £662 nla 010907 010913
818" - - 19819 £503 nfa 060808 060814

This table s audited

Note

(0 Theseoptions vested following the achievernent of the performance targat, being the growth in Sky's EP3 being equal te or greater than the inerease in RPI plus 3% per annum

Sharesave Scheme Options

Details of all outstanding awards held under the Sharesave Scheme are shown below

Number of shares under award

Market
At Granted  Exerased At price Date
30 June during dunng 30 June Exercise atdate fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year the year 2013 price of exercise exercisable Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 3591 - - 3,591 £433 nfa 010215 o815
Andrew Griffith 1771 - - 1771 £508 nfa 010215 010815

This tatle is audited

Options uneer the Company’s Sharesave Scheme are nct subject to performance conditions as they are made under a UK HMRC tax approved

scheme

86 Bnitish Sky Broadcasting Group plc




Annual Report 2013 Directors’ report - Governance

Other governance and statutory disclosures

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company to set out In the
Directors Report a far review of the business of the Group duning the
financial year ended 30 June 2013 including an analysis of the positton of
the Group at the end of the financial year, and a desaiption of the
principal nisks and uncertainties facing the Group (known as a "Business
Review™). The purpose of the Business Review 1s to enable shareho'ders
to assess how the Directors have performed therr duty under section 172
of the Companies Act 2006

The information that fulfils the Business Review requirements can be
found in the following sections of the Directors’ Report

> Chief Executve Officer’s statement on pages 4 to 6

> Our performance KPls on pages 8to 9 -

> Review of our business on pages 10 to 23

> Financial and operating review on pages 28 to 33

> Principal nsks and uncertainties that face the Group are described
on pages 24 to 27

> Significant trends that could have a mateniai effect on the
performance of the Group are described on page 32

> People matters and community and environmental matters are
described on pages 17 to 23

Pages 4 to 59 inclusive (together with the sections incorporated by
reference) consist of a Directors Report that has been drawn up and
presented in accordance with and in reliance upon applicable English
company law and the habilities of the Directors in connection with
that report shall be subject to the limitations and restrictions
provided by the law

Principal activitias

Bnitish Sky Broadcasting Group plc 1s the holding company of the
Bntish Sky Broadcasting group of companies The Group's principal
activities are detailed in the Review of our business on pages 10 1o 23

Results and dividends

The profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 was £979 million (2012
£306 million) The Directors recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2013 of 19 0 pence per ordinary share which, together
with the interim dividend of 11 & pence paid to shareholders on

23 Apnl 2013, will make a total dividend for the year of 30 0 pence
(2012 2540 pence) Subject to approval at the AGM, the final dvidend
will be paid on 6 December 2013 to sharehc!ders appearing on the
register at the close of business on 15 Novemnber 2013

Share caprtal

The Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 30 June 2013
comprised one class of ordinary shares All of the 1ssued ordinary
shares are fully paid and rank equally in all respects Further details of
the Company’s share capital 1s disclosed in notes 23 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements

Interests in voting rights

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the UK Uisting
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTRs) 1s published on
a Regulatory Information Service and on the Company’s website As at
30 June 2013 the Company had been notified under DTRS of the
following significant holdings of voting rights in 1ts shares

Amount  Percent of

Identity of perseon or group owned class
215t Century Fox UK Nominees Limited 623 817229 3914
BlackRock, Inc? 88682765 506
The Capital Group Companies Inct) 63 236287 3967
(0 Direct holding which rs subject torestnctions on its voting rights (please see "voting

rights” below)
() Indrect holding,

There have been no changes to the above significant holdings
between 1 July and 25 July 2013

At 25 July 2013, 39 14% of the Company’s shares are held by 21st
Century Fox UK Nominees Limited a company incorporated under the
laws of England and Wales which s an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc As a result of Rupert
Murdoch’s ability to appoint certain memkbers of the Board of
Directors of the corporate trustee of the Murdoch Family Trust which
beneficially owns less than 1% of Twenty-First Century Fox Inc's Class
A Common Stock and 38 4% of its Class B Common Stock Rupert
Murdoch may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the shares
beneficially owned by the Murdoch Family Trust Rupert Murdoch
however, disclaims any beneficial ownership of those shares Also,
Rupert Murdochreports benefically ownership of less than 1% of
Twenty-First Century Fox Inc s Class A Commen Stock and an
additional 1 0% of its Class B Common Stock Thus, Rupert Murdoch
may be deemed to beneficially own in the aggregate less than 1% of
Twenty-First Century Fox Inc s Class A Common Stock and 39 74% of
1ts Class B Common Stack, atthough, as stated above Rupert Murdoch
disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Twenty-First Century
Fox, Ingc beneficially owned by the Murdoch Family Trust

The Employee Share Ownership Plan (‘ESOP ) was established to
satisfy awards made to parucipants of the Company's employee
share plans The trustees of the ESOP have waived the nght to
dividends payable In respect of the shares held by It, except to the
extent of 0 0001% of the dividend payable on each share At 30 June
2013 the ESOP had an interest in 20527 423 of the Company’s
ordinary shares The Trustees whoare independent of the Company
have full discretion on how they vote the ordinary shares held by

the ESOP

Voting rights

The Company's Articles of Association provide that subject toany
rights or restrictions attached to any shares ona show of hands
every member present In person or by proxy shall have one vote and
on a polt every member shall have one vote for every share of which he
15 & holder On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy
or (in the case of a corporate member) by a duly authorsed
representative

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc §7
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Other governance and statutory disclosures

continued

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of um Ifa
member appoints more than one proxy he must specify the number
of shares which each proxy Is entitled to exerase rights over Aproxy
need not be a shareholder of the Company Holders of the Company’s
ordinary shares do not have curnulative voting rights Avoting
agresment dated 21 September 2005 was entered into between the
Company, BSkyB Holdco In¢, Twenty-First Century Fox Inc and

21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited which became unconditional
on 4 November 2005 and caps 2ist Century Fox UK Nominees
Limited!'s voting nghts at any general meeting at 3719% The provisions
of the voting agreement cease to apply on the first to occur ofa
number of circumstances which inciude the date on whuch a general
offer 1s made by an independent person (as defined in the voting
agreement) for the ordinary share capital of the Company

Restrictions on transfer of securities

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer of securities in the
Company which 1s governed by the Articles of Association and
prevalling legislation, nor 15 the Company awara of any agreements
between holders of securities that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities or that may result In restrictions on voting nghts

Variation of rights

Subject to the Companies Act 2006 nights attached to any class of
shares may be varied with the consent inwrniting of the holders of
three-quarters in norninal value of the 1ssued shares of the ¢lass or
with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general
meeting of the shareholders

Directors’ powers in relation to the Company issuing and buying
back its own shares

The Drrectors were granted authority at the 2012 AGM to allot relevant
securities up to a nominal amount of £273,000 000 This authority wilt
apply until the conclusion of this years AGM An ordinary resolution to
provide the Directors’ with an authority 1o aliot relevant secunties up
to a nominal amount of £262 000 000 wil be propesed at the 2013
AGM A special resolution wil also be propased to renew the Directors
powers to make non-pre-emptive 1ssues for cash inconnection with
rights 1ssues and otherwise up to a nominal amount of £39 000,000

0On 29 November 2011, at the Company's AGM the Company was
granted the authority to return £750 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme This authority was subject to an
agreement between the Company and Twenty-First Century Fox Inc
(and others) dated 28 July 2011 whereby following any market
purchases of shares by the Company Twenty-First Cantury Fox tnc
would sell to the Company sufficient shares to maintain its
percentage shareholding at the same level as applied prior to those
market purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
would be the price payable by the Company i respect of the relevant
market purchases (the *2011 Share Buy-back Agreement b)

AL the Company’s AGM on 1 Movember 2012, the Comipany was granted
the authority to return a further £500 mullion of capital to
shareholders via a share buy-back programme This authority was
subject to an agreement between Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc {and
others) dated 28 July 2012 on substantially the same terms as the
2011 Share Buy-back Agreement

On 25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return a further ES00 milion of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme Shareholder approvals will be sought at the
Company’s AGM on 22 November 2013 The Company has entered INto
an agreement with Twenty-First Century Fox Inc. (and others) under
substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement
The agreement i1s conditional on the appropriate shareholder
approvals being granted The effect of the agreement 1s to provide
that there will be no change in Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc's
economic or vobing Interests in the Company as a result of the share
buy-hack programme

Articles of association

The Company’s Articles of Association may only be amended by
special resolution at a general meeting of shareholders

Board of Directors

The names and biographical details of the Directors of the Company
are given on pages 34 and 35

The Directors’ interests inthe ordinary shares and options of the
Company are disclosed within the report on Directors remuneratton
on pages 54 1056

Appointment and retiremant of Directors

The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more Directors
Any such Directer shall hold office enly until the next AGM and shall
then be eligibte for reappaintment by the Company’s shareholders At
the Company’s 2013 AGM all current Executive and Non-Executive
Directors will retire and offer themselves for reappointment In
ecomplhance with the Code

Alternate Directors

A Director may appaint any other Director or any other persontoact
as his Alternate An Alternate Director shall be entitled to receive
rotice of and attend meetings of the Directors and committees of
Directors of which his appainter i1s @ memnber and not able to attend
The Alternate Director shall be entitled to vote at such meetings and
generally perform all the functions of his appointer as a Director in his
abserce

On the resignation of the appointer for any reason the Alternate
Director shall cease to be an Alternate Director The appointer may
also remove his Alternate Director by notice to the Company Searetary
signed by the appointer revoking the appointment An Alternate
Director shall not be entitled to fees for his service as an Alternate
Director

Chase Carey, David DeVoe, Arthur Siskind and James Murdoch have
appomnted each of the cthers to act as their Alternate Director
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Significant agreements

Details of any significant agreements that take effect alter or
terminate on a change of control of the Company are disclosed inthe
review of the business on pages 15to 17

Payment policy

The policy of the Group Is to agree terms of payment with suppliers
prior to entering Into & contractual relationship Inthe absence of a
specific agreement 1tis the policy of the Group to pay suppliers in
accordance with its standard payment terms of 45 days The Group
had below 45 days purchases outstanding at 30 June 2013 (2012
below 45 days), based on the total amount invoiced by non-
programme trade suppliers durnng the year ended 30 June 20713
Programme crediters include significant balances which are not yet
contractually due Inrespect of amounits both contractually due and
invoiced the outstanding number of days’ purchases I1s below 45 days
(2012 below 45 days)

Fimancial instruments

Detalls of the Groups use of financial Instruments together with
information on our financial risk management abjectives and policies
and our exposure to financial risks can be found in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements

Charitable contributions through cur community and
environmental activities

During the financial year we contributed £5 788,768 to chanties for
the purpose of supporting our Initiatives that focus on being a
responsible business and on improving lives through sport,
championing creativity and opening up the arts helping young people
build skills for a changing world and taking action to protect the
environment

These contributions were made to our key charity partners including
the National Film and Television School, the Media Trust Youth Sport
Trust British Cycling, WWF Global Action Plan, Ideas Tap, Tate Liverpool
and the Victoria and Albert Museum We also supported a number of
charrties through our employee matched fundraising and payroll
giving activities and our volunteenng initiatives

An overview of our approach to bulding a sustainable business which
we call seeing the bigger picture, 1s provided on pages 17 to 21 of the
Directors report - Business review In addition we have published our
Seeing the bigger picture Summary Report 2013 which outhnes our
wision, Initiatives and performance over the year n this we quantify
our total investment for commurity benefit using the Lendon
Benchmarking Group medel In-depth infermation can also be found
at sky com/biggerpicture ~

Polrtical contributions

Political contributions of the Group 1n the UK during 2013 amounted
to il (2012 nl}

Going concern

The Group s business activities together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position are set out
In the review of our business on pages 10 to 23 The financial position
of the Group its cash flows and hiquidity position are described in the
financial and cperating review on pages 28 to 33 In addition, notes 20
to 22 to the consolidated financial statements include details of the
Groups treasury activties long term funding arrangements, financial
Instrurments and hedging activities and exposure to financal nisk

As set out above, the Group has sufficient financial resources which
together with internally generated cash flows, will continue te provide
sufficient sources of lquidity to fund 1ts current operations including
Its contractuai and commercial commitments as set out on pages 99
to 100 its approved capital expenditure and any proposed dividends
and the Group s well placed to manage its business risks successfully,
despite the current economic outlook

After making enquiries the Directors have formed the jJudgement, at
the time of approving the consolidated financial statements that
there 1s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue i operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial staterments

Directors’ responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Directors are set out on page 60

Disclosure of information to auditors

In accordance with the prowisions of section 418 of the Companies Act
2006, each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the
date of approval of this report confirms that

> sofar as the Director 1s aware there Is no relevant audit information
(as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's
auditor 1s unaware and

> the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information (as defined) and to establish that the Company’s
auditor ts aware of that information

Audrtors -

Celotte LLP the auditors of the Company, have expressed ther
willingness to continue in office Aresolution to reappoint them as the
Company's auditors and to authorise the Directors to determine therr
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM to be held at the Edinburgh
Interrational Conference Centre, The Exchange Edinburgh EH3 8EE on
22 November 2013 at 11 00am 15 avalable for download from the
Company’s corporate website at skycom/corporate

By order of the Board

Chris Taylor
Company Secretary
25 huly 2013
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the
financial statements In accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that faw the Directors are required to
prepara the Group financial statements In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation and have also
chosen to prepare the parent Company financial statements under
IFRSs as adopted by the EU Under Company law the Directors must
not approve the accounts unless they are satisfled that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
profit or Joss of the Company for that period In preparing these
financtal statements International Accounting Standard 1 requires
that Directors

> properly select and apply accounting policies

> present information, Including accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable comparable and understandable
infermation,

> provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are Insufficent to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, cther events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance, and

> make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are
alsoresponsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information inchuded on the Company's
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
In other junsdictions R

Directors’ responsibility statement
The Directors confirm that to the best of therr knowledge

1 The finangal statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs give
a true and fair view of the assets, labilities financial position and
profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole, and

2 The management report, whichis Incorporated into the Directors
report, includes a fair review of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings mcluded in the consolidation taken as awhole,
together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties
that they face

By order of the Board

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Griffith

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
25 July 2013 25 July 2013
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Independent Auditor’s report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING
GROUP PLC

Opinion

in our cpinton the consolidated and Parent Company financial
statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc

> give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and Parent
Company s affarrs as at 30 tune 2013 and of its profit for the year
then ended

> have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companles Act 2006 and Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

The financial statements comprise the consolidated and company
income statements, the consoldated and company statements of
comprehensive iIncome, the consolidated and company balance
sheets the consclidated and company cash flow statements the
consolidated and company statements of changes In equity and the
related notes 1to 32 The financial reporting framework that has been
apphied In their preparation s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

As explained in note 1to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union has also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by the international
Accounting Standards Board {IASB)

tn our opinion the consolidated financial statements comply with
IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

Basis for opinions

We have audited the consolidated and Parent Company financal
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK and Ireland) Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described below under Respective
Responsibilities of Directors and Auditor In performing our audit as
required by those standards, we complied with the Finanoal Reporting
Council s Ethical Standards for Auditors including those reguirng us to
be ndependent and objective

cepengenl ana Cojed

Going Concemn

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors
statement on page 59 that the business 15 a gong concern We
confirm that

> we have not identified material uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern which we believe would need to be
disdosed in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, and

> we have concluded that management s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 1s
appropriate

However because not all future events or conditions can be predicted
this statement 1s not a guarantee as to the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern

Auditor commentary

Our assessment of risks significant to our audit

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement described below are
those that had the greatest effect on the audit strategy, the
allocation of resources inthe audit, and directing the efforts of the
engagement team

> revenue recognition, including the timing and amount of retail
subscription revenues recognised in the year

> the selection and application of appropriate policies for the
expensing of general entertainment programming inventory, and

> the appropriateness of the recegnition of Intangible and tangible
non-current assets from capital expenditure projects

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and not to
express an opinicn on tndividual accounts or disclosures Our opinion
on the financial statements 15 not modified with respect to any of the
key audit matters described below and we do not express an opmnion
on these iIndividual matters

Qur assessment of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing
our audit and inevaluating the effect of misstatements on our audit
and on the financial statements For the purposes of determining
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement we define materiality as the magnitude of
misstatement that makes it probable that the economic decisicns of
a reasonably knowledgeable person relying on the financial
statements, would be changed or influenced We also determine a
level of performance matenality which we use to determine the extent
of testing needed to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a
whole

When estabhshing our overall audit strategy we determined a
magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be
matenal for the financial statements as a whote In line with generally
accepted practice, we calculated planring matenalty for the Group as
aporoximatelv 4% of adjusted pre-tax prafit and 5% of acunty which
equated to £50 millor We use adjusted pre-tax profit to exclude the
effect of volatility from cur determination

We agreed with the Audit Comrmuttee that we would report to the
Committee all audit differences in excess of £25 millon as well as
differences below that threshold that in our view, warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds

The scope of our audit

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
discosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting pelicies are appropnate to
the Group s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adeguately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
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Independent Auditor’s report

continued

financial statements In addition we read all the financialand
non-financial information In the Annual Report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and todentify
any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
materially Incons:stent with the knowledge acquired by us iInthe
course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatemants or Inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Cur Group audit scope focused on the Group's UK and Ireland
operations which were subject to a full scope audit for the year ended
30 June 2013 and represent all principal operations of the Group and
account for substantially all of the Group s total assets revenue and
operating profit

The way in which we scoped our response to the significant risks
identified above was as follows

> Retall subscription revenue - our procedures included
understanding and testing the controls In respect of the Groups
bulling and customer relationship management systems and testing
the revenue recognised in the perod

> General Entertainment programming inventory - we evatuated the
amortisation method for general entertainment programming
inventory, taking into account the differing genres of programmes,
viewing profiles and industry benchmarks

> Capitahsation of intangible and tangible non-current assets - we
tested the controls in respect of the capitalisation of assets,
considered all material and a sample of other capital expenditure
projecis and evaluated management $ assessment as to whether
the project spend met the recognition critena set out INIAS 16 and
1AS 38 and considered whether any indicators of impairment were
present

The Audit Committees consideration of these judgements is set out
on page 43

Opinions on matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our oplnon

> the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with
the financial statements, and

> the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared In accordance with the Compantes Act
2006

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adedguacy of explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If in
our opinion, we have not receved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit We have nothing to report in respect of this
matier

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our
opinion certain disclosures of directors remuneration have not been
made or the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited
15 Not In agreement with the accounting records and returns Under
the Listing Rules we are required to review certain elements of the
Directors Remuneration Report We have nothing to report ansing
from these matters or our review

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s
compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under the ISAs (UK and Irefand), we are required to report to you If in
our cpinion infermation inthe annual report is

> materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial
staternents or

> apparently matenally ncorrect based on or matenally inconsistent
with our knowledge of the Group acguired in the course of
performing our audit or

> otherwise misteading

In particular we have considered whether the annual report
appropriatety discloses those matters that we communicated to the
Audit Committee which we consider should have been disclosed

We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or
misleading statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

Responsibility of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibility
set out oh page 60 the directors are responsible far the adequacy of
the accounting records the preparation of the financial statements
from those records and for being satisfied that the financial
statements give a true and far view

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility I1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements, and to provide other reports and communications arising
from our audit in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are either required to state to
them in an auditor's report and/or those further matters we have
expressly agreed to report to them on In our engagement letter and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we donot
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

william Touche (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

25 July 2013
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Nates Em £m
Revenue 2 7235 6,791
Operating expense 3 {5944) (5548}
Operating profit 1,291 1,243
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 13 46 39
investment Income 4 28 18
Finance costs 4 108) {1y
Profit before tax 5 1257 1189
Taxation 7 {278) (283)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 979 906
Earnings per share from profit for the year (in pence)
Basic 8 607p 526p
Diluted 8 S97p 522p
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated Income statement
All results relate to continuing cperations
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
£m Em
Profit, for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 979 a06
Other comprehensive iIncome
Amounts recognised directly inequity
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 2
Gain on revaluation of avallable-for-sale investments 186 8
{Loss) gain on cash flow hedges @7 99
Tax on cash flow hedges 7 23)
166 86
Amounts reclassified and reported in the income statement
Loss on cash flow hedges (48) (29}
Tax on cash flow hedges H 7
(37 22
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year (net of tax) 129 54
Total comprehensive income for the year attnibutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 1108 970

-

All results relate to continuing operations
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Consolidated financial statements

continued
Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 June 2013
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwlk 10 959 956
intangible assets n 718 523
Property plant and equipment 12 1041 948
Investments In joint ventures and associates 13 164 156
Avallable-for-sale iInvestments 14 422 228
Deferred tax assets 15 38 16
Programme distribution nghts 1 17 -
Trade and other recevables 7 17 17
Dernivative financial assets 21 360 380
3776 3234
Current assets
Inventories 16 548 456
Trade and other recevables 17 531 621
Short-term deposits 21 565 710
Cash and cash equivalents 21 815 464
Dervative financial assets 21 20 24
2569 2275
Total assets 6,345 5509
Current habilitses
Borrowings 20 n 8
Jrade and other payables 18 2023 1855
Current tax labilities 176 189
Prowisions 19 o4 43
Dernvative finanaal habilhies 21 13 3
2317 2098
Non-current habilities
Borrowangs 20 2905 2398
Trade and other payables 18 63 27
Provisions 19 14 12
Denvative financial labilities 21 9 29
Deferred tax habilities 1% 1 1
306 2467
Total habilities 5333 4,565
Share capital 23 797 837
Share premium 24 1437 1437
Raserves 24 (1222) (1,330
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 24 1,012 944
Total habtlities and shareholders equity 6,345 5509

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet

These consolidated financial statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group ple, registered number 02247735 have been approved and

authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2013 and were signed onits behaif by

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Gniffith
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Qfficer
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating actmties
Cash generated from operations 25 1877 1737
Interest receved 29 17
Taxation paid (300) (254)
Net cash from operating activities 1606 1,500
Cash flows from investing actmties
Dividends receved from joint ventures and associates 43 39
Net funding to joint ventures and assocaates {4) (&)
Proceeds on disposal of an investment 4 -
Purchase of property plant and equipment (203} (228)
Purchase of intangible assets (251) (229)
Purchase of subsidianies (net of cash and cash equivalents purchased) {197) (15)
Purchase of avallable-for-sale investments [€)) (5)
Decrease (increase) in short-term deposits 15 (280)
Net cash used ininvesting activities {502) (724)
Cash fiows from financing actvties
Net proceeds from borrowings 493 -
Repayment of obiigations under finance leases (€] m
Praceeds from disposal of shares in Employee Share Qwnership Plan ("ESCP '} 15 10
Purchase of own shares for ESGP (69) (1an
Purchase of cwn shares for cancellation (627) (546)
Interest paid 128) {125)
Dividends paid to shareholders {441) {410)
Net cash used in financing activities {753) (1233)
Net increase (decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 351 (457)
Cash and tash equivalents at the begmming of theyear 464 921
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 815 464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated cash flow statement
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Consolidated financial statements

continued

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2013

Availlable- Total
Share Share ESOP Hedging for-sale Other Retained shareholders
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings equity
Em £m £m £m Em £m Em Em
At1July 20M 876 1,437 107) 14 157 358 {1,700} 1,035
Profit for the year - - - - - - 906 206
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - 2 - 2
Revaluaticn of avalable-for-sale investments - - - - - - 8
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - 70 - - - 70
Tax onitems taken directly to equity - - - (16) - - - (16}
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 54 8 2 906 970
Share-based payment - - 5) - - - {80} (85)
Tax onitems taken directly to equity - - - - - - o o)
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation (39 - - - - 39 (546) (546)
- Financial hability for close penod purchases - - - - - - (10) [q0)]
Dividends - - - - - - (410) (410)
At 30 June 2012 837 1437 M2) 68 165 399 (1,850} 944
Profit for the year - - - - - - 979 979
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale investments - - - - 186 - - 186
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - {75) - - - 75)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - 18 - - - 18
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - (57) 186 - 979 1108
Share-based payment - - (39 - - - 61 26
Tax on Hems taken directly to equity - - - - - - B8 8
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation [C:29)] - - - - 40 (617 17y
- Financial kability for close period purchases - - - - - - ey (1&)
Dnidends - - - - - - (441 (441)
At 30 June 2013 797 1,437 (147) n 351 439 (1876) 1012

For a description of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve see note 24

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this consolidated statement of changes In equity
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

British Sky Broadeasting Group plc {the “Comparny™) Is a hmited hability
company incorporated in the United Kingdom ("UK™) and registered in
england and Wales The consolidated financial statements include the
Company and its subsidianes (together, the "Group”) and its interests
in assocates and jointly-controfled entities

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™)
as adopted by the European Union ("EU”) the Companies Act 2006
and Article 4 of the International Accounting Standard (*1AS™)
Regulations Inaddition the Group also comphedwith IFRS as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘1ASB )

b) Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared on a going
cancern basis (as set out inthe Directors Report) and on an histoncal
cost basis except for the remeasurement to fair value of financial
instruments as described in the accounting policies below The Group
has adopted the new accounting pronouncements which became
effective thrs year, none of which had any significant iImpact on the
Group's results or financial position

The Group maintains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday
nearest to 30 June in each year In fiscalyear 2013 this date was 30
June 2013, this being a 52 week year (fiscal year 2012 1 July 2012, 52
week year) For convenience purposes the Group continues to date its
consolidated financial statements as at 30 June and torefer tothe
accounting period asa year ' for reporting purposes The Group has
classified assets and habilities as current when they are expected to
be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the normatk
operating cycle of the Group

<) Basis of consolidation

| Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Company Control exists
when the Company has the power directly or indirectly to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtamn benefits
fromts activities Subsidiaries are included in the consoldated
financial statements of the Company from the date control of the
substdiary commences until the date that control ceases Intra-group
balances, and any unrealised gains and losses or Income and
expenses arsing from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements

1 Associates and joint ventures

Assoaates are entities where the Group has significant influence, but
not contirol or joint control, over the financial and operating policies of
the entity Joint ventures are those entities which are jointhy
controlled by the Group under a contractual agreement with another
party or parties

These consoiidated financial statements inelude the Group's share of
the total recogrised gains and losses of associates and jont ventures
using the equity method from the date that significant influence or
Jont control commences to the date that it ceases, based on present
ownership interests and exduding the possible exercise of potential
voting nights less any impawrment losses (see accounting policy 1) When

the Group s interest In anassociate or joint venture has been reduced
to nil because the Group s share of losses exceeds its interest inthe
associate or joint venture the Group only provides for additional losses
to the extent that it has incurred legal or constructive obligations to
fund such losses, or where the Group has made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture Where the disposal of an investment in
an assecate or joint venture 1s considered to be highly probable the
Investment ceases to be equity accounted and instead 1s classified as
held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell

d) Goodwill

Business combinations that have occurred since 1tuly 2004 the date
of transition £o IFRS (the “Transition Date™) are accounted for by
applying the purchase method of accounting Following this method,
goodwillis initially recognised on consolidation representing the
difference between the farr value cost of the business combinatron
and the fair value of the identifiable assets labilities and contingent
assets and labilities assumed

Inrespect of business combinations that occurred prior to the
Transition Date, goodwill has been included at the amounts
recognised under the Group's UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("UK GAAP™) accounting pohcies on the Transition Date On
disposal of a subsidiary, asscciate or joint venture, the attributable
amount of goodwill 1s included 1n the determination of profit or loss on
disposal except for goodwill written of f to reserves under UK GAAP
prior to the Transition Date, which1s not reinstated and 1s not included
In determining any subsequent gainor loss on disposal

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any mpairment losses and 1s tested at
least annually, for mparment based on the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated Any
imparrment identified 1s recognised mmediately in the income
statement and 1s not subsequently reversed The carrying amount of
goodwill in respect of associates and joint ventures 1s inciuded in the
carrying amount of the investment in the asseoate or joint venture
Goodwilt1s tested for Impairment in ine with accounting policy | below

e) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment ("PPE*)

1 Intangible assets

Research expenditure 1 recogrised i1 operating expense in the
income statement as the expenditure 1s iIncurred Development
expenditure (relating to the application of research knowledge to plan
or design new or substantially improved products for sale or use
within the business) 1s recognised as an intangible asset from the
paint at which 1115 probable that the Group has the intention and
ability to generate future economic benefits from the development
expenditure that the development is technically feasible and that the
subsequent expenditure can be measured reliably Any other
development expenditure I1s recognised In operating expense as
incurred

Other intangible assets which are acquired by the Group separately or
through a business combination are intially stated at cost or fair value,
respectively, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
other than those that are classified as held for sale, which are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Amortisation of an intangible asset beging when the asset 1s available
for use, and 1s charged to the income statement through operating
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

expense on a straight-line basis over the intangible asset s estimated
useful bfe, principally being a period between 1and 25 years, unless
the asset ife 1s judged to be indefirite If the useful hfe s indefinite or
the asset 1s not yet avatlable for use no amortisation s charged and
anmpairment test is carried out at least annually Other intangible
assets are tested for impairment in line with accounting policy | below

1 Property, plant and equipment

Owned PPE Is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any
imparment losses, (see accounting policy 1), other than those items
that are class:fied as held for sale which are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell When anitem of PPE
comprises major components having different useful economic lives
the components are accounted for as separate items of PPE

Assets held under finance leases, which confer rights and obligations
similar to those attached to owned assets are treated as PPE (see
accounting policy i)

The cost of PPE less estimated residual value 15 depreciated in
operating expense on a straight-line basis over 1ts estimated usefu!
Iife Land and assets that are not yet available for use are not
depreciated Princpal useful economic lives used for this purpose are

> Freehold builldings 25to 40 years

» Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 to 20 years

> Assets under finance leases and  Lesser of lease term and the
leasehold improvements useful economic life of the asset

Borrowing costs directly attributable t¢ the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for therr intended use or
sale are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for ther intended use or sale

To the extent that the financing for a qualifying asset s part of the
Group's general borrowings, the Interest cost to be capitalised s
calculated based upon the weighted average cost of borrowing to the
Group (excluding the nterest on any borrowings speafic to any quatfying
assets) This s then applied tothe expenditures on the asset

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss In the penacd
to which they relate

f) Dervative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group uses a number of derivative financial Instruments to hedge
its exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates

Derivatives are held at fawr value from the date on which a denvative
contract 15 entered Into Fair value 1s defined as the amount for which
an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willng parties in an arm's length transaction The far
vatue of dervative finanaial Instruments s calculated with reference
0 the contracted value and the appropnate market value prevailing
at the balance sheet date Certain derivatives held by the Group which
relate to highly probable forecast transactions ( hedged items )
which meet qualifying critena under [AS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement (“IAS 39") are designated as cash flow
hedges or fair value hedges, and are subject to cash flow hedge
accounting or fair value hedge accounting respectively Certain other
dervatives held by the Group do not meet the qualifying critena for

recognition for accounting purposes as hedges despite this baing
their economic function Changes in the fair values of these
dervatives are recognised immediately in the income statement The
Group does not hold or issue derivatives for speculative purposes

1 Derwvatives that quahfy for cash flow hedge accounting

Changes In the fair values of dervatives that are designated as cash
flow hedges (“cash flow hedging instruments™) are intially recognised
i the hedging reserve In crcumstances in which the derivative used
15 & currency option only changes in the intrinsic value of the option
are designated under the cash flow hedging relationship, with all other
movements being recorded iImmediately 10 the income statement
Amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve are subsequently
recognised in the income statement in the periods in which the
related hedged items are recogrused in the Income statement

At inception, the effectiveness of the Group's cash flow hedges Is
assessed through a comparison of the principal terms of the hedging
Instrument and the underlying hedged item The ongoing
effectiveness of the Group's cash flow hedges 1s assessed using the
dollar-offset approach with the expected cash flows of hedging
instruments being compared to the expected cash flows of the
hedged items This assessment 1s used to demonstrate that each
hedge relationship 1s expected to be highly effective onmception, has
been highly effectwe in the period and 1s expected to continue to be
hughty effective in future periods The measurement of hedge
ineffectiveness for the Group s hedging iInstruments 1s calculated
using the hypothetical dervative method with the farr values of the
hedging instruments being compared to those of the hypothetical
derivative that would result In the designated cash flow hedge
achieving perfect hedge effectiveness The excess of the cumulative
change in the fair value of the actual hedging Instrument compared to
that of the hypothetical derivative 15 deemed to be hedge
ineffectiveness which is recognised in the iIncome statement

The Group uses a range of 80% to 125% for hedge effectiveness, In
accordance with IAS 39, and any relationship which has effectiveness
outside this range 1s deemed to be ineffective and hedge accounting
15 suspended

When a cash flow hedging nstrument expires 1s terminated or is
exeraised, or if a hedge no longer meets the qualifying criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or [0ss existing In the hedging
reserve at that time remains in the hedging reserve and s recognised
when the forecast transaction 1s ultmately recognised in the income
statement provided that the underlying transaction 1s still expected
to occur When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to oceur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in the hedging reserve 1s
immediately recognised in the income statement and all future
changes in the fair value of the cash flow hedging instruments are
immediately recognised in the iIncome statement

n Dervatives that qualify for fair vatue hedge accounting

The Group has designated certain derivatives as far value hedges as
defined under IAS 39 Any changes In the farr value of the derivatives
are recognised immediately In the Income statement. The carrying
values of the underlying hedged tems are adjusted for the change In
the fair value of the hedged nisks with the gains or losses recognised
immediately in the income statement, offsetting the fair value
movement on the derivative

Prospective effectiveness 1s assessed quarterly through a comparison
of the prinaipal terms of the hedging nstrument and the underlying
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hedged item, including the likelihood of default by the dervative
counterparty The retrospective effectiveness of the Groups farr value
hedges I1s calculated quarterly using the cumulative doflar-offset
approach, with movements in the fair value of the hedged item being
compared to movemenits In the far value of the hedging instrument

The Group uses arange of 80% to 125% for hedge effectiveness and any
relationship which has effectiveness outside this range is deemed to be
ineffective and hedge accounting 1s suspended

m Embedded derivatives

Dervatives embedded in other financial Instrurments or other host
contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their nsks and
charactenistics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the hest contracts are not carried at fair value with unrealised
gains or losses reported in the income statement Embedded
dervatives are carned on the balance sheet at farr value from the
nception of the host contract Changes in fair value are recognisec
within the income statement during the period in which they arise

g) Inventories -

1 Acquired and commissioned television programme inventorias for
broadcast

Programme inventories for broadcast are stated at the tower of cost
and net realisable value ('NRV } including, where applicable,
estimated subscriber escalation payments and net of the
accumulated expense charged to the income statement to date

Such programming nghts are included as inventones when the legally
enforceable icence perod cormmences and all of the following conditions
have beenmet (@) the cost of each pregramme 1s known or reasonably
determinable () the programme material has been accepted by the
Group in accordance with the conditions of the nights and (S the
programime s avarlable for its first showing, Prior to being included in
inventories, the programming nghts are classified as television
programmerights not yet, available for transmission and not recorded as
inventones on the Group's balance sheet and are instead disclosed as
contractual commitments (see note 26) Payments made upon receipt of
commissioned and acquired programming, but in advance of the legal
right to broadcast the programmes are treated as prepayments

The cost of television programme inventories Is recognised in the
operating expense line of the Income statement, primarily as
described below

> Sports - 100% of the cost 1s recognised in the Income statement on
the first broadcast or, where the rights are for multiple seasons or
competitions such rights are principally recognised on a straight-
line basis across the seasons or competitions

> News ~100% of the cost 1s recogrised in the income statement on
first broadcast

> Movies - The cost s recognised in the income statement ona
straight-line basis over the penod of broadcast nghts

> General entertainment - The cost Is recognised in the income
statement based on the expected value of each planned broadcast

Where programme broadcast nghts are surplus to the Groups
requirements and no gain s anticipated through a disposal of the
rnights or where the programming will not be broadcast for any other
reason awrite-down to the iIncome statement 1s made Any reversals
of Inventory write-downs are recognised as reductions in operating
expense

il Programme distribution rights

Programme distribution nghts are valued at the lower of cost and NRY
net of the accumulated expense charged to the Income statement to
date

The cost of the programme distrbution rights 1s recognised in the
operating expense line of the income statement on an ultimate
revenue forecast basis, and 1s subject to regular imparrment review

m Set-top boxes, routers and related equipment

Set-top boxas, routers and related equipment are valued at the lower
of cost and NRV the latter of which refiects the value that the
business expects to realise from the set-top boxes and related
equipment In the hands of the customer and are recognised through
the operating expense line of the Income statement Any subsidy 15
expensed on enablerment, which is the process of activating the
viewing card durning installation, so as to enable a viewer to view
encrypted broadcast services, and effectively represents the
completion of the installation process for new customers Fhe amount
recognised In the Income statement s determined on a weighted
average cost basis In accordance with IAS 2 “Inventory’

v Raw materials, consumables and goods held for resale

Raw materials consumables and goods held for resale are valued at
the lower of cost and NRV The cost of raw materials consumables and
goads held for resale 1s recognised through the operating expense
line of the Income statement on a first in first out basis

h) Financial assets and habilities

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly attnbutable transaction costs At each balance sheet
date, the Group assesses whether there Is any objective evidence that
any financial asset 1s impaired Financial assets and habilities are
recognised on the Groups balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial asset or hability
Financial assets are derecogrised from the balance sheet when the
Group's contractual nights to the cash flows expire or the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset
Financial habihties are derecognised from the Group s balance sheet
when the obligation specified In the contract 1s discharged cancelled
or expires

I Avallable-for-sale investments

Equity investments intended to be held for an indefinite perod are
classified as avalable-for-sale investmeni s They are carred At far
value, where this can be reliably measured with movements in fair value
recognised directly in the avallable-for-sale reserve Where the far value
cannot be reliably measured the investment 1s carried at cost

Any Impairment losses In equity investments classified as available-
for-sale mvestments are recogrised in the income statement and are
not reversible through the income statement, and are determined
with reference to the closing market share price at the balance sheet
date Any subsequent increase in the fair value of the available-for-
sale Investmant above the impaired value will be recognised within the
avallable-for-sale reserve

Avallable-for-sale investments are included within non-current assets
unless the carrying value 1s expected to be recovered principally
through sale rather than continuing use 1in which case they are
included within current assets On disposal the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

any cumulative gain or loss that had previously been recognised
directly In reserves 1s recognised In the iIncome statement

n Trade and other recevables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and, where no stated interest rate is
applicable, are measured at the oniginal \nvoice amount, If the effect
of discounting 1s immaterial Where discounting 1s material trade and
other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method An allowance account 1s maintained to reduce the
carrying value of trade and other recewvables for impairment losses
identified from objective evidence with movements in the allowance
account, either from increased imparrment losses or reversals of
impairment losses, being recognised in the income statement

m Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivatents include cash in hand, bank accounts,
deposits receivable ondemand and depostts with maturity dates of
three mopths or less from the date of Inception Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of the
Group s cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents where offset conditions are met

v Short-term deposits

This Inciudes short-term deposits which have maturity dates of more
than three months from inception These depostts are initially
recogrised at fair value and then carried at amortised cost through
the iIncome statement less any allowanca for impairment losses

v Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-derwvative financial habilities and
are measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method
Trade and other payables with no stated interest rate are measured
at the onginal Invoice amount I the effect of discounting1s
immatenal

vi Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded as the proceeds recelved, net of direct tssue
costs Finance charges including any premium payable on settlement
or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals
basis In the iIncome statement using the effective Interest methed
and are added to the carrying amount of the underlying instrument to
which they relate to the extent that they are not settled in the percd
in which they arise .

i} Impairment

At each balance sheet date 1n accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets” the Group reviews the carrying amounts of all its assets
excluding Inventories (see accounting pohcy g) non-current assets
classified as held for sale, financial assets (see accounting policy h)
and deferred taxation (see accounting palicy ©) to determine whether
there 15 any Indication that any of those assets have suffered an
impairment loss

An impalrment is recognised In the income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount An impairment of an investment ina joint
venture or associate 1s recognised within the share of profit from joint
ventures and associates The recoverable amount is the greater of net
selling price, defined as the fair value less costs to sell and value in

use In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted totheir present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset Where it 1s not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs Impairment losses recogrised in respect of cash generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to those units, and then to reduce the carrying amount of
other assets Inthe unit on a pro-rata basts

Animpairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit will
be reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised and Is only raversed tothe extent that the asset’s carrying
armount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined net of depreciation or amortisation If no iImpairment foss
had been recognised Impairment. of goodwill 1s not reversed

)) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a probable present
legal or constructive obligation to make a transfer of economic
benefits as a result of past events where areliable estimate is
avallable The amounts recognised represent the Group s best
estimate of the transfer of benefits that will be required te settle the
obhgation as of the balance sheet date Provisions are discounted if
the effect of the ime value of money 1s matenal using a pre-tax
market rate adjusted for nsks speaific to the hability

k) ESOP reserve

Where the Company or its subsidianes purchase the Company’s own
equity shares the cost of those shares ncluding any attributable
transaction costs, 15 presented within the ESOP reserve as a
deduction n shareholders equity In the consolidated financial
statements

I) Revenue recognition

Revenue, which excludes value added tax and transactions between
Group companies represents the gross inflow of economic benefit

from Sky's operating activities The Group's main sources of revenue
are recognised as-follows

> Retail subscription revenue including subscriptions for TV services
sky Broadband and Sky Talk services, 1s recognised as the goods or
services are provided, net of any discount given Pay-per-view
revenue s recogrnsed when the event or movie Is viewed

> Wholesale revenue 1s recognised as the services are provided to
cable and other retallers and s based on the number of subscribers
taking the Sky channels as reported to the Group by the cable and
other retallers and the applicable rate card or contract

> Advertising sales revenue Is recognised when the advertising s
broadcast Revenue generated from airtime sales where Sky acts as
an agent on behalf of third parties 1s recognised ona net
commission basis

» Installation hardware and service revenue 1s recognised m the
income statement when the goods and services are activated

> Other revenue principally includes income from Sky Bet technical
platform services third party set-top box sales, public access WIFi
services and programme distribution fees With the exception of
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Sky Bet revenue other revenue is recognised, net of any discount
gven, when the relevant goods or service are provided Sky Bet
revenue Is recognised In accordance with 1AS 39 and represents
income In the peried for betting and gaming activities, defined as
amounts staked by customers less winnings paid out

Revenue s measured at the farr value of the consideration received or
recevable When the Group sells a set-top box, Installation or service
and a subscription in one bundled transaction the total consideration
from the arrangement Is allocated to each element based on their
relative farr values The fair value of each individual element 1s
determined using vendor speafic or third party evidence The amount
of revenue the Group recognises for delivered elements s limited to
the cash received

m) Employee benefits

Wages, salartes social secunty contributions bonuses payable and
non-monetary benefits for current employees are recognised nthe
Income statement as the employees’ services are rendered

The Group provides pensions to eligible employees through defined
contribution schemes The amount charged to the income statement
11 the year represents the cost of contributions pavable by the Group
to the schemes in exchange for employee services rendered in that
year The assets of the schemes are held independently of the Group

Termination benefits are recognised as a Yiability when and only when
the Group has a demonstrable commitment to termuinate the
employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal
retirement date or as the result of an offer to encourage voluntary
redundancy

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees which must be measured at far value and recognised as an
expense In the iIncome statement with a corresponding increase in
equity The far values of these payments are measured at the dates
of grant using option-pricing models taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the awards are granted The farr value s
recognised over the period during which employees become
unconditionally entitled to the awards subject to the Groups
estimate of the number of awards which will be forfeited either due to
employees lzaving the Group prior to vesting or due to non-market
based performance conditions not being met Where an award has
market-based performance conditions the far value of the award 1s
adjusted for the probability of achieving these via the option pricing
model The total amount recognised in the income statement as an
expense Is adpusted to refiect the actual number of awards that vest,
axcept where forfeiture s due to the failure to meet market-based
performance measures In the event of a cancellation, whether by the
Group ar by a participating employee, the compensation expense that
would have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting period
15 recognised immediately in profit or loss

) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the rnisks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the asset to the lessee All other leases are classified as
aperating leases

When the Group is a lessor sub-lease income from operating leases 1s
recognised on a straight-line bas's over the term of the lease

When the Group s a lessee assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value on the date of
acquisstion o, If lower at the present value of the rrirmimum lease
payments The corresponding l:abuity to the lessor 1s included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reductions of the lease obligation sc as to achieve a constant rate of
Interest on the remaining balance of the habifity

The lease expense anising from operating leases 1s charged to the
Income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the ease
Benefits receved and recewvable as incentives to enter into operating
leases are recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term

o) Taxation, including deferred taxation

The Groups hability for current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the
year and 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and kahilities are recognised using the balance
sheet hability method, prowding for temporary differences between
the carrying amounits of assets and habilities in the balance sheet and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit Temparary differences ansing from goodwill and the inital
recognition of assets or habilities that affect neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit are not provided for Deferred tax rabilities are
recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
In subsidiaries and associates, and interests in Joint ventures, except
where the Group 15 able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse In the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax
provided Is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilities, using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted toreflect anamount that 1s
probable to be realised based on the weight of all available evidence
Deferred tax 1s calculated at therates that are expected to apply In
the period when the hability 15 settled or the asset 1s realised
Deferred tax assets and iabiities are not discounted Deferred tax s
charged or credited in the income statement, except where it relates
o items charged or aredited directly 1o 2Guty Inwhich case the
deferred tax is also included within equity Deferred tax assets and
labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to set of f
current tax assets against current tax habilities and when they relate
to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group
intends te settleits current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

p) Distributions to equrty shareholders

Dividends are recogrised in the retained earnings reserve inthe year
n which they are declared

The cost of repurchasing the Group's own equity shares for
cancellation ("share buy-backs )Is recorded in retained earnings In
addition the nominal cost of shares repurchased 1s deducted from
share capital and a matching credit is recorded In the capital
redemption reserve
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings or loss per share represents the profit or loss for the
vear divded by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
Issue during the year, excluding the weighted average number of
ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held in the Groups ESOP
duning the year to satisfy employee share awards

Diluted earnings or loss per share represents the profit or foss for the
year, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, excluding the weighted average number of
ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held in the Groups ESOP
during the year to satisfy employee share awards, plus the weighted
average number of dilutive shares resuiting from share options where
the inclusion of these would not be antidilutive

r) Foreign currency translation

The Group s presentational currency Is pounds sterling Trading
activities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in pounds
sterling at the applicable monthly exchange rates Monetary assets,
liabilittes and commitments denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange at that
date Mon-monetary assets and liabilities dencminated in foreign
currencies are translated to pounds sterling &t the exchangerate
prevailing at the date of the Intial transaction Gans and l0sses from
the retranslation of assets and liabiities are ncluded net i profit for
the year, except for exchange differences arising on non-monetary
assets and liabiities where the changes in farr value are recognised
directly in equity

The assets and labilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated at sxchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date
Income and expense items are translated at the app!icable monthly
average exchange rates Any exchange differences ansing are
classified as equity and transferred to other reserves

s) Reportable segments

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires the segment information
presented in the financial statements to be that which 1s used
internally by the chief operating decision maker to evaluate the
performance of the business and decide how to allocate resources
The Group has identified the Board of Directors as its chief operating
decision maker and as the internal reporting reviewed by the Board
focuses on the operations of the Group as a whole and does not
identify mdwidual operating segments, the Group has only ane
reportable segment

t) Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted certain new standards amendments
and interpretations to existing standards, which have been published
but are only effective for our accounting perieds beginning on or after
1 July 2013 or later periods These new pronouncements are listed
below

» IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ (effective 1 January
2013
> IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’ (effective1 January 2013)

> IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ' (effective 1 January
2013)

> IFRS 13 ' Farr Value Measurement {effective 1 January 2013)

» Amendments to 1AS 19 “Employee Benefits” (effective 1 January
2013) '

> Armendments to IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” (effective
1 January 2013)

> Amendments to |AS 28 “investrments in Associates and Joint
Ventures” (effective 1 January 2013)

> Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabihities (effective
1January 2013)

> Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and {FRS 12 'Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of interests in
Other Entities Transition Guidance” (effective 1 January 2013)

> Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets’ (effective 1January
2014}

» Amendments to IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments Presentation
— Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities ' (effective
1January 2014)

> Amendments to 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogrition and
Measurement - Novation of Dervatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting” (effective 1 January 2014)

» IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments {effective 1 January 2015)

The Directors are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
these standards amendments and interpretations in future periods

u) Critical accountg policies and the use of jJudgement

Certain accounting policies are considered to be critical to the Group
An accounting policy 1s considerad to be eribical If in the Directors
judgement, Its selection or application matenally affects the Groups
financial position or resu'ts Below s a summary of the Group s critical
accounting policies and details of the key areas of jJudgement that are
exercised in therr application

| Revenue (see note 2)

Selecting the appropnate timing for, and amount of, revenue tobe
recognised requires Judgement This may srvelve estimating the far
value of consideration before it 1s receved When the Group sells a
set-top box, Installation or service and a subscription in one bundled
transaction, the total consideration from the arrangement s
allocated to each element based on its relative fair value The fair
value of each individual element i1s determined using vendor specific
or third party evidence The amount of revenue the Group recognises
for defivered elements is imited to the cashreceved

n Taxation, including deferred taxatien (see notes 7 and 15)

The Group's tax charge 1s the sum of the total current and deferred
tax charges The calculation of the Groups total tax charge
necessarily nvolves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect
of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined
until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as
appropriate, through a formal legal process

Prowisions for tax contingencies require management to make
Judgements and estimates in relation to tax audit ssues and
exposures Amounts provided are based on management’s
interpretation of country-specific tax law and the likelihood of
settlement Tax benefits are not recognised unless it s probable that
the tax positions will be sustained Once considered to be probable,
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management reviews each material tax benefit to assess whether a
provision should be taken aganst full recogrition of the benefit on
the basis of the hikely resolution of the 1ssue through negotiation and/
or htigation

The amounts recognised in the consolidated financial staterments in
respect of each matter are derived from the Group s best estimation
and Judgement, as described above However, the inherent
uncertainty regarding the outcome of these stems means the eventual
resolution could differ from the provision and in such event the Group
would be required to make an adjustment in a subsequent penod
which could have a matenal impact on the Group s profit and loss and/
or cash position

The key area of jJudgement In respect of deferred tax accounting 1s the
assessment of the expected timing and manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and habilities held at
the balance sheet date In particular, assessment 1s required of
whether it 1s probable that there will be suitable future taxable profits
against which any deferred tax assets can be utilised

m Goodwill (see note 10)

Judgement is required In determining the fair value of identifiable
assets, iabllittes and contingent assets and habiities assumed ina
business combination and the fair value of the consideration payable
Caleulating the fair values involves the use of significant estimates
and assumptions including expectations about future cash flows,
discount rates and the ives of assets following purchase

Judgement s also required in identifying the cash generating units to
which the goodwill s associated for the purposes of goodwill
imparment testing. Identification of cash generating units Involves an
assessment of whether assets or groups of assets generate cash
flows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of
assets Goodwill 1s then allocated to each identified cash generating
unit that 1s expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combirations from which goodwill has ansen

v Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (see notes
Hand 12)

The assessment of the useful economic lives of these assets requires
Judgement Depreciation and amortisationis charged to the income
statement based on the useful economic life selected This
assessment requires estimation of the penod over which the Group
will benefit from the assets

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any
indication of Impairment also requires judgement If an indication of
impairment is identified further judgement i1s required to assess
whether the carrying amount can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset This
forecast involves cash flow projections and selecting the appropnate
discount rate

Assessing whether assets meet the required criteria for ininal
capitahsation requires judgement This requires a determination of
whether the assets will result in future benefits to the Group In
particular, internally generated intangible assets must be assessed
during the development phase toidentfy whether the Group has the
ability and intention to complete the development successfully

v Programmung inventory for broadcast (see note 16)
The key area of accounting for programming inventory for broadcast
that requires judgement 1s the assessment of the appropriate profile

aver which to amortise general entertainment programming This
assessment requires the Group to form an expectation of the number
of times a programme wili be broadcast, and the relative value
associated with each broadcast inorder to perform this assessment,
the Group considers the following factors

> The pericd over which the programme 1s expected to be shown on
the Group's channetls This 1s usually based on a combination of the
actual period specifted in the contract for the programme rights
and the Initial expectation of when repeat broadcasts will be
scheduled

> The alternative programming avallable to the Group for scheduling
within this period This consideration provides the most appropriate
infermation in order to estimate how frequently individual
programmes will be shown during the period in which the Group
holds their broadcast nghts

> The potential benefits assocated with scheduling programming
Certain high-profile or high-quality programming titles have
additional value to the Group, as they attract new TV customers
and encourage retention of existing TV customers As such, these
programmees are abte to retair mere value throughout their
breadcast runs than would be indicated when considerning the
expected viewing numbers alone

> Expectations as to the number of viewers a programme is likely to
achieve for each ndvidual broadcast over the contractual
broadcast pericd The number of vewers per broadcast directly
influences advertising revenue for channels, although this
consideration 1s partly influenced by the Group's assessment of the
potential impact of the publicly available information onits
competitors scheduling intentions against planned broadcasts

3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued
2. REVENUE
2013 2012
£m £m
Retall subscription 5951 5583
Wholesale subscrnption 396 351
Advertising 440 440
Installation hardware and service 87 98
Other 361 309
7.235 6791

Revenue arises from goods and services provided to the UK with the exception of £461 millon (2012 £418 milhon) which arises from services
previded to other countnes

3 OPERATING EXPENSE

2013 2012

£m £m

Programming 2487 2298
Direct networks 686 676
Marketing 17 1,064
Subscriber management and supply chain 673 621
Transmission technology and fixed networks 405 395
Administration 576 404
5944 5548

Inchuded withun operating expenses for the year ended 30 fune 2013 are

+ Credit of £32 milien relating to a crecit note recerved following an Ofcom determination This eredit has been recogrused within direct networks
Credit of £33 million relating to the final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes net of associated costs and including an inparment of £6 milion n
refation to assooiated Intangible assets This credit has been recognised within subscriber management and supply chain,

+ Costs of £31 million relating to the ome-off upgrade of set-top boxes The costs have been recognised within subsenber management and supply chain

Costs of £25 miflonrelating to a programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Shy Movies customers The costs have beenrecognised within subscniber management and

supply chain

Costs of £16 million relating to the acquisttion and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business including amortisation of £4 millien in relatian to

associated intangible assets The costs have been recognised as follows

- E3millionwithin direct netwaorks

- £2 million within subscriber management and supply chain

- E3amilhonwithin transmission technology and fixed networks

= £7 milion within administration

Costs of £33 miflon relating to a corporate effciency programme ncluding animparment of £6 millon inrelation to associated intangble and tangible assets The costs have been

recognised as follows
- E29 millon within administration
- E£1milionwithun programming
- Elmilhonwithin markeung
- £1 milhon withen subscriber managernent and supply chain
- Evmillionwathun transmission technology and fixed networks
Included within operating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2012 are
« Creditof £3) mitlion relating to the News Corporatien (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox Inc) proposal in 201 consisting of costs incurred offset by the raceipt of
the break fee This credit has been recognised withinadministration

Costs of £11 million which comprisa severance paymants relating to approximately 35 semor rofes as part of arestructunng initiative to improva operating efficiency The costs have

been recognised within administration

74 Bnish Sky Broadcasting Group plc




Annual Report 2013 Notes tothe consolidated financial statements

MDA SHBUINNY

4 INVESTMENT INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

bl
pel
3
2013 2012 2
£m £m &
Investment iIncome ks
Interest on cash cash equivalents and short-term deposits 9 14 =
Dividerids recetved from available-for-sale investments 19 4
28 18
2013 2012 -
£m Em M
Finance costs 5
- Interest payable and similar charges 3
£743 mithon/E750 millon Revolving Credit Facilities ("RCFTY® 2) ) ®
Guaranteed Notes (see note 20) (122) ms)
Finance lease interest 7} (@]
{131) {130)
- Other finance income (expense)
Remeasurement of borrowings and borrowings-related dervative financial instruments (not qualifying for hedge accounting} 22 20
Remeasurement of other dervative financial instruments (not qualfying for hedge accountingy (U] -
(Loss) gain ansing on denvatives in a designated farr value hedge accounting relationship {34) 47
Gain (loss) anising on adjustment for hedged item 1n a designated fair value hedge accounting relationship 36 48)
! 23 19
(108) (117)

(0 Included i RCF costs for the year ended 30 June 2012 1s a write-of f of £5 milkon relating to the facility fee on the E750 million RCF which has now been raplaced with the
£743 milion RCF (see nate 20)

Borrowing costs included in the cost of quaifying assets during the year arose on the general borrowing pocl and are calculatad by applying a
capitalisation rate of 5 2% (2012 5 4%) to experditure on such assets The amount capitalised in the current year amounted to £2 milion (2012
£1milbony

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation s stated after charging

203 2012
£m Em
Cost of Inventones recognised as an expense 1,992 1854
Depreciation and impairment of property plant and equipment 176 179
Amerusation and impairment of intangble assets 202 165
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements 51 50
Consolidated non-current assets outside the UK were £8 milhon (2012 £2 million)
Foreign exchange
Foreign exchange losses recognised in the iIncome statement during the year amounted to £1 million (2012 gains of £2million)
Audit fees
An analysis of auditor's remuneration 15 as follows
2013 2012
Em £m
Total audit fees 1 1
Total non-audit fees 1 1
Tatal auditor remuneration 2 2

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts were £12 milion (2012 £11 milllon) and fees payable to
the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s subsidianies pursuant to legislation were £0 1milon (2012 £0 3 million)

Amounts paid to the auditor for non-audit fees include audit related services of £0 3 mithon (2012 £0 3million) taxation services of £0 3 million
(2012 £0 3 mithon) other assurance services of £0 3 miflion (2012 £01 mullion) other advisory services of mil (2012 £01 millior) and transaction
services of £0 2 million (2012 nil)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

a) Group employee benefits
2013 202
£m £m
Wages and salaries 781 687
Sooial secunty costs 101 78
Costs of employee share option schemes™ [ 80 66
Contributions to the Group s pension schemes™ 27 26
989 857

(3 An £80 million charge relates to equity-settied share-based payments (2032 £66 mdlion charge)

() The Group operates defined contnbution pensien schemes The pension charge for the year represents the cost of contnbutions payable by the Group to the schemes duning the

year Tha amount payable to the schemas by the Group at 30 June 2013 was E2 million (2012 £5 millien)

The average monthly number of full-time equivalent persons (Including temporary employees) employed by the Group during the year was as

follows
2013 2012
Number Number
Channels and services 27 2466
Customer service sales and marketing 1943 1087
Transmission and technology 3651 3204
Management and administration ms 1180
12413 17937

There are approxmately 523 (2012 506) temporary staff iIncluded within the avarage number of full-time equivalent persons employed by the

Group
b) Key management compensation (see note 28d)

- 2013 2012
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits [ i 6
Share-based payments 10 7
16 13

Post-employment benefits were less than £1 million (2032 less than £1 million) The amounts disclosed for key management compensation are

included within the disclosures in note 6(a)

7 TAXATION
a) Taxation recognised in the income statement

2013 2012

Em Em

Current tax expense
Current year 332 303
Adjustment in respect of prior years (44) 33
Total current tax charge 288 270
Deferred tax expense
Ongnation and reversal of temporary differences (200 6
Adjustment in respect of prior years 10 7
Total deferred tax (credit) charge (10) 13
Taxation 278 283

Taxation relates to a £275 million UK corporation tax charge (2012 £280 milion) and £3 million overseas corporation tax charge (2012 £3 millior)

b) Taxation recognised directly in equity

2013 2012
£m £m

Current tax credit relating to share-based payments (%) (4)
Deferred tax (credit) charge relating to share-based payments 6) 24
Deferred tax (credit) charge relating to cash flow hedges {18) 16
(26) 26
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¢) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax expense for the year 15 lower (2012 lower) than the expense that would have been charged using the blended rate of corporation tax in

the UK (23 75%) applied to profit before tax The applicable enacted or substaniively enacted effective rate of UK corporation tax for the year

was 23 75% (2012 25 5%) The differences are explained below

2013 2012
Em £m
Profit before tax 1257 1189
Profit before tax multiplied by blended rate of corporation taxin the UK of 23 75% (2012 25 5%) 299 303
Effects of
Net effact of non-taxable/non-deductible items 13 3
Deferred tax wnte-off following tax rate change - 2
Adjustments in respect of prior years (34) (25}
Taxation 278 283
8. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The weighted average number of shares for the year was
2013 2012
milionsof  Millions of
shares shares
Crdinary shares 1633 1731
ESOP trust ordinary shares (15} {0y
Basic shares 1,614 171
Dilutive ordinary shares from share options 26 16
Diluted shares 1640 1737

The calculation of diluted earnings per share excludes no share options (2012 less than 1 million) which could potenuialty dilute earmings per
share in the future but which have been excfuded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share as they are anti-dilutive 1n the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dwiding the profit for the year into the weighted average number of shares for the year
In order to provide a measure of underlying performance management have chosen to present an adjusted profit for the year which excludes

items that may distort comparability Such items anse from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group but

which management believes should be separately dentified to help explain underlying performance

2013 2012
£m £m
Reconciliation from profit for the year to adjusted profit for the year
Profit for the year 479 906
Credit received following final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes (see note 3) 33 -
Costs relating to a corporate efficiency programme (see note 3) 33 -
Credit received following an Ofcom determination (see note 3) (32) -
Costs refating to one-cff upgrade of set-top boxes (see note 3) 3 -
Costs relating te programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers (see note 3) 25 -
Costs relating to the acquisition and integration of the G2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony
busness{see ~ote 3) 15 -
Net recovery of costs In relation to News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox Inc) proposal
(seenote 3) - [E1)]
Costs relating to a restructuning exercise {see note 3) - |l
RCF fee wrnite-off (see note 4) - 5
Remeasurement of all denvatve finanaal nstruments not qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge
ineffectiveness (see note 4) (23 [U)]
Profit on disposal of joint venture (see note 13) ) 7
Tax adjusting items and the tax effect of above items a7 10
Adjusted profit for the year 969 875
2013 2012
pence pence
Earnings per share from profit for the year
Basic 607p S26p
Diluted £97p 522p
Adjusted earnings per share from adjusted profit for the year
Basic 600p 50 8p
Diluted 591p 504p

British Sky Broadcasting Group ple 77

SIUTUD IS [EDUBUIS

ER VSN o

AHIADT WhILTSRE

WIATH PIULPUL4




Annual Report 2013 Notes to the consclidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued
9. DIVIDENDS
2013 2012
£m £m
Dividends declared and paid dunng the year
20mM Final dividend paid 14 54p per ordinary share - 253
2012 Intenm dividend paid 9 20p per ordinary share ' - 157
2012 Final dividend paid 16 20p per ordinary share 265 -
2013 Intenm dividend pard 11 00p per ordinary share 176 -
441 410

The 2013 final dividend propesed Is 19 0 pence per ordinary share being £299 milhon The dvidend was not declared at the balance sheet date
and s therefore not recognised as a hability as at 30 June 2013

Dividends are paid between Group companies out of profits available for distribution subject to, inter alia the provisions of the companies
articles of association and the Companies Act 2006 The ESOP has waived its nghts to dviderxds

10. GOODWILL

Em
Carrying value
At1July 201 944
Purchase of Acetrax AG 12
At 30 June 2012 956
Purchase of O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business 49
Other . (%)
At 30 June 2013 999

Goodwill has principally ansen from the Groups purchases of the Sports Internet Group{"SIG") British Interactive Broadcasting ("BIB")
Easynet’s UK broadband network assets and residential activities, 365 Media Amstrad, Lmvng TV The Cloud and the 02 consumer broadband
and fixed-line telephony business

Goodw/li allocated by cash generating unit 1s analysed as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Broadcast? 850 807
Betting and garmng™ 149 149
999 956

Impairment reviews were performed on these goodwill balances at 30 June 2013, which did not indicate impairment
The Broadcast unit includes intangibles with indefinite Ives of £25 miuthion (2012 £25 miflon)

Recoverable amounts for the cash generating urits were calculated on the basis of value in use or farr value less casts to sell as appropriate
using cash flows calculated for the next five years as forecast by management A long-term growth rate of 3% was applied in order to
extrapolate cash flow projections beyond this period The cash flows of the Broadcast unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of
8% (2012 8%) and the cash Flows of the Betting and gaming unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2012 8%)

In determining the applicable discount rate management applied judgement in respect of several factors, which included, inter alla assessing
the nsk attached to future cash flaws and making reference to the capital asset pricing model (the "CAPM”) Management gave consideration
to the selection of appropriate Inputs to the CAPM which included the nsk free rate the equity sk premium and ameasure of systematic risk
Management also considers capital structure and an appropriate cost of debt in arrving at the discount rate

i) Broadcast

The Broadcast unit includes goodwill ansing from the purchase of BIB Easynet's UK broadband network assets and residential actvities,

365 Media s content activities, Amstrad Living TV, The Cloud and the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-ine telephony business Thekey
assumptions onwhich forecast five year cash flows of the Broadcast unit were based include the number of gross customer additions the
rate of churn the average revenue per user levels of programming spend acquisitien costs per customer and antiapated changes in the
product mix and marketing mix of the broadeast activities The values assigned to each of these assumptions were determined based onthe
extrapolation of historical trends within the Group and external information on expected future trends in the UK and Ireland entertainment
and communications industry

i1) Batting and gaming

The Betting and gaming unit includes goodwill ansing from the purchase of 5IG and 365 Medias betting actvities The key assumptions on which
forecast five year cash flows were based include the number of weekly unique users the number of bets placed per user per week, the average
stake per user per week and the average spend per active user per week The values assigned to each of these assumptions were determined
based on an extrapolation of histoncal trends within the unit and external information on expected future trends in betting and gaming
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Internalty
. generated Acquired
Software Customer intangible intangible
Internaily development contracts assets assets
’ generated (external} and related Cther notyet not yet
ntangible  and software customer ntangble avalable avallable
assets icences  relationships assets for use for use Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Cost
At 1 July 2011 04 435 60 183 26 9z 1010
Additions from business combinations - 3 - i - - 4
Additions 45 33 - 57 56 3 222
Disposals 35) (64) - ()] - - Me)
Transfers 28 20 - - (28) (20} -
At 30 June 2012 252 427 60 224 54 103 1120
Additions from business combinations - - 137 2 - - 139
Additions 102 45 - 66 25 20 258
Disposals (15) (&) - - [#3] (7} (30)
Transfers 47 59 - - [Ch)) (59) -
At 30 June 2013 386 525 197 292 30 57 1487
Amortisation
At 1 July 201 103 320 6 19 - - 548
Amortisation 54 52 3 56 - - 185
Dispasals (35) {64) - {7 - - (116)
At 30 June 2012 122 308 ] 158 - - 597
Amortisation 72 25 7 57 - - 19
Cusposals (15) €) - - (2) {7 [€19)]
Impairments 2 - - - 2 7 n
At 30 June 2013 183 357 16 215 - - 769
Carrying amounts .
At 1July 20M m 15 54 64 26 92 462
At 30 June 2012 130 ne 51 o6 54 103 523
At 30 June 2013 205 168 181 77 30 57 718

In order to Improve the presentation of the Group's intangible assets Customer contracts and related customer relationships” have been
disaggregated from the Other intangible assets category and “Software licences ' have been aggregated with the ‘Software development
(external)’ category The prior year comparatives have been re-presented accordingly

The Group's Internally generated intangible assets relate to software development associated with our customer management systems and
set-top boxes The Group's other intangible assets mainly Include copyright licences customer hsts and relationships connection fees and
patents and brands acquired in business combinations

The estimated future amortisation charge onintangible assets with finite ives for each of the next five years 1s set out below It 15 likely that
future amortisation wl vary from the figures below as the estimate does rot include the impact of any future nvestrnents, disposals or capital
expenditure

214 2015 2016 2017 2018
Em Em Em Em £m
Estimated amortisation charge 235 162 m 50 44

For ntangible assets acquired in business combinations in the year the average amortisation penod 15 & years (2012 9 years)

Other intangible assets include certain assets with indefinite useful ives The carrying value of these assets 1s £25 mitlion (2012 £25 million)
An mpairment review of the assets Is performed annually as part of the Group's review of the Broadcast CGU (rote 10)

British Sky Broadcasting Group ple 79

FIUIWIIOYS (TIUTUN

AL S oudrnIg

AR PRI



Annual Report 2013 Notes to the consolidated financal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment Assets
Freehold furniture not yet
land and Leasehold and avallable
buidings™  improvements fixtures for use Tatal
£m £m £m Em £m
Cost
At 1 July 20M 332 59 139 30 1560
Foreign exchange movements - - m - Q]
Additions - 1 192 38 231
Disposals - oM (160) - (6N
Transfers 1 - 40 (an -
At 30 June 2012 333 59 1,210 27 1,629
Additiens from business combinations - - 25 - 25
Additions 1 1 194 48 244
Disposals - (@) 64y - 66)
Transfers - - 22 (22) -
At 30 June2013 334 58 1,387 53 1,832
Depreciation
A1 July 201 31 22 en - 6564
Foreign exchange movements - - {n - m
Depreciation jle} [} 183 - 179
Disposals m m {159) - (D]
At 30 June 2012 40 27 614 - 681
Depreciation 6 8 160 - 174
Disposals - (2) (64) - (66)
Impatrrments - 1 1, - 2
At 30 June 213 46 34 n - 79
Carrying amounts
At July 201 301 37 528 30 896
At 30 June 2012 293 32 556 27 948
At 30 June 2013 288 24 676 53 1,041

) The amounts shown Inchide assets held under finance leases with a net bock value of £13 milion (2012 £5milien) The cost of these assets was £20 milion (2012 £11 miflion) and the
accumulated depreciation was £7 mithon (2012 £6 millory) Depreaation charged during the year on such assets was £1 millon (2012 £1millicr)
() Depreciationwas not charged on EB8 million of land (2012 £88 rmillion) N

13.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Alist of the Group s significant Investments 10 joint ventures and associates including the name country of incorporation and proportion of
ownership Interest i1s given In note 31 to the consolidated finanaal statements

The movement n joint ventures and associates dunng the year was as follows

2013 2002
£m £m

Share of net assets
ALY July 156 151
Movement in netassets
- Funding, net of repayments 4 &
- Dwvidends receved® (43) (39
- Share of profits® 16 32
- Disposal of joint venture® O] 3
- Exchange differences on translation of foreign joint ventures and associates 2 2
At 30 June 164 156

(3 Duringthe year the Group disposed of its nterest in MUTY Limited Included inshare of prafits for the year 1s a profit on disposaf of £¢ millian Consideration recerved onthe sale
of £10 milien s iIncludad within dividends received During the prior year the Group disposed of its interest n Chelsea Digital Media Limited Inchuded in share of profits for the
year s a profit on disposal of £7 million Consderation received on the sale to date of £6 million is included within dividends received

The Group's share of any capital commitments and contingent lizbilities of associates and joint ventures i1s shown in note 26
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a) Investments in Jont ventures
Representing the Groups share of each joint venture

2013 2012
£m Em
Mon-current assets 19 25
Current assets 7 75
Current habilities (32 (32)
Nen-current iabilitres. (40) (45)
Shareholders’ equity 18 26
Revenue S0 84
Expense {0 (69)
Taxation (5) {4y
Share of profit frem jeint ventures 15 11
b) Investments in associates
Representing a 100% share of each associate
2013 2012
£m £m
Total assets 308 256
Total habilities (86) (78)
Shareholders equity 222 178
Revenue™ 325 295
Profit® 107 105
{) Revenueand profit numbers are provided for the full year ended 20 June 2013 and 30 June 2072
14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2013 2012
Em £m
Investment in ITV at cost 9486 Q46
Impairment of ITV investment {(B07) (807)
Realised gamn on ITV investment N5 ns
Part disposal of ITV investment (196} (196)
Unrealised gain on ITV Investment 35 es
Fair value of ITV investment 409 223
Other investments at cost 13 5
422 228

On 17 November 2006 the Group acquired 696 million shares inITV, at a price of 135 pence per share, representing 179% of the 1ssued capital of
ITV for a total consideration of £946 millon including fees and taxes The Groups investment in [TV 1s carried at fair value

The fair value 1s determined with reference to its equity share price at the balance sheet date 1n accordance with IFRS, the Group has
recognised impairment losses in the years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009, the first of which was recorded at 31 December 2007 due
to the significant and prolonged dechine in the equity share price The latest impairment loss was determined with reference to ITV's closing
equity share price of 20 0 pence at 2/ March 2009 bringing the cumulative iImpatrment loss te 807 millon Inline with IFRS all subsequent
increases In the far value of the ITV Investment above this impaired value have been recorded in the available-for-sate reserve

On B February 2010 the Group placed a sharehelding of 10 4% in [TV in accordance with the final undertakings given by the Group to the
Secretary of State for Business Innovation and Skills relating to the Group's investment in [TV The placing by the Group of 404,362 095 {TV
shares at 48 5 pence per share resulted in aggregate consideration of £196 millon A profit of £115 milion was realised on disposal beingthe
excess of the consideration above the Impaired value of the shares The Group continues to hold just under 75% of the shares InITV

The disposal was exempt from tax under the provisions of the Substantial Shareholding Exemption (S5E) and as such the SSE provisions
prevent. any capital loss ansing for tax purposes

The Group holds certain unquoted equity Investments that are carried at cost less impairment The fair value of these iInvestments 1s not
constdered to differ significantly from therr carrying value
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

15 DEFERRED TAX
1) Recognised deferred tax assets (Labilities)

Share-based Finanaal
Accelerated Short-term payments Instruments
tax temporary temporary temporary
depreciation Tax josses differences differences differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
AET July 20M 14 1 5] 58 (")} 69
Charge to Income 4] - - & 53 (12
Credit to equity - - - (23) (18 (47)
Acquisition of subsidiaries [O)] - - - - m
Effect of change in tax rate
-Income - - - (2} 1 Q)]
- Equity - - - 4] 2 1
AL 30 June 2012 12 1 3] 26 30y 15
(Charge) credit to income (2) O] - 18 &) 10
Credit tc equity - - - 6 18 24
Acgrrsition of subsidiaries 02) - - - - (12)
Effect of change in tax rate
- Income 1 - Q)] Q)] 1 -
At 30 June 2013 (U] - 5 49 (16) 37

Deferred tax assets have been recognised at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 on the basis that from management's current forecast of the
Groups entities it 1s probable that there will be suitable taxable profits aganst which these assets can beutiised Tax losses are treated as
unrecognised deferred tax assets If 1t s not considerad probable that suitable future taxable profits will anse During the year any tax losses
suffered by UK entities have been relieved against taxable profits in other UK entities in the Group

Deferred tax assets and habiliies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which they reverse Therate
enacted or substantively enacted for the relevant periods of reversal s 23% as at 30 June 2013 (2012 24%)

The Government has indicated that it intends to introduce further reductions in the main tax rate, with the rate falling by 2% to 21% on 1 April
2014 and a further 1% to 20% on 1 April 2015 These further reductions to the tax rate below the 23% rate, have not been substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date and are therefore not reflected in these consolidated financial statements '

The impact of the reduction in the main tax rate to 21% (2012 22%) on the deferred tax attributes of the Group would be a reduction in the
deferred tax asset of £3 million (2012 £1 million)
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Certain deferred tax assets and liabifities have been offset The
following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
financial reporting purposes

2013 2012
Em £m
Deferred tax assets 70 486
Deferred tax habilities 33 30
37 15
iy Unrecognised deferred tax assets
2013 202
£m £m
Tax losses ansing from trading 271 252
Tax losses ansing from capital disposals and
provisions against investments 323 341
594 593

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised inrespect of the items
above because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be
avallable against which the Group can utilise the losses

At 30 June 2013, a deferred tax asset of £15 milhon (2012 £34 million)
principally ansing from UK losses in the Group has not been
recognised These losses can only be offset against taxable profits
generated In the entities concerned There (s currently insufficient
evidence te support the recognition of a deferred tax asset relating to
these losses The UK trading losses can be carried forward indefinitely

At 30 June 2013 adeferred tax asset of £256 milhon (2012 £238
millien) has not been reccgnised inrespect of overseas trading losses
on the basis that it 1s not probable that these temporary differences
will be utilised These losses include £250 million (2012 £235 million)
with respect to the Group s German holding company’s former
investment in KirchPayTV and £6 million (2012 £3 milhon) with respect
toother subsidianies £2 million of the overseas trading losses can be
carried forward indefinitely, and £4 milion of the losses will expire aver
the course of the next seven years

At 30 June 2013 adeferred tax asset of £312 mitlion (2012 £329
miliion) has not been recognised In respect of capital losses related to
the Group's former Investment in KirchPayTV, on the basis that
utilisation of these temporary differences s not probable At 30 June
2013 the Group slso has capital losses with a tax value estimated to
be £11 mitkon (2012 £12 million) ncluding impairment of a football club
and other investments which have not been recognised as a deferred
tax asset, on the basis that it 1s not probable that they will be utiised
The capital losses can be carried forward indefinitety

)

16. INVENTORIES

2013 2012

Em £Em

Television programme rights 470 379
Set-top boxes and related equiprient 70 59
Other inventories 8 8
Current inventory 548 456
Non-current programme distnbutionnghts . 17 -
Total inventory 565 456

AL 30 June 2013 89% (2012 81%) of the televisicn programme rights
and 100% (2012 100%) of set-top boxes and related equipment and
other Inventones 1s expected to be recognised in the income
statement within 12 menths

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
Em £m
Gross trade receivables 163 170
Less provision for imparrment of recewables (89} (B9
Met trade recevables 74 81
Amounts recervable from joint ventures and
associates 8 8
Amounts recervable from other related parties 7 12
Prepayments 309 294
Accrued income 162 155
VAT 1 1
Other 30 70
Current trade and other receivables 591 621
Prepayments & 7
Other recelvables n 10
Nen-current trade and other receivables 17 17
Total trade and other receivables 608 638

Inciuded within current trade and other recervables 1s nil 2012 nil)
which 15 due (n more than cne year

The ageing of the Group's net trade receivables which are past due
but not iImpatred 15 as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Up to 30 days past due date 52 49

30 to 60 days past due date 5 1
60 to 120 days past due date 2

59 52

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other
recevables approximates therr far values The Group I1s exposed to
credit risk on its trade and other recevables, however the Group does
not have any significant concentrations of credit nsk with exposure
spread over alarge number of counterparties and customers Trade
receivables principally comprise amounts outstanding from
subscribers, advertisers and other customers

Provisions for doubtful debts

2013 2012

Em £m

Balance at beginning of year 89 185
Amounts utiised (36) (137)

Provided during the year 36 31

Balance at end of year 89 B89
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012

Em Em

Trade payables® 712 629
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 9 0
Amounts owed to other related parties 102 s
VAT 143 140
Accruals 685 620
Deferred income 295 291
Other 77 75
Current trade and other payables 2,023 1,855
Trade payables 18 9
Amounts owed to other related parties - 8
Deferred income 9 6
Other 36 4
Non-current trade and other payables 63 27
Total trade and other payables 2,086 1882

() Inciuded within trade payables are £225 million {2012 £226 million) of US dollar-denominated payables

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their far values Trade payables principally
comprise amounts outstanding for programming purchases and ongoing costs

19. PROVISIONS
Provided
At Provided Utilised At Rediassified  {released) Utilised At
1July dunng during 1July during during dunng 30 June
2om the year the year 202 the year the year the year 2013
Em Em Em £m Em Em £m Em
Current habilities
Restructuring provision™ - 6 - 6 - 13 3 16
Acquired and acquisition-related provisions™ ] 4 - 15 [O)] (14) - -
Customer-related provisions™ - - - - - 47 %) 41
Cther provisions™ 10 18 (&) 22 17 17 ) 37
21 28 (6) 43 16 63 (28) 94

Non-current habilities
Other prownisions® 9 7 4) 12 2 6 {6) 14

() These provisions significantly relate to costs incurred as part of a corporate efficiency programme

an  These provisions arose on the acquisition of Amstrad which took place dunng the year ended 30 Juna 2008

(m} These provisions are for those costs incurred in the one-off upgrade of set-top boxas and the programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers

(v} Included in other provisions are ameunts provided for onerous contracts for property leases maintenance legal disputes and warranty abiities which have been reclassified to
provisions during the year The timing of the cash flows for anerous property leases and mamtenanca ars dependent on the terms of the remaining leases The tirming of the cash
flows for legal disputes cannot be reasanably datermined

o) Included within nen-current other provisions are amounts provded for onerous contracts for property leases and maintenance The Lming of the cash flows are dependent on
the terms of the leases but are expected to continue up to September 2025

20. BORROWINGS
N 2013 2012
£m £m
Current borrowings
Obligations under finance leases™ 1 3
Nen-current borrowings
Us$750 million of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2015¢ 496 500
£400 million of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017% 404 407
US$750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 498 455
US$582 8 million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2018% 404 420
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 520 -
£300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable In May 20277 296 296
US$350 million of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 225 220
Obligatiens under finance leases™ 66 &0
2908 2,398
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(1) Guaranteed Notes
At 30 June 2013 the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes which were issued by the Company
Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fixed Fleating
Em £m Em Fixed Floating

LUS$750 mithon of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 387 290 97 6829% 6mLIBOR +1832%
LS$582 8 million of @ 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in
November 2018 389 260 129 7091% ©6mLIBOR +5542%
US$800 mithon of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 503 503 - 3226% N/A
£300 mithon of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 5000% N/A

1579 1353 226

At .30 June 2013, the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes,

which were ssued by BSkyB Finance UK plc

Interest Rate Hedging HedgedInterest Rates

Hedged
Value* Fixed Floating
£m £m £m Fixed Floating
US$750 millien of 55625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2015 428 171 257 5427% 6&mLIBOR + D698%
£400 million of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 50 5750% 6mLIBOR-0229%
US$350 million of & 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 200 200 - 5826% N/&
1,028 721 307

At 30 June 2012 the Group had Ini1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes which were 1ssued by the Company

US$750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018
US$582 8 milion of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable In November 2018
E£300 million of 6 C00% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027

Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fixed Floating
£m £m £m Fixed Floating
387 290 97 6829% 6mLIBOR+1892%
389 260 129 7091% 6mLIBOR +5542%
300 300 - &000% N/A
1076 850 226

(@ ©n1June 2012 the Group entered into forward starting interest rate swaps to fix the interest rates on £260 million of the November 2018 notes from 15 May 2013 to 15 November
2018 The E£260 milion referred to as fixed inthe tabla above had one further rate reset in Novernbar 2012 before this fixed rate became effective

At 30 June 2012 the Group had inissue the following Guaranteed Notes which were ssued by BSkyB Finance UK pic

US$750 milion of 5625% Guaranteed Notes repayakle in October 2015
£400 million of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repavable in October 2017
US$350 million of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035

Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fixed floaung
£m £m £m Fixed Floating
128 171 257 5427% 6mLIBOR + 0698%
400 350 50 5750% 6mIBOR -0 229%
200 200 - 5826% MAA
1028 721 307

* Note Hedged value s the final redemption value including any hedging

The Group has a Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme ), which provides the Group with a standardised documentation platform
for senior debt 1ssuance in the Eurcbond markets The £300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes maturing in May 2027 have been issued under

the Programme which allows issuance of up to £1 bilhion
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

20. BORROWINGS continued

(i) Finance leases
The rimimum lease payments under finance leases fafl due as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year 1 B
Between one and two years " 8
Between two and three years n 8
Between three and four years 8 g
Between four and five years 8 8
After five years 144 153
193 193

Future finance charges on finance lease habilities me) (125}
Present value of finance lease labihities 77 68

The main ebligations under finance leases are n relation to

(a) finance arrangements in connection with the broadband network infrastructure During the year repayments of £7 milion (2012 £7 million)
were made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital outstanding The lease bears
interest at a rate of 111% and expires (n November 2039

(b) finance arrangements In cennection with the contact centre In Dunfermiine During the year, repayments of £1 million (2012 £1 million) were
made against the lzase A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital amount outstanding The lease bears
\nterest at a rate of 8 5% and expires in September 2020

(©) finance arrangements in connection with datacentre equipment The Group entered INto the arrangements during the year, and
repayments of less than £1 milion were made aganst the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital
amount outstanding The lease bears interest at arate of 3 6% and expires in June 2016

() Revelving Credit Facility
‘The Group has & £743 mullion RCF with a matunty date of 31 October 2017, syndicated across 10 counterparty banks, each with a minimum
credit rating of ‘Baal or equivalent from Standard & Poor's At 30 June 2013, the RCF was undrawn (2012 undrawn)

The Group 1s subject to two financial covenants under the RO, a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum nterest cover ratic, which are tested
at the end of each six monthly period The key financial covenants are the ratio of Net Debt to EBITDA (as defined in the loan agreements) and
EBITDA to Net Interest Payable (as defined in the loan agreements) Net Debt to EBITDAmust be ne more than 3 001and EBITDA to Net
Interest Payable must, be at least 3501 The Group was In compliance with these covenants for all pertods presented

(w) Guarantees

The following guarantees are in place relating to the Groups borrowings (a) British Sky Broadcasting Limited Sky Subscribers Services Limited,
BSkyB Finance UK plc and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees in relation to the Company’s £743 million RCF
and the cutstanding Guarantead Notes 1ssued by the Company (B} the Company. British Sky Broadcasting Limited, Sky Subscribers Services
Lirnited and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees in relation to the outstanding Guaranteed Notes 1ssued by
BSkyB Finance UK ple
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21 DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Set out below are the denvative financial nstruments entered into by the Group to manage Its interest rate and foreign exchange rnisks

203 2012
Asset Liability Asset Liability
FairValue Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notionat
£m Em £m £m £m Em £m Em
Far value hedges
Interest rate swaps 108 851 - - 141 833 - -
Cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps 166 mz - 47 186 661 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 37 1346 (26) 973 28 8B0 (&3] 223
Currency options (collars) - - ~ - 2 13 - 13
Denwvatives not n a formal hedge refationship
Cross-currency swaps 67 353 (s 350 57 353 23 390
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1 n4 M 49 - 25 Q] 127
interest rate swaps 1 260 - - - 140 L 120
Total 380 3840 42) 1,459 4914 2,905 G2) 873
The maturity of the derivative financial Instruments s as follows
200 2012
Asset Liakibkty Asset Liability
Em Em £m £m
Inoneyear orless 15 (13} 23 [@3)]
Between cne and two years 15 (6} 6 O]
Between two and five years 251 (2)] o n
In more than five years 99 (15} 284 (28)
Total 380 (42) 414 32)

The fair value of the Group s debt-related dervative portfolio at 30 June 2013 was a £327 million net asset (2012 net asset of £356 milhor) with
net notional principal ameounts totathng £1957 millen (2012 £1,454 miflon) This comprised net assets of £166 million designated as cash flow
hedges (2072 net assets of £186 million) net assets of £108 milhon designated as farr value hedges (2012 net assets of £141 milliom) and net
assets of £53 million not designated in a formal hedge relationship (2012 net assets of £29 million)

At 30 June 2013 the carrying value of financial assets that were upon nitial recogniuion, designated as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss was il (2012 nil)

Hedge accounting classification and Impact

The Group has designated certaininterest rate swaps as farr value hedges of interest rate risk representing 30% (2012 37%) of the Group's
debt portfolio Movements in the fair value of the hedged items are taken to the income statement and are offset by movernents in the fair
value of the hedging instruments, to the extent that hedge accounting Is achieved

The Group has desipnated certain fixed rate cross-currency swaps as cash flow hedges of 47% (2012 34%)of the Group s debt portfolio As
such, the effective portion of the gain or loss on these contracts 1s reported as a separate component of the hedging reserve, and 1s then
reclassified to the income statement in the same periods that the forecast transactions affect the Income statement Durtng the current vear,
gains of £40 milion were removed from the hedging reserve and credited to finance costs in the income statement to offset the currency
translation movements it the underlying hedged debt (2012 gains of £22 mithom)

The Group designates certain forward foreign exchange contracts and the intrinsic element of optiens (collars) as cash flow hedges of farecast
foreign currency sales and purchases Gains orlosses are released from the hedging reserve and recycled to the income statement in the same
pertod as the hedged item 1s recogrused If forecast transactions are no longer expected to occur, any amounts included in the hedging reserve
related to that forecast transaction would be recogrised directly in the iIncome statement During the current year gans of £2 million were
remeved from the hedging reserve and credited te operating expense in the income statement (2012 gains of £3 million) Gains of £8 million
were removed from the hedging reserve and credited to revenue In the income statement (2012 gains of £5 milkon)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

21. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Hedge effectiveness testing 1s performed quarterly using the dollar-offset approach The actual movement in the hedging items is compared
with the movement in the valuation of the hypothetically perfect hedge of the underlying nsk at inception and any ineffectiveness is
recognised directly in the Income statement Ineffectiveness of £2 milllon was recognised in the income statement during the current year
(2012 E1 milhion)

A hedge relationship 1s deemed to be effective if the ratio of changes m valuation of the undertying hedged item and the hedging Instrument is
within the range of 80% to 125% Any relationship which has a ratio outside this range is deemed to be ineffective, at which point hedge
accounting Is suspended During the year ended 30 June 2013 there were no Instances in which the hedge relationship was not highly effective
(2012 ne instances)

Financial instruments

(a) Carrying value and fair value

The accounting classification of each ¢lass of the Group s financial assets and financial labilities, together with therr far values,
15 as follows

Held to Derwatives Derwvatives In Total
matunty  Available- deemed held hedging  Leans and Qther carrying Total far
investments for-sale for trading relationships  receivables liabihities value value
£m Em Em £m £m Em £m £m
At 30 June 2013
Quoted bond debt - - - - - (2843) (2843) {3185)
Dernvatwe financal iInstruments - - 53 285 - - 338 338
Trade and other payables - - - - - (1567) (1587) (1567)
Provisions - - - - - {74) (74) (74)
Obhigations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - (8] (77 (€]
Avallable-for-sale iInvestments - 422 - - - - 422 422
Trade and cther receivables - - - - 278 - 278 278
Short-term deposits 595 - - - - - 595 595
Cash and cash equivalents 65 - - - 750 - 815 815
At 30 June 2012
Quoted bond debt - - - - - {2338) (2338) (2674)
Dernvative financial Instruments - - 28 354 - - 382 382
Trade and other payables - - - - - {1,378) {1378) (1378)
Provisions - - - - - 2) 12) 2)
Obligations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - (68) (68) (68)
Avallable-for-sale investments - 228 - - - - 228 228
Trade and other recevables - - - - 273 - 278 278
Shert-term deposits 710 - - - - - 710 710
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 464 - 464 464

The fair values of finanoial assets and financial iabilities are detenmined as follows

» The farr value of financial assets and financoal labiities with standard terms and conditions and which are traded on active iquid markets Is
determined with reference to quoted market prices

> The fair value of other financial assets and financial labilities (excluding dervative instruments) 1s determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments

> Foreign currency forward contracts and options are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted
interest rates matching matunities of the contracts

> Interest rate and cross-currency swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the
applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and

> The farr value of obligations under finance leases and other barrowings Is estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net present
value The fair value of short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents 1s equivalent to carrying value due to the short-term nature of
these instruments
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The differences between carrying values and farr values reflect unrealised gains or losses inherent in the financial nstruments based on
valuations as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 The volatile nature of the markets means that values at any subsequent date could be
significantly different from the values reported above

Cash and cash equivalents classified as held to maturity investments comprise money market deposits which have matunity dates of less than
three months from inception Money market depostts, enhanced return investments and tn-party repurchase agreements which have maturity
greater than three months from inception are classified as short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents classified as loans and receivables mainly comprise investments in AAAm rated money markat funds which can be

withdrawn without notice
{b) Fair value hierarchy

The folfowing table categorises the Group's financial instruments which are held at fair value Into 10of 3 levels to reflect the degree to which
observable Inputs are used in determining therr fair values

FARAT L Sl Ty

AMDING . PS4

\

Fairvalue Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

) Em £m £m £m
At 30 June 2013
Assets measured at farr value
Avallable-for-sale finanoal instruments
ITV investment 409 409 - -
Cther investments at cost 13 - - 13
Financial assets at farr value through prefit or loss
Interest rate swaps 109 - 109 -
Cross-currency swaps 233 -~ 233 -
Forward foresgn exchange and option contracts 38 - 38 -
Total 802 409 380 13
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial habitities at fair value through profit or loss A
Cross-currency swaps (15) - {15) - b
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts 27 - (27 - E
Total 42) - (42) -
AL 30 June 2012 ' ES
Assets measured at fair value 3
Avallable-for-sale financial instruments N
ITV Investment 223 223 - -
Other iInvestments at cost S - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest rate swaps 141 - 141 -
Cross-currency swaps 243 - 243 -
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts 30 - 30 -
Total 642 223 414
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial labilities at farr value through profit or loss
Cross-currency swaps (28) - (28) -
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts (4) - (4) -
Total {32)

Level1

Farr values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or abiities

Level 2

Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability either directly

or Indirectly

Level 3

Fair values measured using Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data

|
|
|
|
- (32) -
»
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22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Group Treasury activity

The Group's Treasury function I1s responsible for ratsing finance for
the Group s operations together with associated hquidity
management and management of foreign exchangs, interest rate and
credit risks Treasury operattons are conducted within a framework of
pohcies and guidelines authorised and reviewed by both the Audit
Committee and the Board which receive regular updates of Treasury
activity Derivative instruments are transacted for nsk management
purposes only it s the Groups policy that all hedging 1s to cover
known risks and no speculative trading 1s undertaken Regular and
frequent reporting to management Is required for all transactions
and exposures and the internal control environment 1s subject to
periodic review by the Group s internal audit team

The Group s principal market risks are exposures to changes in
Interest rates and foreign exchange rates, which anse both from the
Group's sources of finance and its operations Following evaluation of
those market risks, the Group selectively enters into dervative
financial nstruments to manage these exposures The principal
nstruments currently u/s,ed are Interest rate swaps tohedge Interest
rate risks, and cross-currency swaps forward foreign exchange
contracts and currency options (collars) to hedge transactional and
translational currency exposures

Interest raterisk

The Group has financial exposures to both UK and US interest rates,
arising primarily from the Groug s long-term bonds and other
borrowings The Group s hedging policy requires that between 50%
and 85% of borrowings are held at fived rates Thisis achieved by
issuing fixed rate bonds and then using iInterest rate swaps to adjust
the balance between fixed and floating rate debt The Group’s bank
debt 1s at floating rates, and when drawn, means that the rmix of fixed
and floating rate debt fluctuates and 1s therefore managed to ensure
comphance with the Group’s hedging policy At 30 tune 2013 80% of
borrowings were held at fixed rates after hedging (2012 75%)

The Group uses derivatives to convert all of its US dollar-denominated
debt and assoaated interest rate obligations to pounds sterling (see
section on foreign exchange risk for further detail) At 30 June 2013
the Group had ne net US dollar denominated interest rate exposure
on its borrowings

The Group designates its interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of
interest rate risk Moverments inthe fair value of the hedged exposure
are taken to the Income statement and are offset by movements in
the fair value of the hedging instruments which are also taken to the
Income statement Any hedge ineffectiveness 1s recognised directly in
the (ncome statement In the year ended 30 June 2013 this
amounted to £2 million (2012 £1 millior)

AL 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012, the Group’s annual finance costs
would be unaffected by any change to the Group's credit rating in
either direction #

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure tonterest rates for both dervatives and non-dervative
financial instruments at the balance sheet date For floatmgrate
habilities the analysis i1s prepared assuming the amount of hability
outstanding at the balance sheet date 15 outstanding for the whole
year

For each one hundred basis point rise or fall In interest rates at 30
June 2013, and If all other variables were held constant

> The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 would increase
or decrease by £9 millon (2012 profit for the year would increase or
decrease by £4 rmillwon) The year on year increase 1s driven by an
Increase in the cash balance held and by the fixing of £260 milion
of debt

> Other equity reserves would decrease or Increase by £15 million
(2012 decrease or increase by £14 million) ansing from movements
in cash fiow hedges

A one hundred basis point nise or fall in nterest rates represents a
large but realistic movement which can easily be multiphied to give
sensitivities at different interest rates

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be
used with caution as the impacts provided are not necessarily
indicative of the actual impacts that would be experienced because
the Group s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Group's
portfolio of debt cash ard foreign currency contracts changes In
addition, the effect of achange in a particular market variable on fair
values or cash flows 1s calculated without considering
interrelationships between the various market rates or mitigating
actions that would be taken by the Group The changes in valuations
are estimates of the impact of changes in market variables and are
not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Foreign exchange risk

A combination of cross-currency and interest rate swap
arrangaments I1s used to convert the Group s US dollar denominated
debt and associated interest rate obligations to pounds sterling, at
fixed exchange rates At 30 June 2013, the split of the Groups
aggregate borrowings into their core currencies was US dollar 73%
and pounds sterling 27% (2012 US dollar 67% and pounds sterling
33%) At 30 June 2013,100% of the Group's long-term borrowings
after the impact of derivatives are denominated in pounds sterling

The Group s revenues and operating expenses are substantially
denominated in pounds sterling A small proportion of operating
expenses Is denominated in US dollars, while a small proportion of
revenues I1s denominated in euros In the current year approximately
10% of operating expenses (£614 million) was denominated InUS
dollars (2012 approximately 10% (E532 million)) and 5% of revenues
(£392 milion) was denominated in euros {2012 6% (£382 millior))

The US dollar expense relates mainty to the Group s programming
contracts with US suppliers, together with US dollar-denominated
set-top box costs The eurc revenues priman'y relate to subscribers
located in Ireland The Group s exposure to eurc-denominated
revenue (s offset to a certain extent by euro-denominated costs
related mainly to certain transponder costs, the net position being a
euro surplus (2012 surpius)

The Group has sorme exposure to the Eurepean financal crisis
although the Group s net eurc cash flows are approximately 3% of
total group revenues and the Group's practice 1s to hold less than
£10 million on deposit In euros Whilst some of the Group s syndicate
banks are headquartered in Europe, the Group does not currently
anticipate drawing the RCF To mitigate remaining risks counterparty
credit and savereign ratings are closely monitored, and no more than
10% of cash deposits are held with a single bank counterparty (with
the exception of overnight deposits which are invested in a spread of
AAAM rated liguidity funds)
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The Group hedges currency exposures on US dollar and euro-
denominated highly probable cash flows by using forward foreign
exchange contracts and options (collars) purchased up to five years
ahead of the cash flow

It 1s the Group's policy that all anticipated foreign currency exposures
are substantially hedged in advance of the year in which they occur

At 30 June 2013, the Group had purchased forward foreign exchange
contracts and collars representing up to

> Approximately 90% of US dollar-denominated costs falling due
within one year (2012 85%) and approximately 80% of US dollar-
denominated costs falling due withen five years (2012
approximately 80%) which are hedged via
2 Outstanding cormmitments to purchase In aggregate, US$1926
million (2012 US$1 298 million) at an average rate of US$156 to
£100 (2012 USH1 5810 £100)
> Collars relating to the purchase of a total of US$nii (2012 US$20
million) (n aggregate
> Approximately 95% of net euro-denominated revenues falling due
within one year (2012 approximately 75%), and approximately 80%
of net euro-denominated revenues falling due within four years
(2012 nilywhich are hedgedvia
> QOutstanding commitments to sell in aggregate, €1,039 million
(2012 €400 milion) at an average rate of €119 to £100 (2012
€118 to £100)
> Qutstanding commitments to purchase in aggregate, €119 million
(2012 €88 million} at an average rate of €116 to £100 (2012 €122
to £100)
No forward foreign exchange contracts or collars fall due beyond five
years (2012 none)

The Group designates the following as cash flow hedges for hedge
accounting purposes

> Forward foreign exchange contracts

> The intrinsic value of collars (all other fair value movements are
recognised directly in the iIncome statement)

> Cross-currency swaps where interest on both legs is at a fixed
Interest rate

As such, the effective portion of the gain or loss on these contracts s
reported as a component of the hedging reserve, outside the income
statement, and 1s then reclassified to the mcome statement in the
same perads that the forecast transactions affect the income
statement ineffectiveness of £1 mion was recognised in the ncome
statement during the year (2012 tess than £1million)

A combination of US doflar denominated interest rate and US dollar/
pound sterhng cross-currency swaps 1s used to convert fixed dollar
denominated debt to floating steriing denominated debt The
Interest rate swaps are designated as farr value hedges The
associated cross-currency swaps are not designated as hedging
instruments for hedge accounting purposes and as such, movements
in their value are recorded directly in the income statement

Foreign exchange sensitivity

The following analyses details the Group s sensitivity ta mavements in
pounds sterling against those currencies in which it has significant
transactions The sensttivity analysts includes foreign currency
denominated assets and habilities at the balance sheet date and
outstanding foreign currency denominated finanaal Instruments and

adjusts their translation at the period end for a 25% change in foreign
currency rates

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling agamst the US dollar would
have the effect of reduaing profit by £21 miltion (2012 reduang profit
by £27 million) of which losses of £23 million relate to non-cash
movernents in the valuation of dervatives (2012 losses of £26
million) The same strengthening would have an adverse impact on
other equity of £237 million (2012 adverse impact of £185 million)

A 25% weakening In pounds sterling against the US dollar would have
the effect of iIncreasing profit by £34 million (2012 nereasing profit
by £45 millior) of whuch gains of £38 million relate to non-cash
movements In the valuation of dervatives (2012 gains of £44 million)
The same weakening would have a beneficial iImpact on other equity
of £395 million (2012 beneficial impact of £309 million)

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling agamst the euro would have
the effect of decreasing profit by £1million (2012 increasing profit by
less than £1millior) None of this amount relates to non-cash
maovements in the valuation of derivatives The same strengthening
would have a beneficial impact on ather equity of £157 million (2012
beneficial impact of £52 milliory)

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling against the euro would have the
effect of increasing profit by £1 milllon (2012 reducing profit by less
than £1milllor) None of this amount relates to non-cash movements
In the valuation of derivatives The same weakening would have an
adverse impact on cther equity of £262 million (2012 adverse impact
of £86 milllon)

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be
used with caution as the mpacts provided are not necessarily
inchcative of the actual impacts that would be experienced because
the Group 5 actual exposure to market rates i1s constantly changing as
the Group's portfolio of debt cash and foreign currency contracts
changes In addition, the effect of a change in a particular market
variable on far values or cash flows is calculated without considenng
interrelationships between the various market rates or mitigating
actions that would be taken by the Group The changes in valuations
are estimates of the impact of changes In market vanables and are
not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Hedge accounting

The interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk sections above
outline the Groups policies regarding use of derivative products
Further detail on valuations and the impact of hedge accounting
during the year are provided in note 21

Credit sk

The Group Is exposed to counterparty default nsk amounting to
invested cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits and the
positive fair value of dervative financial assets held

This risk 1s deemed to be low Counterparty risk forms a central part
of the Group's Treasury policy, which 1s monitored and reported on
regularly The Group manages credit nisk by diversifying its exposures
across a wide number of counterparties such that the maximum
exposure to any indwidual counterparty was less than 10% of the
total asset value of Instruments at the end of the year Treasury
policies ensure that all derivative transactions are only effected with
strong relationship banks and at the date of signing, each carried a
miremum credit rating of “Baal” or equivatent from Standard & Poor’s
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22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contmnued

The amount recognised In the income statement inrespect of credit
risk for dervatives deemed held for trading1s nil (2012 nil)

Credit risk in our residential customer base s mitigated by biling and
collecting in advance for digital telewision subscriptions for over 39%
of our residential customer base The Group s maximum exposure to
credit risk on trade recevables is the carrying amounts as disclosed m
note 17

Liquicity risk

Our principal source of iquidity 1s cash generated from operations
combined with access to a £743 milion RCF which expires in October
2017 with the nght to request an extension of one further year At
30 June 2013 this facihty was undrawn (30 June 2012 undrawr}

+
To ensure continuity of funding the Group s policy 15 to ensure that
availlable funding matures over a penod of years At 30 June 2013
40% (2012 59%) of the Groups total avallable funding (including
avallable undrawn amounts on our RCF) was due to mature Inmore
than five years

Full details of the Group s borrowings and undrawn facilities are
shown In note 20 other than trade and other payables, shownin
note 18, and provisions, shown in note 19
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The following table analyses the Group s non-derivative finanaial liabilities net settled dervative financial Instruments and gross settled
financial Instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractua! maturity
date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Flows and may therefore not reconale to the amounts
disclosed on the balance sheet for borrowings denvative financial instruments, provisians and trade and other payables

Between Between

Less than oneand twoand More than
2months  twoyears fiveyears  five years
£m Em Em £m
At 30 June 2013
Non derivative financial labilities N
Bonds - USD 125 125 1291 1490
Bonds - GBF 41 a1 500 462
Obligations under finance leases and other borrowings n n 27 144
Trade and other payables 1457 o7 3 -
Prowisions &6 4 1 3
Met settled denvatives
Financial assets (32) (32) (65) {6)
Gross settled denvatives
Qutflow 1020 760 1687 1,381
Inflow . (1028} (775) (1876} {417
Between Between
Less than one and twoand  More than
12months  twoyears fiveyears  five years
£m Em Em Em
At 30 June 2012
Non denvative financial habilities .
Bonds - USD 107 107 760 1433
Bonds - GBP 41 41 123 903
Obligations under finance leases and other borrowings 8 8 24 153
Trade and other payables 1281 86 n -
Provisions S 4 1 1
Net settled derivatives
Financial assets {32 32 [{:1)] 28
Gross settled derivatives >
Outflow 894 39N 759 1255
Inflow (917} (357) {813y (1,408)
Caprtal Risk Management

The Group's objectives when managing capitaf are to endeavour to ensure that the Group has the ability tc access capital markets when
necessary and to optimise lquidity and operating flexibility through the arrangement of new debt, while seeking to minimise the cost of
capital The Group monitors Its iquidity requirements regularly and 1s satisfied that it has access to sufficient iquidity and operating flexibility
to meet Its capital requirements

grade credit rating (BBB- or better from Standard & Poor's and Baa3 or better from Moody’s) The Groups current ratings are BBB+ (Standard
& Poor’s) and Baal (Moody s) The leverage ratios assessed by these rating agencies are those of Net Debt EBITDA and Gross Debt EBITDA Net
Debt I1s defined as total borrowings, including the cash flows ansing under operating leases and transponder prepayments, less cash and cash
equivalents excluding dervatives Gross Debt does not reduce total borrowings by the inclusron of cash and cash equivalents

The Group manages Its short and long-term canitat structure by seeking to manmtain leverage ratins consistent with a long-term invastrment

The Group 1s also required to maintain a Net Debt EBITDA ratio below 3 00 1 and an EBITDA to Net Interest Payable ratio at above 3 501 under
the terms of its RCF The RCF definiticn of Net Debt does not require the inclusion of future operating lease or transponder cash flows

At 30 June 2013, the Net Debt EBITDA ratio as defined by the terms of the RCFwas 071{2012 061) and the EBITDA to Net Interest Payable
ratiowas 13412012 1377)
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23 SHARE CAPITAL

2003 2012
£m £m
Allotted, called-up and fully paid shares of 50p

1593905182 (2012 1674 454 881) 797 837

2013 2012

Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary

shares shares

Allotted and fully paid during the year
Beginning of year

Shares repurchased and
subsequently cancelled

End of year

1674454881 1752842599

(80549699)  (78387718)
1593905182 1674 454 881

The Company has cne class of ordinary shares which carry equal voting
nghts and no contractual right to receive payment. Full details of the
Company’s share buy-back programme are provided in note 24

Share option and contingent share award schemes
The Company operates varnous equity-settled share option schemes
(the “Schemes ) for certain employees

The number of newly Issued shares which may be allocated under the
Schemes on any day shall not, when aggregated with the number of
newly 1ssued shares which have been allocated in the previous ten
years under the Schemes and any other employee share scheme
adopted by the Company, exceed such number as represents five
percent of the ordinary share capital of the Company in 1ssue
immedhately prior te that day In determining this irmit no account shall
be taken of any newly issued shares where the night to acquire the
newly Issued shares was released, lapsed, cancelled or otherwise
became incapable of exeraise Options and awards which will be
satisfied by ESOP shares do not fall within these headroom mits

The share awards outstanding can be summansed as follows

2013 2002

Numberof Number of

ordinary  ordinary

shares shares

Executive Share Option Scheme options™® 931247 2630435

Sharesave Scheme options®™
Management LTIP awards™

LTIP awards™

Management Co-lnvestment LTIP awards™
Co-Investment LTIP awards™

7156954 7238348
2436512 15018148
8844132 6462723
1975705 1859416
2068175 1953013

45,344 325 35172083

(1) Executive Share Option Scheme options

All Executive Share Option Scheme options cutstanding at 30 June
2013 and 30 June 2012 have vested No options have been granted
under the scheme since 2004

Grants under the Executive Share Option Scheme were made on an
annual basis to selectad employees, with the exercise pnce of options
being equal to the Company s share price on the date of grant For
those options with performance conditions growth in EPS had to
exceed growth in the Retail Prices Index plus 3% per annum in order
for awards to vest Options vested on an accelerated basis over a

.
.

period of up to four years from the date of grant The contractual ife
of all Executive Share Option Scheme options 15 ten years

{n) Sharesave Scheme options

All Sharesave Scheme options outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012 have no performance critena attached, other than the
requirement that the employee remains In employment with the
Group Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme must be
exercised within six months of the relevant award vesting date

The Sharesave Scheme 15 cpen to altemployees Options are normally
exercisable after either three or five years from the date of grant The
price at which eptions are offered 1s not less than 80% of the
rrudclle-market price on the dealing day iImmediately preceding the
date of invitation 1€ 15 the policy of the Group to make an Invitation to
employees to participate In the scheme following the announcement
of the end of year results

() Management LTIP awards

All Management LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012 vest only If performance conditions are met Awards
granted under the Management LTIP must be exercised within five
vears of the relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the
Management LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror the LTIP with the
same performance conditions Awards exercised under the
Management LTIP can only be satisfied by the 1ssue of market-
purchased shares

{v) LTIP awards !

All LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 vest
only If performance conditions are met Awards granted under the LTIP
must be &xercised wathin five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company operates the LTIP for Executive Directors and Senior
Executves Awards under the scheme are granted inthe formof a
rul-priced option and are satisfied using market-purchased shares
The awards vest in full or in part dependent on the satisfaction of
specified performance targets For awards made in 2008 and 2009

(1 e awards that vested in 2011}, 30% of the award vested dependent
on TSR performance over a three year performance period relative to
the constituents of the FTSE 100 at the time of grant and the
remaining 70% vested dependent on performance aganst operational
targets The TSR performance targets were not applicable to awards
made between July 2010 and March 2012 but have been re-introduced
for awards granted From July 2012 onwards

(v) Management Co-Investment LTIP awards

All Management Co-Investment LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June
2013 and 30 June 2012 vest only If performance canditions are met
Awards granted under the Management Co-Investment LTIP must be
exercised within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the
Management Co-Investment LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror
the Co-Investment LTIP with the same performance conditions

(v1) Co-Investment LTIP awards

All Co-Investment LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012 vest only (f performance conditions are met Awards
granted under the Co-Investment LTIP must be exarased within five
years of the relevant award vesting date
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The Company operates the Co-Investment LTIP award for Executive Directors and Senior Executives Employees who participate in the plan are
granted a conditionzl award of shares based on the amount they have invested in the Company s shares The investment will be matched up to
a maximum of 15 shares for every share invested subject to a three-year EPS performance condition

For the purposes of the disclosure below, the Management LTI, LTIP, Management Co-Investment LTIP and Co-Investment LTIP awards { Senior

Management Schemas™) have been aggregated

The movermnant N share awards outstanding 1s surmmarised in the following table

Serer Management

Executive Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

exercise exercise exercise exeraise

price price price price

Number £ Number £ Nurnber £ Number £

Qutstanding at 1 July 2011 5583424 665 7722365 388 33492234 000 46798023 143
Granted dunng the year - - 3533830 508 10660219 000 147194049 126
Exercised during the year (632882) 559  (2995574) 243 Q7066707 000 (20702163) 05z
Forfeited duning the year (69147) 586 {985585) 470 (1782446) Qoo (2837578) 178
Expired during the year (2243 960) 7483 (36288) 525 - - (2280248 789
Outstanding at 30 June 2012 2630435 584 7238348 494 25303300 000 35172083 145
Granted dunng the year - - 2059022 608 15012 581 Q00 17071613 073
Exercised during the year (1592 820) 588 (1341667) 440 (1824 435) 000 (4,765922) 321
Forfeited during the year (64334) 604 (795 749) 519 (1238332) 000  (2098415) 215
Expired during the year (35034) 530 - - - - {35,034) 530
Qutstanding at 30 June 2013 931,247 579 7,159,954 534 372533124 D00 45344,325 096

The weighted average market price of the Groups shares at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was £783 (2012
£701) Forthose exercised under the Executive Scheme it was £779 (2012 £719) for those exercised under the Sharesave Scheme it was £819
(2012 £6 89) and for those exercised under the Senior Management Schemes it was £760 (2012 £703)

The middle-market closing price of the Company’s shares at 28 June 2013 was £792 (29 June 2012 £6 97)
The following table summarnises information abeout share awards outstanding at 30 June 2013

Seror Management

Executive Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Woeighted

average average average average

remaming remaining remamning remaining

contractual contractual contractual contractual

Ife life Ife Ife

Range of exercise prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
£000-£100 - - - - 37253124 59 37253124 59
£300-E400 - - 410643 1" - - 410643 11
£400-£500 - - 440134 17 - - 440134 17
£500-£600 485586 n 4387408 26 - - 4872995 25
EG 00 -E£700 444163 0z 1921768 35 - - 2365531 29
F700-FR00 1498 n7 - - - - 1498 n7
9,247 o7 7159,954 27 37253124 59 45344325 53

The following table summarises information abeut share awards outstanding at 30 June 2012

Senior Management

Executive Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

remaming rematning remaining rematning

contractual contractual contractual contractual

Iife life Ife life

Range of exerase prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
£000-£100 -, - - - 25303300 60 25302300 60
£300-£400 - - 578155 16 - - 578,155 16
£400-£500 - - 1597612 16 - - 1597612 16
£500-£600 1318,767 16 5062581 36 - - 6381348 32
£600-£700 1310170 11 - - - - 131017C 11
E700-£800 1498 17 - - - - 1458 17
i 2,630,435 14 7,238 348 30 25303300 60 35172083 50
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continued

23. SHARE CAPITAL continued

The range of exercise prices of the awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 was between riland £716 {2012 niland £716) For those awards
outstanding under the Executive Scheme it was between £503 and £716 (2012 £503 and £716), for those outstanding under the Sharesave
Scherne It was between £372 and £6 08 (2012 £3 72 and £5 65) and for all awards outstanding under the Senior Management Schemes the

exercise price was nil (2012 nil)

The following table summarises additional Information about the awards exeraisable at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012

2013 2012

Average Average

remaining remaning
contractual Weighted contractual Weighted
Options Iife of average Optiens Iife of average
exercisable  exercisable exercise  exercisable  exercisable axercise
at 30 June options prce at 30 June optons price
Executive Scheme 931247 07 579 2630435 14 584
Sharesave Scheme 97457 o1 449 160403 01 380
SenjorManagement Schemes 663972 37 0Q0 1258950 41 000
1,692 676 18 345 4,049,788 22 395

Information for awards granted during the year

The weighted average fair value of equity-settied share options granted during the year, as estimated at the date of grant, was £516 (2012
£539) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricang model except for awards which have market-based performance
conditions, where a Monte-Carlo simulation medel was used, and for grants of nil-priced options, which were treated as the award of a free
share The fair value of nil-priced options granted durng the year was measured on the basis of the market-price of the Company’s shares on

the date of grant, discounted for expected dividends which would not be receved over the vesting period of the options

The Monte-Carie simulation mode! reflected the ristorical volatilities of the Company s share price and those of all other companies to which

the Company's performance would be compared over a period equal to the vesting period of the awards

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the hustorical volatility of the Cornpany's share price over a periad equal to the expected life
of the options Expected life was based on the contractual life of the awards and adjusted based on management s best estimate, for the

effacts of exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

(1) Sharesave Schemea

The weighted average farr value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Sharesave Scheme, as estimated at the date

of grant, was £151 (2012 £187) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calculating these fair values

2013 202
Share price £751 £688
Exercise price £608 £508
Expected volatility 24 0% 286%
Expectedlife 40vyears 45vyears
Expected dwvidends 3 4% 34%
Risk-free interest rate C4% 10%

(1) Semor Management Schemes

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Senior Management Schemes, as estimated
at the date of grant was £5 66 (2012 £6 56) The far value of awards with market-based performance conditions was calculated using &
Monte-Carle simulation model Awards granted as nil-priced options were treated as the award of a free share For all other awards far value

was calculated using the Black-Scho'les share option pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in caleulating these fair values

2013 2012
Share price £716 E£704
Exercise price £000 £000
Expected volatility y 63% -
Expected hfe 3Qvyears 21vyears
Expected dividends 36% 33%
Risk-free interest rate 00% -
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24, SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

2013 2012 32
Em £m &

Share capital 797 837 £
Share prenium 1437 1437 ]
ESOP reserve {147) M2y
Hedging reserve il
Available-for-sale reserve 351 165
Other reserves 439 399
Retained earnings (1876) {1850)

1012 9544

Purchase of own equity shares for cancellation

On 29 November 2011 at the Company's AGM the Company was granted the authority to return E750 million of capital to shareholders via a
share buy-back programme (the “November 2011 Authonty”) This authority was subject to an agreement between the Company and Twenty-
First Century Fox Inc (Formerly known as News Corporation) (and others) dated 28 July 2011 whereby following any market purchases of shares
by the Company Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would sell to the Company sufficient shares to maintain its percentage shareholding at the
same tevel as applied prior to those market purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox Inc would be the price payable by the
Company In respect of the relevant market purchases (the “2011 Share Buy-back Agreement”)

At the Company’s AGM on 1 November 2012 the Company was granted the authonity to return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme (the “Novernber 2012 Authonity') This authorty was subject to an agreement between the Company and
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc (and others) dated 28 July 2012 on substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement

SIUILRIETS jeDULU

During the year, the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled, 80,549,699 ordinary shares at an average price of £775 per share with
a norminal value of £40 million, for a constderation of £627 milion Consideration included stamp duty and commussion of £3 milion This
represents 5% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the period Of these purchases the Company purchased, and subsequently
cancelled, 31525 314 ordinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox Inc at an average price of £775 per share, with a nominal value of

£16 mullion, for a consideration of £245 million Consideration iIncluded stamp duty of £1 million

During the prior year, the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled, 78 387718 ardinary shares at an average price of £6 92 per share
with a nominal value of £39 milhon, for a total consideration of £546 milion Consideration included stamp duty and commission of £3 milion
This represented 4% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the peniod Of these purchases, the Company purchased and subsequently
cancelled, 30,679,157 ordinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc at an average price of £6 92 per share with a nominal value of
E15million for a consideration of £213 millon Consideration included stamp duty of £1million

The following table provides information about purchases of equity shares by the company, including purchases by the Group s ESOP, during
the fiscal year

Capital Capital
Total capital Total capital authonsedtobe authonsedtobe
returned returned  retumed under  returned under
Average under the underthe  theNovember  the November
Totalnumber  price paid November 2011 November 2012 201 2012
of shares per share Authonty Authonty Authonty Authonty

Period purchased® £ Em® Em™ Emb®m £m®
Juty 1269480 693 =] - 198 -
August 9073208 742 67 - 13 -
September 9904,203 742 74 - 57 -
October 4261576 736 El - 26 -
November 23502002 761 4 106 - 394
December 15809283 768 - 121 - 273
January - - - - - 273
February 2029vn 814 - 17 - 256
March 728450 B67 - 6 - 250
Apnl 4909090 858 - 42 - 208
May 172347059 815 - 141 - 67
June 821527 777 - 6 - 61
Total for the year ended 30 June 2013 89,545 699 774 185 439 - 61

() Alishare purchases are included in the month of settlement
() The Movember 201 Authority expired on 1 November 2012 Accerdingly no more repurchases cantake place urder this authority
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24 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY contmnued

Share premium and special reserve

On 10 December 2003, the High Court approved a reduction in the Company’s share premium account of £1120 million, as approved by the
Company’s sharehalders at the AGM held on 14 November 2003 This amount was equal to the Company-only profit and loss account reserve
deficit at 30 June 2003 As part of the application, the Company’s balance sheet at 30 September 2003 was required to be presented At that
date, the deficit on the Company-only profit and loss account reserve had reduced by £14 million since 39 June 2003 to E1106 million As a
condition of the reduction, the reduction in the share premiurn account of £1120 milion was permitted to be offset against the profit and loss
account reserve by the amount of the deficit at 30 September 2003 The excess of £14 million was credited to a special reserve, which 1s
inciuded 1n other reserves, and, under the terms of the reduction will remain undistributable until all the creditors of the Company and its
guarantors (as at 10 December 2003) are pad

ESOP reserve
The cost of the Company’s ordinary shares held by the Groups ESOP Is treated as a deduction in arriving at total shareholders equity The
movement in the ESOP reserve was as follows

Number of Average
ordinary price paid
shares per share £m
At1 July 20m 13832609 E775 107
Share options exercised during the year (20702163} £755 (156)
Shares purchased by the ESOP during the year 23162 899 £693 161
At 30 June 2012 16 293 345 £6 85 12
Share options exercised during the year \ (4,765922) £714 (34)
Shares purchased by the ESOP durning the year 9000000 £769 69
At 30 June 2013 20,527,423 £715 147

Hedging reserve

Changes n the fair values of denvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are inibially recognised in the hedging reserve and
subsequently recognised In the income statement when the related hedged items are recognised in the income staterment In addition
deferred taxation relating to these derivatives is also initially recognised in the hedging reserve prior to transfer to the Income statement

Available-for-sale reserve
Avallable-for-sale iInvestments are carned at fair value where this can be reliably measured with movements in the farr value recogrised directly in
the avalable-for-sale reserve At 30 June 2013, the Group's available-for-sale reserve was £351 million {2012 £165 muliion)

Other reserves

The Group § other reserves include a capital redemption reserve, a merger reserve, a foreign currency translation reserve and a special reserve
The capital redemption reserve was £174 million as at 30 June 2013 (2012 £134 millior) The merger reserve was £222 million as at 30 June 2013
(2012 £222 millory) The special reserve was £14 million as at 30 June 2013 (2012 £14 millon) The foreign currency translation reserve was

£29 milion as at 30 June 2013 (2012 £29 millon)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve was created in accordance with the merger relief prowisions under section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended) and
section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the accounting for business combinations rwoling the i1ssue of shares at a premium Merger
relief provided relief from the requirement to create a share premium account in a parent company’s balance sheet In preparing consolidated
financial statements the amount by which the fair value of the shares issued exceeded their nomingl value was recorded within a merger
reserve on consolidation rather than in a share premium account This merger reserve was retained upon transition to IFRS as allowed under
UK law

The merger reserve, which is included in other reserves was created as a result of the purchase by the Group of interests in two entities

SIG was purchased on 12 July 2000 where consideration was patd by the 1ssue of equity shares in the Company BiB was purchased between
28 June 2001 and 11 Novernber 2002, where consideration was paid by the 1ssue of equity shares inthe Company At 30 lune 2013 the Group’s
merger reserve was E222 millon (2012 £222 mullion)

\
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25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MulAT S5IUERE

=
Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations ;*
2013 2012 a
£m £m E
Profit before tax 1,257 1189 b
Depreciation and impairment of property plant and equipment 176 179
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 202 165
Share-based payment expense BO 66
Net finance costs BO o3 g
Share of resuits of joint ventures and assoclases (45) (39) i
1749 1653 2
Decrease (increase) :n trade and other receivables L3 (32) 3
Increase in inventories (93) 81)
Increase in trade and other payables 136 175
Increase in provisions 52 25
Decrease in derivative financial instruments 2 [€)]
Cash generated from cperations 1.877 1737
3
26. CONTRACTED COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES g
n
a) Future minimum expenditure contracted for but not recognised in the financial statements g
Year Year Year Year Year §
ending ending ending ending ending Totalat Total at §
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June Afters 30 June 30 June
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 years 2012 2012
£m £m Em Em £ £m £m £m
Television programme rights”™ ’ 1488 1387 1199 356 212 12 4763 5102
Set-top boxes and related equipment 202 - - - - - 202 182
Third party payments™ 62 56 50 21 - - 189 210
Transponder capacity*? 82 83 79 75 68 247 634 683
Property, plant and equipment 17 - - - - - 17 27
Intangible assets® 23 18 28 19 15 5 12 144
Smartcards™ 42 44 45 45 45 n 232 276
Other 262 m 84 70 41 6 574 337
2178 1699 1485 586 385 390 6,723 6,961

Foreign currency commitments are transtated to pounds sterling at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet date

() At 30 June 2013 the Group had miruimum television programming rights commitments of £4 763 milion (2012 £5102 millien) of which £506 milion (2012 £376 millor related to
commitments payable in US dollars for peniods of up to seven years (2012 six years) Assuming that movig subscriber numbers remain unchanged from current levels an
additional £531 million (US$808 midhon) of commitments (2012 E420 million (US$652 mihion)}would also be payable inUS doltars relating to price escalater clauses The pound
steriing television programme rights commitments include similar price escalation clauses that would result in additional commitments of £163 million (2012 E9 rilion) i
subscribar numbers were to remain at current levels

() The third party payment commitments are in respect of distnibution agreements for the tetevision channels owned and broadcast by third parties retaled by the Group to retall
and commercial subscnbers { Sky Distnibuted Channels™ and are for periods of up to five years (2012 five years). The extent of the commitment s largely dependent upon the
number of retail subscribers to the relevant Sky LiStrioutea Cnannets anu ncer Lamn cases upon nfausnary icreases 'Fhoth theretatoubocnberla als tarhees channels and
the rate payable for each Sky Distributed Channel were ta remain at current levels subject toinflationary Increases the additionat commitment would ba £8C5 milion (2012
£463 mill:ory)

() Transponder capacity commitments are mrespect of tha Astra Eutelsat and Telenor Satellite Broadcasting AS satellites that the Group uses for digial transimisstons to both
retail subscribers and cable operators The commitmants are for periods of up to twelve years (2092 thirteen yearsy

(w) Commitments inrelation to the provision of smartcards Smartcards under developrent are included within intangible assets The amounts included above are the expected
ongoing smartcard costs based on forecast customer levels

b) Contingencies and guarantees

Certain subsidianes of the Company have agreed to provide additional funding to several of their investments in imited and unhmited
companies and partnerships, in accordance with funding agreements Payment of this additional funding would be required if requested by the
investeas in accordance with the funding agreements The maximum potential amount of future payments which may be required to be made
by the subsidiaries of the Company te therr Investments, in both imited and unhmited companies and partnerships under the undertakings
and addittonal funding agreements, 1s £25 million (2012 £30 million)

The Group has guarantees in place refating to the Group s borrowings see note 20

Competition Appeal Tribunal (CAT)
On 8 August 2012 the Competition Appeal Tribunal (the “CAT")1ssued its judgment in the appeals against Ofcomns decision to Impose
wholesale must-offer abligations on Sky {the ‘Pay TV Judgment”) The CAT found that Ofcom s core competition concerns were unfounded and
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coritinued

26. CONTRACTED COMMITMENTS,
CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES continued

that accordingly Sky's appeal must be allowed On 26 Apnil 2013 BT
was granted permission to appeal the Pay TV Judgment 1n the Court
of Appeal Pending determination of BT's appea! the Court of Appeal
has stayed withdrawa! of the WMO obligations and distribution of the
manes paid by relevang wholesale customers into escrow on an
interim basis (being the difference between the maximum price Sky
may charge for Sky Sports 1and Sky Sports 2 under the WMO
obligations and Sky's rate card prices for the channels)

At 30 June 2013 £31 million of cash 1s being held in the escrow
account

Ofcom determination

Included within direct networks costs for the year ended 30 June
201315 a credit of £32 million In relation to a credit note receved from
BT following an Ofcom determination which requires BT to repay
monies ta Sky for overcharged-for Ethernet services (backhaul)
between 2006/07 and 200910 Sky BT and others have appealed
Ofcoms determination In the CAT

27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The mimmum lease rentals to be paid under non-cancellable
operating leases at 30 June are as follows

2013 2072

£m Em

Within ane year a9 49
Between one and two years 42 39
Between two and three years 35 32
Between three and four years 37 27
Between four and five years 8 20
After five years 45 59
226 226

The majority of operating leases relate to property The rents payable
under these leases are subject torenegotiation at the various
intervals specified in the leases

The minimum sub-lease rentals to be recewed under non-cancellable
operating sub-leases at 30 June are as follows

2013 2012

£m ‘ £m

Within one year 2 6
Between one and two years 2 3
Between two and three years 2 2
Between three and four years 2 2
Between four and five years 1 2
After five years 5 6
14 21

Sub-lease rentals primarily relate to property leases

28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS )

a) Entities with joint control or significant influence

During the year the Group conducted business transactions with
companies that form part of the Twenty-First Century Fox Inc group
(formerly known as News Corporation) a major shareholderin the
Company

Transactions with related parties and amounits outstanding in
relation to those tramsactions and with related parties at 30 June are
as follows

2013 2012

Em £m

Supply of goads or services by the Group 89 79
Purchases of goods or services by the Group {156) (199)

Amounts owed to the Group 7 12
Amounts owed by the Group (102) 98)

At 30 June 2013 the Group had expenditure commitments &f £97
million in refation to transactions with related parties and with related
parties (2012 £462 milliom) of which £97 million (2012 £58 million)
related to minimum television programning nghts commitments and
nil (2012 £404 million) related to expected ongoing smartcard costs

Goods and services supplied

During the year, the Group supplied set-top boxes, programming,
artime transmisston marketing, consultancy services, customer
relationship management services and a hcence to use the Sky brand
to Twenty-First Century Fox Inc companies

Purchases of goods and services and certain other relationships
During the year the Group purchased programming, digital
equipment, smartcards and encryption services set-top box
technologles advertising and IT services from Twenty-First Century
Fox, Inc companies

There Is an agreernent between Twenty-First Century Fox, inc
(Formerly known as News Corporation) and the Group pursuant to
which 1t was agreed that for solongas Twenty-First Century Fox, inc
directly or indirectly holds an interest of 30% or more 1n the Group
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc will nct engage in the business of
satellite broadcasting in the UK or ireland

Share buy-back programme

During the year, the Cempany purchased, and subsequently cancelled,
31,525,314 erdinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc as
part of its share buy-back programme for further details see

note 24

b) Jont ventures and associates

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are
related parties, have been eliminated on conselidation and are not
disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures and associates are ¢isclosed below

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries joint
ventures and associates are disclosed in the Company’s separate
financial statements

2003 2012
£m £m
Supply of services by the Group 22 24
Purchases of goods or services by the Group {66) ®7
Amounts cwed by Joint ventures and associates
to the Group 9 15
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates
by the Group (S} (10)

Servicas supplied are primarily the provision of transponder capacity,
marketing, arme sales and support services Purchases represent, fees
payable for channel carriage Amounts owed by joint ventures and
assoaates include £1milion (2012 £7 million) relating toloan funding.
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'
These loans bear interest at a rate of one month LIBOR plus 1% The
maximum amount of loan funding outstanding in total from joing
ventures and associates during the year was £7 rmilion (2012 £16 million)

The Group took out a number of forward exchange contracts with
counterparty banks during the year on behalf of the joint venture
AETN UK On the same dates as these forward contracts were entered
nto, the Group entered into equal and opposite contracts with AETN
UK n respect of these forward contracts

Consequently the Group was not eéxposed to any of the net gains or
losses on these forward contracts The face value of forward
exchange contracts with AETN UK that had not matured as at 30 June
2013 was £8 milhon (2012 £2 mullvon)

During the year US$4 milion (2012 US$3 million) was paid to the joint
ventura upon matunty of forward exchange contracts and US$nil
(2012 US$H14 milliony was receved from the joint venture upon
ratunty of forward exchange contracts

During the year, £2 millon (2012 £2 millkon) was recerved from the jomt
venture upon matunty of forward exchange contracts and £3 mifion
(2012 £7 million) was patd to the joint venture upon maturity of
forward exchange contracts

During the year, €4 milion (2012 €nil) was received from the joint
venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts and €nil (2012
€2 milhion) was pand to the jont venture upen matunty of forward
exchange contracts

At 30 June 2013 the Group had minimum expenditure commitments
of £4 milhon (2012 £1 miltion) with its joint ventures and associates

¢) Other transactions with related parties

A close family member of one Director of the Company runs Freud
Communications Limited ("Freud”} which has provided external
support to the press and publicity activities of the Group During the
year the Group incurred expenditure amounting to £1 million (2012
£1 malhor) wath Freud At 30 June 2013 there was less than E1miltion
(2012 less than £1milhon) due to Freud

In addition te the foregoing, the Group has engaged in a number of
transactions with companies of which some of the Company's
Directors are also directors These do not meet the definition of
related party transactions

d) Key management

The Group has a related party relationship with the Directors of the
Company At 30 June 2013, there were 14 (2012 14) members of key
management all of whom were Directors of the Company Key
management compensation is disclosed in note 6b

29 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

02 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business

On 30 Apri1 2013, the Group completed the purchase of the 02
consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business from
Telefonica UK, comprising 100% of the share capital of Be Un Limited
subsequently renamed Sky Home Cormmurucations Limited

{'the acquisition”) The acquisition was made in order toincrease the
scale of the Group's existing home communications operation

Total consideration compnised £180 milion of cash relating to the
purchase price, contingent constderation of £20 millon and a
provistonal £5 million cash adjustment relating to working capital and
active subscribers The provisional warking capital and active
subscribers adjustrment was estimated by Telefénica UK and paid at

completion the process of venification of and agreement on these
estimates 1S ongoing.

Recognised
fair values
£m
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and
habilittes assumed
Intangible assets 137
Property plant and equipment 25
Trade and cther receivables 7
Trade and other payables 3
Deferred tax hability {10)
156
Goodwill 49
Satisfied by consideration
Cash - purchase price 180
Contingent consideration arrangement 20
Cash - estimated working capital adjustment and active
subscribers adjustment 5
Net cash outflow ansing on purchase
Cash paid 185

All amounts in the above table are provisional

The fair value of the financial assets acquired includes trade
recevables with a fair value and gross contractual value of £6 milion
The best estimate at the acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not likely to be collected was less than £1 million

Goodwill of £48 millien arising from the acquisition reflects buyer-
specific synergies and the strategic value of accelerating the Group's
development in the UK broadband market None of the goodwill
recognised I1s expected to be deductible for ncome tax purposes

The contingent consideration 1s payable dependent upon the
successful delivery and cormpletion of the customer migration process
by Telefénica UK The potential undiscounted amount of all future
payments that the Group could be required to make under the
contingent consideration arrangement 1S between nil and £20 million
£20 million has been recognised as the fair value of this arrangement
at the acquisition date

Acquisition-related costs included in operating expense in the
Groups consoldated income statement for the year ended 30 June
2013 amounted to £15 million and comprise princspally of costs
relating to the integration of the acquired customer base

For the period between the date of purchase and 30 June 2013, the
acquisition contributed £15 million to the Group's revenue and less
than £1million to the Group’s profit before tax If the Group had
completed the purchase on the first day of the financiat year it1s
estimated that the acquisttion would have contributed £90 mithon to
Group revenue and an immatenal amount to the Group s profit for
the year

30 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 July 2013, the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme Shareholder approvals will be sought at the
Company's AGM on 22 Novermnber 2013 The Company has entered into an
agreement with Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. (formerly known as News
Corporation) (and others)under which following any market purchases
of shares by the Company Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc will sell to the
Company sufficient shares to maintan its percentage shareholding at
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continued

30 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD continued

the same level as applied prior to those market purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox Inc will be the price payable by the
Company In respect of the relevant market purchases The agreement 1s conditional on the appropriate shareholder approvals being granted The
effect of the agreement 1s to provide that there will be no change in Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc’s economic or vobing interests in the Company as a
result of the share buy-back programme

31. GROUP INVESTMENTS

The significant Investrnents of the Company which principally affect the consclidated results and totat assets of the Group are
as follows

Name Country of Description and proportion of
Incorporation shares held (%) Principal activity
Subsidiaries
Direct holdings of the Company
British Sky Broadcastmg Limited United Kingdom 10002 002 ordinary shares af £1each (100%) QOperation of pay television broadeasting and
horme commurucations services in the UK and
Ireland
BSkyB Finance UK plc United Kingdom 50C00 ardinary shares of £1 each (100%) Finance company
Subsidianes
Indirect holdings of the Company
Sky Subscribers Services Limited United Kingdom 3 ordinary shares of £1 each {100%) Provisicn of anallary functions supporting the pay
television broadcasting residential broadband
and telephone operations of the Group
Sky Holdings Limited United Kingdom 600 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Hoelding company
Sky In-Home Service Limited United Kingdom 1,576 00Q ordinary shares of £1each (300%) Supply installation and maintenance of sateflite
television recenving equipment
BSkyB Telecommunications Urnited Kingdem 5 821764 ordinary sharas of £1 each (100%) Management of the network assets i the UK
Services Limited
Sky Ventures Limited United Kingdom 912 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Holding company
The Coud Networks Limited United Kingdom 30583988 shares of £0 00025 pershare (100%)  Prowvision of telecommunications
Hestview Limited United Kingdom 108 ordinary shares of £1each (100%} Provision of sports betting actmities
Bonne Terre Limited Guernsey 2 504 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Provision of gaming activities
Sky Home Communications Limited  United Kingdom 9528124 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Provision of residential broadband and telephone
operaticns
Joint ventures and assoclates
Nickelodeon UK Limited United Kingdom 104 B Shares of £0 01each (40%) Transmission of children s television channels
AETN UK United Kingdom 50000 A Shares of £1 each (50%) Transmission of history biography crime and
nvestigation television programming
Paramount UK Partnership™t} United Kingdom Partrership interest {25%) Transmission of general entertainment comedy
channels
Australian News Channel Pty Australia 1ordinary share of AUD$1 (33 33%) Transmisston of news and business channels
Limited
NGC Network International £ LC United States of Partnership interest (21%) Transmussion of natural history and adventure
America channels
NGC Network Latin Amenca LLC United States of Partnership interest (21%) Transmission of natural history and adventure
Amernca channels
Attheraces Holdings Limited® United Kingdorm 1502 ordinary shares of £1each (459%) Transmission of a horse racing channel and
20 Recoupment Shares of £Q 55 each related onling actiities
MGM Channel (UK} Limited United Kingdom 50 ordinary shares of £1each (50%) Transmission of dassic mavies in HD
Sky News Aratia FZ-LLC United Arab Emirates 26666 666 shares of US$1 each (50%) Transmission of Arabic News in the MENA region
(Middle East and Nerth Afnica)
Investments
ITV Plciv United Kingdom 291684730 ordinary shares of EQ10each (742%)  Transmissien of free-to-air channels
Motes

(h These entities have an accounting reference date of 31 December

(1) These entities have an accounting referance date of 30 September

(1) The registered address of Paramount UK Partnership 1s 180 Oxford Street London W1D 105 The Paramount UK Partnership is a joint venture of the Group and 1s included within
the consolidated accounts In accordance with Note 1(e)(1) Consequently the Paramount UK Partnership has taken advantage of the exemptionwithin the Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008 (regulation 7} from filng annual financial statemeants

(v) Thisnote sets out anabbreviated st of the subsidianes of the Company A full list will be filed with Companies House in accordance with section 410 of the Companies Act 2006

The following companies are exempt from the requirements relating te the audit of Indwidual accounts for the year/period ended 30 June 2013
by virtue of section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 BSkyB Finance Limited (02906994, Kidsprog Limited (02767224) Parthenon Media
Group Limited (06944197} SATV Publishing Limited (01085975) Sky Holdings Limited (05585009) Sky iP International Limited (07245844),
Sky Telewvision Limited (01518707) and Sky New Media Ventures Limited (03879726)
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32. BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
Notes £m Em
Revenue 214 200
Operating expense (40) (20)
Qperating profit 174 180
Dmndend income from subsidiaries o Q47 874
Investment Income B 58 56
Finance costs ~ B (en (63)
Profit before tax C 118 1,047
Taxation D 30 (45)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 1,088 1002
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this income statement
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 22
£m im
Profit for the year attnbutable to eguity shareholders 1,088 1,002
Other comprehensive Ingome
Amounts recognised directly in equity
Gain on cash flow hedges 3 12
Tax on cash flow hedges Q)] [&))]
2 9
Amounts reclassified and reported in the iIncome’statement
Loss on cash flow hedges (28) ®
Tax on cash flow hedges 7 2
(€3)] (6}
Other comprehensive (loss)income for the year (net of tax) {19) 3
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 1069 1,005

All results relate to continuing operations
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

contnued

'

32 BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Company Balance Sheet

as at 30 June 2013
203 2012
Notes Em £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidianes E 8143 8272
Qther recevables G 3 3
Denvative financial assets J 34 384
8487 8659
Current assets
Other receivables G 2967 1652
Cash and cash equivalents - 1
2967 1653
Total assets 11454 10,312
Current llabiites
Other payables | 3434 2774
Non-current habilities
Borrowings H 1718 124
Denvative financial labilities J 176 220
Deferred tax labiities F 1 3
1895 1434
Total habiities 5,329 4208
Share capital L 797 837
Share premium L 1437 1437
Reserves ‘ 389 3830
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders 6125 6,104
Total habilities and shareholders equity 11,454 10,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet

1
These financal statements of Briush Sky Broadcasting Group plc registered number 02247735 have been approved by the Board of Directors

on 25 July 2013 and wera signed on its behalf by

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Griffith
Chief Executwe Officer Chief Financial Officer

Company Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations M - -
Net cash from operating activities - -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the exercise of share options 5 10
Loan to subsidiaries ae) (i3)
Net cash used in financing activities {1} [€)]
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents . n 3
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1 4

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this cash flow statement
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 tune 2013 g
Capital Total i
Share Share Specal redemption Capital ESOF Hedging Retained Shareholders’ &
capital premum  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings equity é
£m £m £m £m £m Em Em £m Em
At 1July 20M 876 1437 14 a5 B44 (107) 3 2988 6,150
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1002 1002
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - - - - 4 - 4
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - (D] - QU]
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 3 1002 1,005
Share-based payment - - - - - (5) - (80} (85)
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation (39) - - 39 - - - {546) (546)
- Financial hiabihty for close penod
purchases - - - - - - - 10y 10}
Owvidends - - - - - - - {0 (410)
At 30 June 2012 837 1437 14 134 844 (12) 6 2,944 6,104
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1088 1088
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - - - - (25) - (25}
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - 3] - 6
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (19) 1088 1,069
Share-based payment - - - - - (3%) - 61 26
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation (40) - - 40 - - - (617) ©17)
- Financial hability for close penod
purchases - - - - - - - 8) (16}
Dividends - - - - - - - (441) (447)
At 30 June 2013 797 1437 14 74 844 (147) (13) 3018 625

For a description of the nature and purpose of each equityreserve see note L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement of changes in equity
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

32 BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

A Accounting policies

British Sky Broadcasting Group ple (the "Company™) s a imited hability
company Incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in
England and Wales

1) Basis of preparation

The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS, consistent with the accounting policies set out in note 1 of
the Group s consolidated financial statements

1) Revenue

Revenue which excludes value added tax, represents the gross inflow
of economic benefit from the Company s operating activities Revenue
1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable The Company’s main source of revenue 1s from licensing the
Company's brand name asset to subsidiaries This revenue Is
recogrised on an accruals basis under the terms of relevant licensing
agreements

1) Investment in subsidiaries

An Investment 1n a subsidiary 1s recognised at cost less any provision
for impairment As permitted by section 133 of the Companies Act
2006, where the relief afforded under section 131 of the Companies
Act 2006 apples, cost 1s the aggregate of the nominal value of the
relevant number of the Company's shares and the farr vatue of any
other consideration given to acquire the share capital of the
subsichary undertakings

Investment income and finance costs

C Profit before taxation
Employee benefits
The Company had nil employees (2012 rul) during the year

Key management compensation
Amounts paid to the Directors of the Company are disclosed in the
Report on Directors’ remureration on pages 48 to 56

D Taxation
1) Taxation recognised in the income statement

2013 20i2
£m Em
Current tax expense
Current year 37 46
Adjustment in respect of pnor years an -
Total current tax charge 26 46
Deferred tax expense
Ongnation and reversal of temporary differences 4 3
Adjustment in respect of prior years - (€]
Total deferred tax charge {credit) 4 ! {n
Taxation 30 45
1) Deferred tax recognised directly in equity
2013 2012
£m £m
Deferred tax (credit) charge on hedging actmties (6) 1

) Reconaliation of effective tax rate

2013 2012 The tax expense for the year s lower (2012 lower) than the expense
Em EM_ that would have been charged using the blended rate of corporation
Investment income tax in the UK (23 75%) applied to profit befare tax The applicable
Investment income from subsidianes 58 56 enacted or substantively enacted effective rate of UK corporation tax
. for the year was 23 75% (2012 255%) The differences are explained
2013 2012 pelow
£m £m
Finance costs 2013 2012
- Interest payable and similar charges Em £m
Revolving Credit Faclity ("RCF™) 2) (8} Profit before tax 1ne 1047
Guaranteed Notes (see note H) (76) (67)  Profit before tax multiplied by blended rate of
(78) {75) corporation taxin the UK of 23 75%
- Other finance income (expense) (2012 25 5%} 266 267
Remeasurement of borrowings and Effects of
borrowings-related derivative financial Non-taxable income (225) (224)
instruments (not qualifying for hedge Non-deductible expenditure - )
accounting) 6 12 Over provision in respect of prior years an (4)
{Loss) gain ansing ondervativesina Taxation 30 45

designated far value hedge accounting

relationship (22) 42
Gain (loss) ansing on adjustment for hedged

1tem In a designated fair value hedge

aceounting relationship 23 (42)
17 12
(6%) (63)

All taxation relates to UK corpaoration tax
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E Investments in subsidizries

G Other receivables

Ern 2013 2012
Cost £m Em
At 1July 20M 9061  Amounts recervable from subsidiaries 2966 1652
Additons 703  Prepayments and other recevables t -
Disposal 487y  Current other recevables 2,967 1,652
At 30 June 2012 9,277 Non-current prepayment, 3 3
Additions §73  Total other recewvables 2,970 1655
Disposal (702} O 26 November 2012, the Companyssued US$800 milion
‘::o ?nc;'::”n"" 2013 318 Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 3125% and loaned proceeds
ACY July 2011 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 1005 to British Sky Broadcasting Limited British Sky Broadeasting Limited

pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Company

Carrying amounts
At 1 July 201 8056  On5March 2009 the Company made a loan of £694 millon to British
At 30 June 2012 8272 SkyBroadcasting Limsted which 1s repayable on demand and bears
At 30 June 2013 8143  interest at arate of 6 month LIBOR plus 075% In October 2009 the

During the year the Company purchased 100% of the share capital of
BSkyB LLU Assets Limited from its direct subsidiary BSkyB Finance
UK Plc The Company subsequently transferred its investment n
BSkyB LLU Assets Limited to its direct subsidiary British Sky
Broadecasting Limited

During the prioryear the Company transferred its investment in
Briush Interactive Broadcasting Holdings Limited tots subsidiary
British Sky Broadcasting Limited Following this transfer British
Interactive Broadcasting Holdings Limited was put into iguidation

See note 3i for a list of significant investments of the Company

F Deferred tax
Recognised deferred tax liabilities

Financal

nstruments

tempaorary

differences

Em
A1 July 2011 (&)
Credit to income 1
Charge to equity m
At 30 June 2012 3)
Charge to income )
Credit to equity 6
At 30 June 2013 [Q)]

At 30 June 2013 adeferred tax asset of £278 million (2012 £299
milion) has not been recognised In respect of capital losses related to
the Group's holding in KirchPayTV on the basis that utiisation of
these temporary differences is not probable At 30 fune 2013, the
Company has alsc not recegnised a deferred tax asset of £7 million
(2012 £8 mulkon) relating to capital losses and provisions in respect of
football club investments on the basis that it I1s not probable that
they will be utshsed

Company assigned £604 million of this loan to settle payables with
BSkyB Finance Limited

On13 January 2009, the Company made a loan of £252 mithon to
British Sky Broadcasting Limited This ioan bears interest at arate of 6
month LIBOR plus 100% and 1s repayable on demand

On13 January 2009 the Company made a loan of £91 million to Sky
In-Home Service Limited This loan s repayable on demand and bears
interest at a rate of & menth LIBOR plus 100%

©n 24 November 2008 the Company 1ssued US$600 million
Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of @ 5% and loaned the
proceeds to BSkyB Finance Limited BSkyB Finance Limited pays the
same annuai effective intergst rate to the Company

0On 29 June 2008, the Company entered into loan agreements with
British Sky Broadcasting Limited for £143 millicn and £109 milhon, both
bearing interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus 075% These loans
are repayable on demand

On 29 June 2008 Sky Ventures Limited transferred its £11 million loan
recaivable from BSkyB Finance Limited to the Company This loan
bears interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus § 75% and is repayable
on demand

On 29 June 2008 the Company entered into a RCF with BSkyB Finance
Limited worth £40 miilion Amounts loaned under this facihty bear
Interest at a rate of 1month LIBOR plus 0 75% and are repayable on
demand

On 15 February 2008 the Company 1ssued US$750 million Guaranteed
Notes with a coupon rate of 6 100% and loaned the proceeds to
British Sky Broadcasting Limited Batish Sky Broadcasting Limited
pays the same annual effective Interest rate to the Company

All other amounts recevable from subsidianes are non-interest
bearing and are also repayable on demand

The Directors cons:der that the carrying amount of other recevables
approximates their fair values
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

32 BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

The Company’s credit nisk (s primarily attributable toits other receivables The majonty of Its other receivables balance 1s due from British Sky
Broadcasting Limited The risk of this entity defaulting on amounts owed 1s considered low due to its successful operation of pay television
broadcasting and home communications services In the UK and Ireland

H Borrowings
2013 2012
£m £m
Nen-current borrowings
US$750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 498 495
US$582 8 million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable (n November 2018 404 420
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayablea in November 2022 520 -
E300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 206 296
1718 1211
See note 20 for detatls of the Company’s Guaranteed Notes and RCF and note 22 for details of Capital Risk Management
| Other payables
2013 2012
£m £m
Other payables
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 3393 2746
Amounts owed to other related parties 5 4
Other 10 6
Accruals 20 18
3434 2,774

Amounts payable to subsidiaries are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand The balance comprises £1,898 million of non-interest
bearing loans (2012 £1271 million) and £1,500 rullon of other payables (2012 £1 475 million) The Directors consider that the carrying amount
of other payables approximates therr far values

J Derivatives and other financial instruments

Fair values

Set out below 1s a compansen of the carrying values and the estimated fawr values of the Company’s financial assets and financial habilities at
30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012

2013 2013 2012 202

Carrying Fair carrying Fair

value value value value

£m Em £m Em

Financial assets and llabilities held or 1ssued to finance the Company's operations

Quoted bond debt ng (1915) {1211) 1430

Dernvative financial Instruments . 165 165 164 164
Other payables and receivables (467) 467) {1122) (1122)

The fair values of financial assets and finanaial labilibies are determined as detailed innote 21 and all items held at fasr value are classified as
Level 2 1n the fair value hierarchy
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Set out below are the denvative financialinstruments entered into by the Company to manage 1ts Interest rate and foreign exchange nsk

2013 2012
. Asset Liability Asset Liablity
Fair Value Nottonal  Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional  Fair Value Notional
£m £m £m £m Em £m Em £m
Farr value hedges
Interest rate swaps 65 505 - - B7 454 - -
Cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps B6 746 - 47 80 290 - -
Denvatives not in a formal hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps 43 605 (42) 345 54 479 " (54) ass
Cross-currency swaps 147 725 {134) 1018 163 724 (166) 1G17
Yotal 3n 2581 (176) 1410 284 1,987 (220} 1476

Note 21 provides further details of the Group s derivative and other financial iInstruments

The maturity of the derivative financial Instruments i1s shown below

2013 2012
Asset Liabihity Asset Liabxlity
£m £m , £m £m
Betwesn two and five years 242 [QPa)] 99 ©9)
in more than five years 99 (E4) 285 (1213
Total LY (1768) 384 (220)

K Financial risk management

Interest rate and foreign exchange risk management

The Company manages Its exposure to interest rates and foreign exchange movermnents which arise from the Company s sources of finance by
selectively entering into dervative financial instruments to manage tits exposure The Company has also entered intc dervative contracts on
behalf of its subsidiary BSkyB Finance UK plc ang has back-to-back intercompany contracts N

Foreign exchange nsk

The following analysis details the Company’s sensitivity to movements in peunds sterling aganst all currencies in which it has significant
transactions The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated Finanaial instruments and adjusts therr ,
translation at the period end for a 25% change in foraign currency rates

A 25% strengthening 1n pounds sterling against the US dollar would have an adverse impact on profit of £22 mithon (2012 adverse impact of
£26 million), relating to non-cash movements in the valuation of dervatives The same strengthening would have an adverse impact on other
equity of £25 million (2012 adverse impact of £21 million)

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling against the US dollar would have a beneficial impact on profit of £36 millon (2012 beneficial mpact of £43
million), relating to non-cash movements in the valuation of derivatives The same weakening would have a beneficial impact on other equity of
£42 million (2012 beneficial impact of £34 million)

Interest rate risk

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to Interest rates for both denvatives and non-derivative financial
instruments at the balance sheet date Fer floating rate labilities the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

For each one hundred basis point nse or fall In interest rates at 30 June 2013, and If all other variables were held constant the Company s profit
for the year ended 30 June 2013 would decrease or increase by £3 milkon {2012 decrease or increase by £3 million) and other equity reserves
would decrease orincrease by £4 millon (2012 decrease or increase by £4 milion)

Acne hundred basis point rise or fall In Interest rates represents a large but realistic movement which can easily be multiplied to give
sensitivities at different interest rates

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be used with caution as the impacts provided are not necessarily indicative
of the actual impacts that would be expenenced because the effect of achange in a particular market vanable on fair values or cash flows 1s
caleulated without considering interrelationships between the various market rates or mitigating actions that would be taken by the Company
tn addition, the Company’s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Company’s portfolio of debt changes

The changes in valuations are estimates of the impact of changes in market vaniables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated
gains or losses
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

32. BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Liquidity nisk

See note 22 for the Company’s policy on hquidity management

The following table analyses the Company’s nen-derwative financial habilities net settled interest rate swaps and gross settled currency
swaps and collars into relevant maturity groupings based on the remasning period at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date

The amounts disclesed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and may therefore not reconcile to the amounts disclosed on

the balance sheet for borrawings, derivative financial iInstruments and other payables

Between Between
Less than oneand twoand More than
Zmonths twoyears fiveyears fiveyears
£m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2013
Non-derivative financial habeliies
Bonds -USD 83 83 740 999
Bonds - GBP 18 18 54 462
QOther payables 3434 - - -
MNet settled denvatwes
Financial assets Qan a7 (D) %)
Gross settled denvatives
Outflow 62 62 574 978
Inflow (53) (63) (682) (926)
Between Between
Less than eneand twoand Morethan
1Zmonths twoyears fiveyears  five years
£m £m £m £m

At 30 June 2012
Non-derivative financial habilities
Bonds - USD 65 65 195 938
Bonds - GBP 18, 8 54 480
Other payables 2774 - - -
Net settled derivatives
Financial assets {18) {18) (56) (25)
Gross settled derivatives
Outflow 50 50 149 B840
Inflow (47) 47 (140) (913

AL 30 June 2013 the Company had an undrawn £743 milion RCF with a maturity date of 31 October 2017 See note 20 for further Information

L Notes to the Company statement of changes inequity

For details of share capital, share premium the special reserve the capital redemptionreserve and the hedging reserve see notes 23 and 24

For details of the Company’s share buy-back programmes, see note 24

For detatls of dividends, see note 9

Capital reserve

This reserve arose from the surplus on the transfer of trade and assets to a subsidiary undertaking
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M Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2013 2012

. Em Em

Profit hefore tax ms 1047
Dvidend income ' . (947) (8743

Net finance costs 3 7
Increase in other receivables ' (174) (179}
Decrease In other payables - ()]

Cash generated from operations - -

N Contingent habilities and guarantees

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have undertaken In the normal course of business to provide support to several of the Group s
investments in both imited and unhmited companies and partnerships, to meet their labilities as they fall due Several of these undertakings
contain maximum financial imits These undertakings have been given for at least one year from the date of the signing of the UK statutory
accounts of the related entity A paymeant under these undertakings would be required in the event of an investment being unable to pay its
labiiities

The Company has provided parent company guarantees in respect of the vanous contracts entered into with the Premrer League by British Sky
Broadcasting Limited covenng the 201314 to 201516 football seasons In each case the guarantee cover's all payment obligations now or in the
future due owing or iIncurred by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts and all liabilities now or in the future anising or incurred
under the indemnity given to the Premier League by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts

The Company has provided a parent company guarantee in respect of the contract entered into with British Sky Broadcasting Limited and
Stanhope plc in relation to the construction of a new Meeting Centre at the Osterley Campus The guarantee covers all performance
obligations and payment obligations imposed on British Sky Broadcasting Limited under that contract

The Company has guarantees in place relating to the Groups borrowings, see note 20, and in relation to audit exemptions, see note 31

O Transactions with related parties and major shareholders

2013 2012

Em Em

Supply of services to subsidiaries 214 200

interest receved from funding to subsidianes 58 56

Arnounts owed by subsidiaries 2966 1652
Amounts owed to subsidiaries (3398) (2746)
Amounts owed to other related parties &) (4)

The Company has related party transactions with its subsidianes by virtue of its status as parent company of the Group In particular itis
normal treasury practice for the Company to fend and borrow cash to and from its subsidiaries as required Under this policy British Sky
Broadcasting Linuted settled labiities of £74 milllon (2012 £67 million) on behalf of the Company during the year Interest 1s earned on certain
loans to subsidianes

The Company recogrised £214 mithon (2012 £200 milison) for icensing the Sky brand name to subsidiaries
The Company recognised dividends during the year from subsidiaries totalling £947 million (2012 £874 million)

Share buy-back programme
During the year, the Company purchased, and subsequently cancelled 31525 314 ordinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
(formerly known as News Corporation) as part of its share buy-back programme For further details, see note 24

The Group s related party transactions are disclosed in note 28

P Events after the reporting period
On 25 July 2013, the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme For further details see note 30 to the consohdated financial statements
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Group financial record - unaudited

Consolidated results

Below 1s selected financial iInformation for the Group under IFRS as at and for each of the five years ended 30 June 2013

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 20m 2010 2009
Consclidated Income Statement £m £m Em £m Em
Continuing operations
Retall subscrnption 5951 5593 547 4778 4187
Wholesale subscription 396 351 323 238 206
Advertising 440 440 458 340 329
Installation hardware and service 87 98 n2 174 235
Other 361 309 233 179 200
Revenue™ 7235 6,791 6 597 5,709 5157
Operating expense™ (5944) {5548} (5,524) (4,865) A4 315)
Litigation settlement income - - - 263 -
Operating profit 1,291 1,243 1,073 i3 842
Share of results of joint ventures and asscciates 46 39 34 32 19
Investment iIncome on litigabion settlement - - - 49 -
Investment income 28 18 9 3 ' L
Finance costs (1e8) [q11)] mn (122) (220
Impairment, of avallable-for-sale investment - - - - a9
Profit on disposal of avalable-for-sale iInvestment. - - 9 ns -
Profit before tax 1257 1189 1014 1180 485
Taxation (278) (283) (256) {294) (94)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 979 906 758 896 281
Discontinued operations
Profit {loss) for the year from discontinued operations - - 52 18) (32)
Profit for the year 979 506 810 878 259
Net profit (loss) recognised directly in equity 129 64 )] 61 134
Total comprehensive income for the year 1108 570 802 939 393
Earnings per share from profit for the year (in pence)
Basic 607p 526p 4650 504p 148p
Diluted 597p 522p 459p 501p 14 Bp
Dividends per share (in pence) 300p 254p 233p 194p 176p
r
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Consolidated Balance Sheet Em £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets 3776 3234 3,025 2818 2632
Current assets 2569 2275 2329 1986 1937
Total assets 6345 5,509 5,354 4,804 4569
Current habiities (2317) (2098} (1912) {1707 {2194)
Non-current hlabihties {3016) {2467) (2407) (2537 (243%)
Net assets (habilities) 1012 544 1035 560 (64)
Number of shares in 1ssue (in milllons) 1,594 1674 1753 1753 1753
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Consolidated results continued

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 202 20m 2010 2009
Statistics ('0G0) (000) (000} {000) {000}
Products
™ 10,422 10288 10,187 9860 9442
SkytHD 4788 4343 3822 2939 1,313
Multiroom 24BS 2,402 2250 2121 1,835
Sky Go Extra 166 - - - -
Broadband 4906 4,001 3335 2624 2203
Telephony 4501 3768 3100 2367 1850
Linerental 4364 3563 2680 1686 917
Total paid-for subscnption products 31634 28 365 25,375 21,597 17560
Customers
Retail custormers 11153 10606 10294 9868 9442
Wholesale customers® 3677 3672 3522 3271 3160
Total customers 14,830 14 278 13816 13139 12,602
Average number of full-time equivalent employees 19413 17937 16,006 16 43% 14922
Notes

) Included withinretail subscnption revenue for the year ended 30 June 200915 £36 millon of additional revenue representing amounts invatced i prior years which did not meet
revenue recogrition critena under IFRS until Mardh 2009

(n) Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 fune 2013 15 a credit of £32 milhonin relation to a aedit note receved following an Ofcom determination, a credit of
£33 milkon relating to the final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of sat-top boxes (net of associated costs) costs of £31 milkon relating to one-off upgrade of
set-top boxes costs of £33 milkon relating to a corporate efficiency programme and costs of £15 million relating to the acquisition and integration of the O2 consumer broadband
and fixed-line telephony business Also included are costs of £25 millon relating to the programme to offer wiraless connecteors to selected Sky Movies custemers
Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 201215 a credit of £31 milhen inrelation ta the News Corperation (subsequently rernamed Twenty-First Century Fox
Inc) proposal in 2011 congisting of costs incurred offset by the receipt of the bresk fee Also included are restructuring costs of £11 mullon which comprise severance payments n
relatian to approximately 35 senior roles as part of a restructunng initiative to iImprove operating efficency
Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 201 1s £26 m lhon of restructunng costs ansing on the acquisition of Liang TV which comprise principally
redundancy payments and the garly termination of a pre-acquisiion contract, £15 milkon of costs in relation to the News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First
Century Fox Inc} proposal and & ¢redit of £41 mithon inrelation to the refund of mport duty on set top boxes paid out inpnor years This duty was recovered due to the jJudgment
given by the ECJon14 April 2011
Included within operating expense for the vear ended 30 June 201015 £32 million of expense relating to a restructuring exercise of which £22 millon related to the imparment of
assets associated with Picrie (the potential laurch of & subsenption television service on DTT) and £10 million related to resrganisation costs and redundancy payments Also
included within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 201015 £1 million 2009 £3 million) of expense ralating to legal costs Incurred on the Group’s claim against EDS
which provided services tothe Groug as part of the Group s Investment in customer management systems software and infrastructure and a E5million credit (2009 nil) related
ta the carcellation of accounts payable on settlement of the claim against EDS

() Wholesale customers are customers who take a package from one of Sky's Whelesale Partners inwhich they receive at least one paid for Sky chanrel

Factors which materially affect the comparability of the selected financial data

Discontinued operations
During fiscal 2011 the Group sold its business-to-business telecommunications operation Easynet, to LDC

EDS Litigation settlement
During fiscal 2010 EDS and the Group fulty and finally settled the itrgation between them and allrelated claims (including for damages costs
and interest) for a total amount of £318 million Y

Available-for-sale investment
During fiscal 201 we disposed of our equity investment in Shine and recognised a profit of £9 million

Dunng fiscal 2010 we disposed of part of our equity investment in ITV and recognised a profit on disposal of £115 million For further details see
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

During fiscal 2009, we recorded an impairment loss of £191 milhon in the carrying value of our equity iInvestment in [TV
Business combinations

Ouring fiscal 2013 we completed the acquisition ¢f the 02 consurmer broadband and fixed-line telephony business from Teleforica UK,
comprising 100% of the share capital of Be Un Limited The results of this acquisition were consolidated from the date on which control passed
to the Group (30 April 2013)

During fiscal 2011, we completed the acquisitions of Living TV and The Cloud The results of these acquisitions were consolidated from the date
on which control passed to the Group (12 July 2010 and 23 February 2011 respectively)

Exchange rates

Asignuficant portion of our labilities and expenses associated with the cost of programmeng acquired from US film icensors together with
set-top box costs are denominated in US dollars For a discussion of the impact of exchange rate movements on our financial condition and
results of operations see note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

]
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Non-GAAP measures

All continuing operations

Reconciliation of operating profit to adjusted operating profit and adjusted EBITDA
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012 20m
Notes £m £m Em
Operating profit 1,291 1,243 1073
Credit receved followng final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes
including an impairment of £6 midlion In relation to assocated intangible assets 3 (33) - -
Costs relating to a corporate efficiency programme including an imparrment of £6 milhon in relation to
associated intangible and tangible assets 3 33 - -
Credit received following an Ofcom determination 3 (32) - -
Costs relating to one-of f upgrade of set-top boxes 3 El - -
Costs relating to programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers 3 25 - -
Costs relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-lne
telephony business including amertisation of £4 million 1 relation to associated intangible assets 3 15 - -
{Net recovery of) costs n relation to News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc)
proposal 3 - 31 15
Costs relating to a restructunng exercise 3 - n -
Lving TV restructuning costs - - 26
Recovery of import duty on set-top boxes - - {41y
Adjusted EBITDA 1692 1,567 1405
Cepreciation and amortisation 362) (344 (332)
Adjusted operating profit 1330 1,223 1,073
Reconciliation of cash generated from operations to adjusted free cash flow
for the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012 20Mm
Note £m Em Em
Cash generated from operations 25 1877 1,737 1569
Interest receved 29 177 7
Taxation paid 300) {254} 219)
Dividends recewved from joint ventures and associates 43 39 29
Net funding to joint ventures and associates &Y (6) [C))
Purchase of property plant and equipment (203) (228) {197}
Purchase of intangible assets (25YH) (229) (226)
Interest pad (128) (125) (124)
Free cash flow 1,063 951 835
Receipt following final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes® 0} - -
Cash paid relating to a corporate efficiency programme 4 - -
Receipt following an Ofcom determination™ (28) - -
Cash paid relating to one-off upgrade of set-top boxes® 7 - -
Cash paid relating to programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers™ 1 - -
Cash paid relating to the acquisition and integration of the G2 consumer broadband and fixed-line
telephony business 4 - -
(Net recovery of ) costs In relation te News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century
Fox Inc) proposal® - a3y 2
Cash paid relating to a restructunng exercise - 3 6
Recovery of import duty on set-top boxes® - (25) -
Receipt on dispasal of joint venture™ 3 6) -
Living TV restructunng costs - - 26
Adjusted free cash flow 1,028 910 869

{0 Net of apphcable ¢corporation tax
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Average Revenue Per User (ARPU)
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012 20Mm

£m Em £m

ARPU as previously reported n/a 548 539
Impact of standalene home communications® - - (5}
Benefit of zero-VAT magazine related income’ ? - - 3

Elimmation of iming difference related to magazine closure” ? - - 7

ARPU 577 548 538

() We have restated ARPU to include standalone home communications customers
(1) Wa previously recognised the benefit ansing from the zero rated VAT treatment on a small partion of customer revenue attributable to the Sky magazine Fallowing closure of the
magarne we have restated thae comparatives to present on alike-for like basis

(m} Following our decision to close the Sky customer magazine a one-off timng upside was reversed which related to revenue recognition of the magazine element of subscription
revenue This equated toa £7 reduction to ARPU IN 201
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Shareholder information

Annual Genera! Meeting

The Company’s AGMwill be held on 22 November 2013 at 11 00am at
the Edinburgh Internationai Conference Centre, The Exchange
Edinburgh EH3 8EE

Financial calendar
Results for the financial year ending 30 June 2014 will be published

17 October 2013
30 January 2014*
1 May 2014*

25 July 2014*

= provisional dates

The Sky website

Sharehalders are encouraged to visit the Sky website skycom which
has a wealth of infermation about the Company There Is a section
designed specifically for investors at sky comicorporate where
investor and media information can be accessed This year's Annual
Report and Annual Review and prior year docurments can be viewed
there

Share price information
The Company’s share price can be found on the Company’s corporate
website at sky com/corporate

Shareholder enquiries

The Company’s shareholder register is maintained by its Registrar
Equiniti Information on how to manage your shareheldings can be
found at help shareview co uk The pages at this web address provide
the following

> Answers to commonly asked questions regarding shareholder
registration,

> Links to downloadable forms guidance notes, and Company history
fact sheets

> Achoice of contact methods - via email, phone or writing

Alternatwely, shareholders can contact Equimits in relation to afl
adrministrative enguiries relating to ther shares suchas a change of
personal details, the loss of a share certificate or an out-of-date
dividend cheque

Shareholders can contact Equinity at

Equiriti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lanaing

Wast Sussex

BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871384 2030*

Telephone numter from outside the UK +44121 415 7047

* Calls to the above number are charged at Bp per minute from a BT landiine Other
telephony providers costs may vary Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday
1o Friday

Electronic shareholder communication

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the
Company’s articles of association, the Company Is permitted to use
its corporate website as the main way to communicate with
shareholders sending out Annual Reports only £o those who have
opted to receve a paper copy This reduces ourimpact on the
environment, minimises waste and reduces costs It also enables

shareholders to keep updated with developments at Sky as they
happen by accessing our website

Shareholders who have opted to receive shareholder communications
in paper form are encouraged to receve these electronically in future
by registering at shareview co uk Shareholders can also change their
instructions at any time by contacting Equinits Limited

Dividends

Shareholders can have ther dividends paid directly into a UK bank or
building society account with the tax voucher sent directly to their
registered address Please contact Equirition 0871384 2091 fora
dmdend mandate form

The Company operates a consolidated tax voucher service for
shareholders who have chosen to receive dividends directly into their
bank account. A single consolidated tax voucher will be mailed by the
end of Novernber each year, to concide with the final diwdend
payment Full detalls are avallable at corporate skycom

Overseas dividend payments

A service has been established to provide shareholders in over 30
countnes worldwide with the opportunity ta receive their dividends in
their local currency For a small flat-rate fee shareholders can have
ther dividends automatically converted from Sterling and paid into
their nominated bank account normally within five warking days of
the dividend payment date For further detalls please contact
Equiniti on 0871384 2091

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Company operates a Dividend Reirvestrnent Plan ('DRIP") which
enables shareholders to buy the Company’s shares on the London
stock market with their cash dividend Further information about the
DRIP is available from Equiniti The helpine number s 0871384 2268
from inside the UK and +44 121 4157173 from overseas

ShareGift

Shareholders who only have a small number of shares whose value
makes it uneconomic ta sell them may wish to consider donating
them to chanty through ShareGift, the ndependent charity share
donation scheme (registered charity no 1052686) Further
information about ShareGift may be obtained from Equiniti or from
ShareGift on 020 7930 3737 or at sharegift org There are no
ymplications for capital gains tax purposes (no gain or loss) on afts of
shares to chanty and it 1s also possible to claim income tax rehef

Shareholder fraud

Fraud 1s on the increase and many shareholders are targeted every

year If you have any reason to believe that you may have been the

target of afraud or attempted fraud 1n relation to your shareholding
please contact Equinitlimmediately For morg nformation please see
protect your shareholding ' in the shareholder information section of
our website at corparate sky com

American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs")

The Company’s ADR programme trades on the over-the-counter

(' OTC") market In the US The Company’s ADRs are quoted on the OTC
market’s highest tier, International Premiar{IX More information can
be obtained from, otegx com ADRs are quoted in US dollars and trade
Just Iike any other US security The Company has a sponsored Level 1
ADR programme for which The Bank of New York Mellon acts as
Depositary One ADR represents four ordinary shares
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All enguinies relating to the Company’s ADRs should be addressed to

BNY Mellon

PO Box 43006, Prowdence, RI 02940-3006 US A
US residents (888) 269 2377

If resident outside the US 41201680 6825
emall shrrefations@bnymellon com

Company’s registered office
Grant Way

Isleworth

Middlesex

TW75QD

Telephone 0333100 0333
Overseas +44 333100 0333

Company registration number
2247735

Chartered Accountants
Deloitte LLP

2 New Street Square
London

EC4A 3BZ

Principal bankers

The Roval Bank of Scotland plc
St Andrew’s Square
Edinburgh

EH22YB

Solicitors

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP
Exchange House

Primrose Street

Lendon

EC2A2EG

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc 17

W
E
]
H
a
Ed
o
N
&
2
5
2
©
g
F]
H
=4
8
3

FANAD L SBUISNE

MEAS] PLIUULY

AILEUICAD )



Annual Report 2013 Glossary of terms

Glossary of terms ’

Useful Definions

Description

21st Century Fox UK Following the split of the News Corporation companies on 28 June 2013, News UK Norminees Limited has been

Nominees Ltd renamed 21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited

ADSL2+ The type of broadband supplied over Sky's own data network offering end-users increased speeds compared to the
oniginal ADSL technology (ADSL2+ typically offers download speeds of up to 15 mbps)

Bonus channel A channel provided to a TV custorner in addition to one or more subscription channels, but at no incremental cost to
the TV customer

BSkyB or the British Sky Broadcasting Group ple

Company

Churn The number of total customers over a given pertod that terminate their subscription in its entirety, net of former
customers who reinstated their subscription in that period (where such reinstatement 1s within a 12-meonth peniod of
the termination of ther original subscription) expressed as an annualised percentage of total average customers for
the period

COe Carbon dioxide equivalent This expresses the global warming potential of different greenhouse gases (for example
methane, nitrous oxide) in terms of the equivalent amount of carbon dioxide, measured in tonnes

D51 Digital Subscnber Line

DTH Direct-to-Home the transmission of satellite services and functionality with reception through a minidish "DTH
customer’ means a subscriber to one or more of our retailed packages of television channels made available
wvia DTH

DTT Digital Terrestnal Television digital signals delivered to homes through a conventional aenal, converted through a
set-top box or integrated digital television set

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and ameortisation 1s calculated as operating profit before
depreciation amortisation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

EPG Electronic Programme Guide

ESOP Employee Share Ownership Plan

ESPN Entertamment and Sports Programming Network broadcasting the ESPN ESPN Classic ESPN Amenca and ESPN HD

Channels

Fiscal year or fiscal

Refers to the twelve months ended on the Sunday nearest to 30 June of the given year

Freeview

The free-to-ar DTT offering avalable in the UK

Freesat The free-to-air DTH joint venture between the BBC and ITV

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The Group BSkyB and its subsidiary undertakings

HD High Definition television

HMRC Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

P Internet Protocol a mechanism by which data packets may be routed between computers on a network

IPTV Internet Protocol Television

LLu Lacal Loop Unbunding a process by which BT's exchange lines are physically disconnected from BT's network and
connected to other operators’ networks This enables operators other than BT to use the BT local loop to provide
services to customers

Minidish Sateflite dish required to receive digital satellite telewviston

MMDS Multipaimt Microwave Distribution Service

MPF Metallic Path Facilities which oceur where a single communications provider uses the local loop to provide both
broadband and voice services over Its network

Multiroom Installztion of an additional set-top box in the household of an existing DTH customer

NOW TV The Group s Internet streaming service available to anyone in the UK with aninternet connection regardiess of ISP
This service 1s currently avalable on PC, Mac the XBox 360 PlayStation 3, YouView and Roku set-top boxes and
selected Android devices

NVN New Voice Network

Ofcom UK Office of Communications

On Demand Sky's On Demand service offering a selection of content from across the Sky platform available for customers to

watch whenever they want The full On Demand service 1s avallable tocustomers that have an active broadband
connection
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Useful Definitions

Description

PL

Premier League

Premium Channels

The Sky Premiurmn Channels and the Premiurm Sky Distributed Channels

Prermium Sky Distributed MUTY Chelsea TV and MGM HD

Channels

PVR Personal Video Recorder sateliite decoder which utilises a built-in hard disk drive to enable viewers to record without
videotapes pause live television and record one programme while watching another

RCF Revolving Credit Facility

Set-top box Dugital satellite equipment, responsible for receving, converting and sending the picture and sound of a broadcast to
the assocated television set

Sky British Sky Broadcasting Group plc and 1ts subsidiary undertakings

Sky+ Sky's fully-integrated PVR and satellite decoder

Skyt HD High Definition box with PVR functionality

Sky Basic Channels Sky 1, Sky 2, Pick TV Challenge Sky News Sky Sports News Sky Arts 1and Sky Arts 2 Sky Pokercom Sky Living, Sky
Living It and Sky Atlantic (and therr multiplex versions and their simulcast HD versions)

Sky Bet Sky's betting services, provided through set-top boxes, the Internet and via phone

Sky Broadband Home breadband service previously provided exclusively for Sky digital customers but now extended to gustomers
who do not take a television service from Sky

Sky Box Office Our pay-per-view service offering movies sporting events and concerts generally offered at scheduled times on our
36 dedicated inear channels

Sky Channels Television channels wholly-owned by the Group being the Sky Basic Channels and Sky Premium Channels

Sky Distributed Television channels owned and broadcast by third parties retailed by the Group to TV Customers

Channels

Sky Go Sky's retalled packages of television channels and on demand content made avallable via a broadband connection
including the version made available to mobile devices via a wireless or 3G connection

Sky Go Extra Selected content included within Sky s retalled packages of television channels and on demand content made
avallable to download, enabling customers to watch the content when and wherever they want, without the need for
a broadband wireless or 3G/4G connection

Sky Mobile Sky's retalled packages of television channels made available to mobile devices via a wireless or 3G connection and
our Sky Mobile TV platform

Sky Premium Sky Sports 1 Sky Sports 2 Sky Sports 3 Sky Sport 4 Sky Sports F1 Sky Movies Premiere Sky Movies Showcease, Sky

Channels Movies Comedy Sky Movies Family, Sky Movies Action & Adventure Sky Movies Q07, Sky Movies SciFt & Horror, Sky
Movies Drama & Romance, Sky Movies Crime & Thriller Sky Movies Disney and Sky Mowvies Select (and their multiplex
versions and their simulcast HD versions} and Sky 3D

Sky Store Cur pay-per-view, on demand movies rental service avallable via Sky On Demand and Sky Go

Sky Talk Heme telephony service provided for Sky digital subscribers and now extended to customers whe do not take a
television service from Sky

Sky Wik Sky s seamless wireless internet access provided at over 20,000 The Cloud hotspots in the UK

SMPF Shared Metallic Path Faclity

Standalone home Sky's retalled packages of broadband talk and line rental when taken without a television subscription package

communications

Transponder Communication dewices on satellites which send programming signals to mini dishes

TV Customer A paying subscriber to one or more of our TV services principally DTH and NOW Ty

Twenty-First Century

Following the split of the News Corporation companies on 28 June 2013, News Corperation has been renamed

Fox, Inc Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
Viewing share Number of people viewing a channel as a percentage of total viewing audience
VM Virgin Media

References to “US dollars” 'dollars” "US$” $'and ‘¢ * are to the currency of the United States (‘'US") references to “euro” and “€” are to the
currency of the participating European Union (‘EU) countries and references to “pounds sterling”, “E’ “pence’ and ‘p’ are to the currency of

the UK
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Further information

Accessibility

If you would like adwice regarding accessibility of this documeant.
please contact the Accessible Customer Service tearn on

0844 241 0333 or TextPhone on 0844 241 0535

Customers in RO should use telephone number 0818 7198 09
and Textphone number 0818 71 98 45

The 2012 BSkyB Annual Review and Arnual Report are avalable to view
or download at sky comicorperate ‘

To find out mora about how we are building a better and more sustainable
business for the long term visit sky com/biggerpicture and download the
Seeing the bigger picture Summary Report 2013
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